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RateGain Technologies Limited

Strategic Report
for the Year Bnded 31 March 2022

The director presents liis strategic report for the year ended 31 March 2022,

Business review

RateGain partoers with hospitality companies to engage the connected raveler and lLelp revenue, distribution and
marketing managers overcome the daily challenge of generating revenue in this dynamically changing industry. We
help unlock new revenue by providing the anly end to end platform that provides accurate, real-time and meattingful
insights, and connects companies to the largest supply and demand travel and hospitaiity network in the world. Cur
3-year goal is to be the most dominant player in areas of revenue maximization, distribution and guest experience
technologies for travel and hospitatity industry, with a longer-term vision of being the most valuable Hospitality and
Travel Tech Company in the world,

In 2018 RateGain purchased the assets of DHISCO Electronic Distribution Inc ('DHISCO?) through its whelly owned
US subsidiary, RateGain Technalagies Inc. This was foilowed up with the twe more acquisition of BCV Social LLC
{BCV" in 2019 and MyHatelshop Gmbh (MHS) in Sep 2021.

BCV is a Chicago-based social media management and strategy company focused on the hotel sector. BCV helps
haotels create content for social media platforms and cope with negative messages. BCV also creates amd runs social
marketing campaigns and enables RaieGain to unlock revenue across hotel chains, airlines, car rentals, OTAs, cruise
lines, package providers, TMCs, and vacalion rentals.

MHS provides solutions to increase direct sales of hotels and make it 2 profitable distribution channel by eptimizing,
menaging, and distributing hotel content and campaigns to demand partners and driving the online success of its hatel
partners.

Key Perfermance Indicators (“KP1™)

The performance during the year, logether with historical trend data is set out in the table below:

£
2022 2421 | Movement
Tumover | 112,256,816 | 11,911,797 3%
Operating Profit 562,010 717,004 ~21%
Profit before taxation 45,753 622,835 -03%

As compared to last year turnover of the company has increased by 3% haowever operating profit reduced by 21% as
compared to last year. This is primarily because of decrease in other operating income which was pertaining to R&D
tax credits for Jast year. Profit after tax is also seduced as compared to last year primarily because of increase in
inferest cost on toan taken from Silicon Valley bank.

Principal risks and uncertainties
RateGain operates in Software as a Service markets catering to iravel and hospitality segments and faces a number of
risks and uncertainty.

Liquidity risk:

Liquidity risk is managed by maintaining a balance between the funding requirements o support operational and other
activities and the bank balances available, The company's Hquidity risk management includes short-term cash
projections and considering the leve! of liquid assets in relation thereto, and moniloring balance sheet liquidity on a
frequent basis.
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RateGain Technologics Limited

Strategic Report
for the Year Ended 31 March 2022

Commercial Risk

The markets and segments the company operates within are intensely competitive, rapidly ¢hanging, and highly
fragmented, as current competitors expand theic product offermgs and new companies enter the market. Competitors
vary in size and in the scope ang breadth of the products offered

These expected results age subject to risks and uncertainties including without limitation the following: (a) demand for
The Company’s soffware may decline, causing a decline in demand. {b) the company may not be successful in
delivering services that satisfy costomer requircments, which could result in decreased customer demand, or claims by
custamers, (¢} other companies are capable of providing better products which may increase their market share

Credit risk:

Customers comprise large carporates with low credit risk. There are not comsidered to be any material risks relating to
individual customess or business pariners. Trade debtors are alsa managed in respect of credit and cash flow risk by
policies concerning the credit offered to customers and the regular monitoring of amounts outstanding for both time
and credit Hmits.

Interest rate risk: : .
The compaty owes amount to group company on which interest is payable. However, there are not considered to be
any material risk regarding interest rate.

Human Resources

The comparny is aware that its performance is only as good as the people it employs. RateGain $herefore attempts o
have policies in place to attract, retain and motivate its employees (o help achieve is business objectives.

Forex Risk

The company deals with ail major currencies like GBP, EUR and USD Volatility in currency may impact the resufts
of the company adversely. '

Future developments

RateGain will continue to focus on growth via acquisition of new businesses along addition of new services. The
Company is active in the Mergers and Acquisition (M&A) market and continuously seeking opportunities to acquire
business in fhe distribution seetor. Tn addition, RateGain will continuc o focus on growth via organic strategies, by
upselling and cross selling products, to support the future M&A and investment in new products, the holdiag
company ie. RateGain Travel Technologies Ltd (India) has raised the funds through initial public offer through
securities and exchange board of India amounted to approximate GBP 41MN (INR3,730 MNj).

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD:

B Chapra - Dhrector

I August 2022
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RateGain Technologies Limited

Report of the Director
for the Year Ended 31 March 2022

The director presents his report with the financial statements of the company for the year ended 31 March 2022,
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

RateGain's software solutions allow hospitality businesses to engage with travellers and help revenue, distribution and
marketing departments to drive revenue by providing accurate, real-time and meaningful insights.

DIVIDENDS
No dividends will be distibuted for the year ended 31 March 2022,

DIRECTORS
B Chopra has held office during the whole of the period fron: 1 April 2021 te the date of this report.

Other changes in directers holding office arc as follows:

N Wadlera - resigned 8 December 2021
Aditi Gupta - appointed 26 Tuly 2621

STATEMENT AS TG DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION T0 AUDITORS

S far as the director are aware, there is no relevant audit information (as defined by Section 418 of the Companies Act
2006) of which the company's auditors are unaware, and they have taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a
director in order to make himself aware of any rclevant audit information snd to establish that the company's auditors are
aware of that information,

ATUDITORS . .
The auditors, PRG Associates Limited, will be proposed for te-appointment at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting,

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD:

v

B Chopri = Directot

1 August 2022
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RateGain Technologies Limited

Statement of Director's Responsibilities
for the Year Ended 31 Maveh 2022

The direciors are tesponsible for preparing the Strategic Report, the Repoit of the Director and the financial staternents in
aceordance with applicable law and regulations,

Company law requires the director to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the director has
elected to prepare the financial statements in accardance with United Kingdont Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
{United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law). Under company law the director must not approve the
financial statements unless he is satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the
profit o loss of the company for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the davector is required ta:

- select suitable accounting pelicies and then apply them consistently,

- make judgements and aecounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

- prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inapprepriate to presume that the company will
continne in business,

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the company's
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company and enable him to
ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. He is also responsible for safeguarding the assets
of the company and hence for laking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irreguiarities.
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Report of the Independent Auditors to ihe dembers of

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of RateGain Technologies Limited (the 'Company’) for the year ended
31 March 2022 which comprise the Incowme Statement, Other Comprehensive {ncome, Balance Sheet, Statement of Changes
in Bquity and Notes to the Financial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial
reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounling
Standards, incfuding Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and
Republic of Ireland' (United Kingdom Generalty Acecpted Accounting Practice).

in our opinion the financial statements:

- give a true and fair view of the state of the company's affairs as at 31 Macch 2022 and of its profit for the year then
ended;

- have been prapetly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and

- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for apinion

We conducted our andit in accordance with Iternational Standards on Auditing {UK) {ISAs (UK)}) and applicable law. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report.  We are independent of the company in aceordance with the cthical requirements that are
relevant to our andit of the financial staternents in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate fo previde a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In suditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the director's use of the going concern basis of accounting in
the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events ar conditions
that, individuatly ot coflectively, may cast significant doubt on the company's ability to continue as a going concern for a
period of at jeast twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the director with respect to going concern are described in the relevant
sections of this repott.

Other information

The director is responsible for the other information. The other nformation comprises the informmation in the Strategic
Report, the Report of the Director and the Statement of Director’s Responsibilities, but does not include the financial
statements and our Report of the Auditors thereon.

Our opinion an the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except t the extent otherwise explicitly
stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

in connection with our audit of fhe financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whetler the other information is materially inconsistent with the financiai statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to delermine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements
themselves. 1f, based on the work we have performed, we concfude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. 'We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Report of the Independent Auditors to the Members of

Opinions on other matters preseribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

- the information given in the Strategic Report and the Report of the Director for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements, and

- the Strategic Repart and the Report of the Director have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements,

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environmenl obtained in the course of the audit, we
have not identified material misstatements in the Strategic Report or the Report of the Director.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if,

in our opinion;

- adequate accounling records have not been kept, or retums adequate for our audit have nat been received from branches
not visited by us; or

- the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and retums; or

. cartain disclosures of director's remuneration specified by law arc not made; or

- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

- Responsibilities of director

As explained mare fully in the Statement of Director's Responsibilitics set out on page four, the divector is responsible for
the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give & true and fair view, and for such internal
control as the director determines necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from inaterial
misstatement, whether due ta fraud or error,

.+ In preparing the financia! statements, the director i8 responsible for assessing the company's ability to continue as a going

concern, disclosing, as applicable, maiters related to going concern and using the geing concern basis of accounting unless
the director either intends to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or has no realistic altemative but to do so.

Auditers' responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue a Report of the Auditors that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not & guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance witl [SAs (UK) will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can atise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to infizence the economic decisions of users

* taken on the hasis of these financial statements,

Iregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations, We design procedures in line
with our responsibilities, owtlined above, o detect material misstatements in respect of irregilarities, including fraud. The
extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting itregularitics, including fraud is detailed below:

The risk of not detecting a material misstaternent due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional misreprasentations, or thzough
collusion. The extent fo which our procedures are capable of detecting irrepularities, including fiaud, is detailed below.
However, the primary responsibility for the prevention and detection of fraud resis with those charged with governance of
the Company. Qur approach was as follows: :
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Report of the Independent Audilors to the Members of

We obtained a general understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to the Company and
determined that the most significant are direct laws and regulations thase have effect on the determination of material
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The faws and regufations we considered in this context were the
Companies Act 2006 and taxation legislation, We obtained a general understanding of ow the Company is complying with
those frameworks by making enquiries of management and those responsible for legal and compliance matters of the
Coampatry.

For both direct and ather laws and reguiations, our procedures involved: making enquiry of the directors of the Company
for their awareness of any noncompliance of laws or regulations, inguiting about the policies that have been establighed to
prevent non-compliance with laws and regulations by officers and ewployees.

Our andit procedures included:

« exantining the supporting documents for all material balances, transactions and disclosures

+ enquiry of management and review and inspection of relevant correspondence

» evaluation of the selection and application of aceounting policies

« analytical procedures to identify any unusual or uaexpected relationship

« review of accounting estimates for biases

A further desctiption of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting
Couneil's website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibitities. This description forms part of our Report of the Auditars,

Use of our repert .

This report is made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies
Act 2006, Our andit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's mernbers those maiters we are
required to state to them in a Report of the Auaditors and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do
not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company's members as a body, for our audit
wark, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

(k==

Devender Arora ACA (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of PRG Associates Limited
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
65 Delamere Road

Hayes, Middlesex

UB4 ONN

1#* Angust 2022
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RateGain Technologies Limited

income Statement
for the Year Bnded 33 March 2022

31.3.22 31.3.21
Notes £ 3

TURNOVER 3 12,256,816 11,811,797
Cost of Sales 6,775,899 6,185,536
GROSS (LOSSYPROFIT 5,480,917 5,726,261
Administrative expenses 4,931,274 5,151,184

549,643 575,077
Other opsrating income 3 18,367 142,017
OPLERATING PROFIT 568,010 717,094
Interest payable and similar expenses 6 - 322,257 24,259
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 45,753 622,835
Tax on profit 7 9,565 86,695
PROFIT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 36,188 536,140
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RateGain Technolegics Limited

Other Comprehensive Income
for the Year Ended 31 March 2022

Notes

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR
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RateGain Technologies Limited {Registered number: 09343667)

Balance Sheet
31 March 2022

FIXED ASSETS
Intangible assets
Tangible assets
Investments

CURRENT ASSETS
Debtors
Cash in hand

CREDITORS

Amounts falling dee within one year
NET CURRENT (LIABILITTESYASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT

LIABILITIES

CREDITORS

Amounts fatling due after more than one year

NET ASSETS

CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Called up share capital
Share preminm
Retained carnings

SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS

Notes

[=]

11

i3

14
15
15

31.3.22
£ £

25,034
4,695
26,642,208

/e Al iaksior

26,671,937

6,594,042

361,877

6,955,920

10,509,440

(3,953,520)

22,718,417

(519,905)

22,158,512

135
18,632,610

3,505,767

22,188,512

31321
£ £

39,051

5,696

18,774,145

13,818,892
4,547,367
3,319,835
7,867,202
7,305,042

__ 562,160

19,381,052

(8,044,479)

11,336,579

130

7,806,870

3,529,579

11,336,579

The financial statements were approved by the directer and authorised for issue on | August 2022 and were signed by:

v

B Chopra - Director
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RateGain Technologies Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity
for the Year Ended 31 Maych 2022

Called up
share Retained Share Total
capital earnings premimm squity
£ £ £ £

Balance at 1 April 2020 130 2,993,439 7,806,270 10,800,439
Changes in eqaity
Issue of share capital - - - -
Total comprehensive fncome - 536,146 - 536,140
Balance at 31 March 2021 110 3,528,579 7,806,870 11,336,579
Changes in equity
Issue of share capital 5 - 10,825,740 10,825,745
Total comprehensive income - 36,188 - 36,188
Balance at 31 Mazrch 2022 135 3,565,167 18,432,610 22,198,512
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RateGain Technologies Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

for the Year Ended 31 March 2022

1..

STATUTORY INFORMATION

RateGain Technologics Limited ("the company") is a private commany limited by shares domicited and incorporated
in England and Wales. The company changed its repistered office from Devonshire House, 60 Goswell Road,
London, EC1M 7AD to Tms Holly House 77 Holyhead Road Birmingham B21 OLG on 13 May 2022, On 27 May
2022 the company changed its registered address to 6th Floor 9 Appold Street London EC2A 2AP.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Accounting convention

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 162 "The Pinancial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland” and the Companies Act 2006. The ‘finanecial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost conventioz. .

These finavcial statements have been prepared in accordance with FRS 102 "The Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland" ("FRS 102") and the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, The
financial statements are prepared in stecling, which is the functional currency of the company. Monetary amounts in
these financial statements are rounded to the nearest pound.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention. The principal accounting policies
adopted are set out below,

Cash flow exemnption
The company, being member of the group wherein the parent company prepares consalidated fnancial statements
which are publicly available, is exempt from the requirement 1o draw up a cash flow statement in accordance with

Financial Reporting Standard 102,

Related party exemption

The company has tzken advantage of exemption, under the terms of Financial Reporting Standard 102 "The
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland', not to disclose related party
transactions with wholly owned subsidiaries within the group.

Going concern

At the time of approving the financial statements, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the company has
adequate resource to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable fature, thus director continue to adopt the
going concern basis of accounting in preparing of financial statements.

Group accounts

The Company's financizl statements present information about it as an individual undertdking and not about its
group hecause the Campany is 100% owned by RateGain Travel Technalopies Limited. The Company's and group’s
financia] statement will be consolidated by RateGain Travel Technologies limited, parent company, registered in
India. The Company has taken the exemption from preparing group accounts uader Companies Act 2006.
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RateGain Techuologics Limited

Notes to the Finageial Statements - continued

for the Year Ended 31 March 2022

2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, the directors are required fo make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the canying amount of assets and Habilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant, Actual results may differ from these estirates.

The estimates and underlying assumpticns are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the cstimate is revised where the revision affects only that peried, or in the period
of the revision and future periods where the revision affects both current and future periods,

Critical judgements .
The foltowing judgements (apart from those involving estimates) have bad the most significant effect on amounts
recognised in the financial statements,

impairment of intangible assets:

The directors have performed an impairment review of i#s intangible assets using an income approach utilising the
discounted cash flow technigue and based on assumptions provided by independent valaers. This requires forecasts
of items such as revenue, operating costs, and capital spending requirements. A cost approach, that estimates the
replacement cost, and a relief-from-royalty method, whick quantifies the cost savings associated with not having to
pay @ third party to licence comparable technology, has been utilised for its computer software intangible,

Key sources of estimation uncer{zinty
The estimates and assumptions which have a significant risk of causing 2 material adjustment to the carrying
amount of assets andt Habilities are as follows.

Bad debt provision
The divectors have provided for specific old debts nat deemed recoverable. The amcunt consists of any amounts

" older than 365 days, and any other debis Jess than 365 days ald that are not expected to be recovered,

Trnover
Turnover is measured at the fair value of fhe consideration received or receivable, excluding discounts, rebates,
value added tax and ather sales taxes.

Turnover is representing the fair vahue of the consideration received or receivable fof revenue management software
services provided in the nosmal course of business, and is shown net of VAT and other sales related taxes. Turnover
is recognised on a straight-line basis over the period of services are fo be provided. The fair value of consideration
takes into account frade discounts, settlement discounts and volume rebates.

Cash and Cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent include eash in hand, deposit held at call with bank, other short term liguid investments
with original maturities of three months or less and bank overdraft are shown within borrewing in current liabilities.
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RateGain Technologies Lirgited

Notes to the Financial Statements - continaed
for the Year Ended 31 March 2022

2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Intangible fixed assets other than geodwill

intangible assets acquired separately from a business are recognised at cost and are subsequently measured at cost
less acenmulated amortisation and aceumultated impainnent fosses. Amaortisation is recognised 50 as to write off the
cost or valuation of assets less their restdual values over their useful lives on the following bases:

Software 3 - 5 years straight line

Tangible fixed assels

Tangible fixed asscts are initially measured at cost and subscquently measured at cost er valuation, net of
depreciation and any impairment Josses. Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets
less their residual values over their useful lives on the following hases:

Computers and Peripheral 4 years straight line

The gain or loss arising on the disposal of an asset is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and the
carying value of the asset, and is recognised in the profit and loss account,

Fixed asset investments

Equity investments are measured at fair value through profit or loss, except for those equity investments that are
not publicly traded and whose fair value catmot otherwise be measured reliably, which are recognised at cost less
impairment unti} a refiable measure of fair value becomes avaitable.

Impairment of fixed assets

At each reporting period end date, the company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss, Tf any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment toss (if
any), Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the company estimates the
recoverable nzuount of the cash-generating unit to which e asset belongs.

The catrying amount of the investments accounted for using the equity method is tested for impairment as 2 single
asset, Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to self and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time valuc of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of fuhme
casl: flows have not been adjusted.

If the recaverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset {or cash-gencrating unit) is reduced to its recaverable amount, An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the refevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
tmpairment loss is treated as a revaluation decreasc.

Recognised impairment Josses ave reversed if, and only if, the reasons for the impaivment loss have ceased to apply.
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but $o that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount fhat would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
{or cash-generating unit) in prior years, A reversal of an mpairment loss is recognised immediatety in profit or loss,
unless the relevant asset is carried ai a revalued amount, in which case the veversal of the impainment loss is treated
as a revaluation increase.

Page i5 continued. ..




RateGain Technologies Limited

Motes to the Financial Statements - continued

for the Year Ended 31 Margli 2022

2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continuead

Finaneial instruments
The company has elected to apply the provisions of Section 11 'Basic Financial Instruments' and Section 12 'Other
Financial Instruments Issues' of FRS 102 to all of its financial instruments.

Financial instruments are recognised in the Company’s balance sheet when the company becomes parly to the
contractual provisions of the instrument,

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amounts presented in the financial statements when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis ot to
realise the asset and setile the lability simultaneocusly.

Basic financial assets _ . _
Basic financial assets, which include debtors and cash and bank balances, are initially measured at transaction price
including transaction costs and are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method unless
the arrangerent constitutes a financing ransaction, where the transaction 13 measured at the present value of the
future receipts discounted at a market rate of interest, Financial assets classified as receivabie within one year are
ot amortised,

TImpairment of finuncial assets
Financial assets, other than those hetd at fair value through profit and loss, are assessed for indicators of impainment

at gach reporting end date.

Financial assets are impaired where there is objective cvidence that, as a resuli of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows have been affected. It an asset is
impaired, the impairment foss Is the difference between the carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
cash flows disconnted at the asset's origina! effective interest rate. The impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

If there is a decrease in the impairment loss arising from an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the jmpairment is reversed. The reversal is such that the current carrying amotnt does not exceed what the carrying
amouni would have been, had the impairment not previously been recogmised. The impairment reversal is
recognised in profit or Joss,

Derecognition of financial assets

Financial assets are derecognised only when the contractnat rights to the cash flows from the assct explire of ate
settled, or wheén the campany fransfers the financial asset and substantially 2ll the risks and rewards of awnership to
another entity, or if some significant risks and rewards of ownership ave retained but control of the asset has
transferred to another party that is able to seit the asset in its entirety to an unelated third party.

Classification of financial liabilities

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contrachual arangements
entered into, An equity instrument i3 any coniract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company
after deducting all of its liabilities.

Dasic financial liabilities, including creditots, bank loans, loans from fellow group companies and preference shares
that are classified as debt, are Initially recognised at transaction price unless the arrangement constitutes 2 financing
transaction, where the debt instrument js measured at the present value of the future payments discounted at a
market rate of interest. Financial Jiabilities classified as payable within one year are not amortised.

Debt instruments are subsequently canled at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method.

Page 16 continoed...

3
i
I




RateGain Technologies Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued

for the Year Baded 31 March 2022

2,

ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Trade creditars are obligations 10 pay for goods or services thal have been acquired in the crdinary course of
business from suppliers. Amounts payable ave classified as cwrent Habilities if payment is due within one year or
less. If not, they are presented as non-current fiabilities. Trade creditors ate recognised initially at iransaction price
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
Financial lisbilities are derccognised when the Company's contraciual obligations expire or are discharged or
cancelled.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
Dividends payable on equity instruments ave recognised as liabilities once they are no longer at the digeretion of the
Company.

Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in
the profit and loss account because it excludes items of income or expense that ave taxable or deductible in other
years and it further excludes items that are never taxable ar deductible. The Company’s liability for current tax is
caloulated using tax cates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting end date.

Deferved tax

Deferred tax liahilities are generally recognised for alf timing differences and deferred tax assets are recogrised o
the extent tixat it is probable that they will be recovered against the reversal of deferred tax liabilities o other future
taxable profits, Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the timing difference arises from goodwill or from
the injtial recognifion of other assets and liabilitics in a transaction that affects neither the tax profit nor the
accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at ¢ach reporting end date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset ta be recovered.
Deferred tax is caleulated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the
asset is realised. Deferred tx i3 charged or credited in the profit and loss account, except when it relates to items
charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with i equity. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are offsat if, and only if, there {s a legally enforceable right to offset cunrent tax assets and liabilities
and the deferred tax assets and Habilities relate to taxes levied by the same tax authority.

Foreign exchange

Transactions in curcencies other than pounds sterling are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. At each reporting end date, monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreipn
currencies ave retransiaied at the rates prevailing on the reporting end date. Gains and losses arising on translation
are included in the profit and Joss account for the period.

Ewmplayee benefits

The cost of shart-term employce hencfits is recognised as a liability and a expense, unless those cost are required to
be recagnised as a part of the cost of stock or fixed assets.

The casis of any unused holiday entitlements are recognised in the periad in which the employee's service are
received.

Termination benefits are recognised immediately as an expense when the Company is demonstrably committed to
{erminate the employment of an emplayee or the provide termination benefits.

Retivement benefits
Payments to defined contribulion retirement benefit schemes are charged as an expense as they fall dne /72

Page 17 .




RateGain Technologies Limiled

Notes to the Financial Stalgments - continued
for the Year Ended 31 March 2022

3. TURNOVER

Turrover analysed by class of business

Software secrvices

Other revenue

Miscellangzous Income
R&D tax credit

Tumover analysed by geographical market
United States of America

Burope

Rest of the world

P.age 18

2022 2021
£ £
12,256,814 11,511,797
2022 2021
£ £
18,367 -
- 142,017
2022 2021
£ £
7,659,021 7,443 426
4.007,682 3,854,286
590713 574085
_ 12256816 11911797

continued...




RateGain Technologies Limited

Notes to the Finencial Statements - continued
for the Year Ended 31 March 2022

4, EMPLOYEES AND DIRECTORS

2022 2021
Number Nunther
Sales and suppert staff 8 3
Their aggregate remuneration comptised:
‘Wages and salaries 5,895,035 9,34,647
Social security costs _ 71770 76,084
Pension costs 16,794 13,324
6.89,598 10,20,055
There is no remuseration paid to directors during the current year. (2021: NIL})
3. OQPERATING (LOSSPROFIT
The operating profit is stated after charging:
313.22 31.321
£ £
Auditors' rermuneration™® 5,060 37,000
Hosting, Proxy and Data charge 2,511,318 2,046,256
IT & Telecom charges 189,182 165,202
Provision for doubtful debts . 799,408 686,607
Toreign exchange differences, net (431.628) 311,554
*Anditors’ remuneration includes:
Audit of financial statements of the company# 3,000 20,600
" Audit of financial statements of the subsidiary - T 17,000

HFee far Audit of financial statements of the company of previous year includes audit fees of individual and
consolidated accounts whereas current year fee includes audit of individual accounts.

6. INTEREST PAYABLE AND SIMILAR EXPENSES

31.322 31321
£ £
Bank loan inicrest 502,930 -
Interest on [ntercompany loan 19,318 24 159
522,257 94,259

Page 19 continued...



RateGain Technolopies Limited

Motes to the Financial Statements - cogtinued
for the Year Ended 31 March 2622

7. TAXATION
Total tax charged for the year 9,565 86,695

The actual charge for the year can be reconciled to the expectad charge based on the prafit and the standard tax rate

as follows:
2022 2028
£ £
Profit before taxation 45,753 622,833
Expecied tax credit based on the standard rate of corporation: tax in the UK of 8,603 © 118,342
19.00% {2021: 19.00%)
Tax effect of expenses that ave not deductible in deternining taxable profit 3,186 3,310
Double tax reliel {1,604 (22,712)
Permanent capita) allowances in excess of depreciation (709) {655)
Others - {11,599}
2,565 86,623

Page 20 continned...




RateGain Technologies Limited

Nates to the Financia] Statements - contigued
for the Year Ended 31 March 2022

&, INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Competer
software
£
COST
At 1 April 2021 56,073
Additions -
At 31 March 2022 56,073
AMORTISATION
At April 2021 {7,022
Amortisation for year 14,017
At 31 March 2022 31,039
NET BOOK VALUE :
At 31 Mareh 2022 25,034
Af 31 March 2021 39,051
9. TANGIBLYE FIXED ASSETS
Computer
equipment
£
COST
At April 2021 23,530
Additians 2,530
Reclassification/iransfer {1,763}
At 31 March 2022 . 24,297
DEPRECIATION
At 1 April 2021 17,834
Charpe for year 2,152
Reclassification/tranafer {984)
At 3] March 2022 19,602
NET BOOX VALUE
At 31 March 2022 4,695
At 31 March 2621 5,696
Page 21 continued...




RateGain Technologies Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements - continved |

for the Year Ended 31 March 2022

[0

FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS

COST

At 1 April 2021

Additions:

Investment in RaieGain Ine.
Investment in Myhotelshop Gmbli*

AL 3t March 2022

NET BOOX VALUL
At 31 March 2022

At 31 March 2021

£
18,774,145

837,357

7,030,706

26,642,208

26,642,208

18,774,145

R BALSEF oS

*During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company has entered into an agreement dated [0 September 2021, to acquire
Myhotelshop GmbH

Details of the company’s Subsidiaries are as follows

Wame of undertaking Registered Office | Class of shares Capital and Profis (loss) for the % Held
held Reserves £ year £
Direct Indirect
RateGain Technologies United States Ordinary 8,145,770 2,697,642 1 1060 -
Inc
RateGain Technologies Spain Ordinary 194,092 28,344 | 100 -
Spain
BCV Social LLC United States Ordinary 3,600,064 (2,544.857) | - 100
MyHotelshop Gmbh Germany Ordinary 1,502,876 223,137 1 100 -
MyHotelshop Spain Spain - | Ordinary 29,150 4,336 | - 160
1L DEBTORS
31.322 31321
£ £
Amounts falling due within one year:
Trade debtors 3,563,516 3,172,896
Amount recoverable from related party 2,793,962 991,384
Corporation Tax Recoverable 47,460 45,856
Other Debtors 10,147 192,047
Prepaid expenses 171,467 145,184
6,586,546 4,547,367
Amounts falling due after more than one year:
Prepaid expenses 1,547 -
Other nog-current assets 5,950 -
7497 -
6,594,043 4,547,367

Apgregate amounts

continued...
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RateGain Techunologies Limited

Notes to the Fingneial Statements - continued

for the Year Bnded 31 March 2022

12,

13.

14.

15,

CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

31.3.22 31321
£ £
Trade creditors 355,252 463,663
Contingent consideration 720,975 -
Deferred consideration 450,610 -
Accruals and Deferred [ncome 2,259,983 2,404,100
Payable to related parties 6,939,448 3,868,341
Sacial Security and other faxes 22,082 38,185
Corporation Tax Payable 57,847 29,002
Loans from Bank - 434 220
Other creditors 63,534 6,931
Advances from customers 319,702 -
10,209,440 7,305,042
CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE
YEAR '
31322 31321
£ £
Loans from Bank - 8,044,473
Contingent ¢onsideralion 519905 -
519,905 8,044,473
CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL
Allotted, issued and fully paid:
Number: . Class: Notninai 313.22 31321
value: £ £
135 Ordinary share capital £1 W) 130
(The company has issued share capital of £ 5 at a premtum of 10,825,740, during the year)
RESERVES
Retained Shae
earnings premium Totals
£ £ £
At 1 April 2021 3,529279 7,806,870 11,336,149
Profit for the vear 16,188 36,188
Securities Premium - 10,825,744 10,825,740
Ar 31 March 2022 3,565,767 18,632,610 22,198,477
Page 23 cantinued...




RateGain Technologies Lunited

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued
for the Year Ended 31 March 2022

i6. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

The company has taken advantage of an exemption availabie under FRS102 not to disclose transactions with group
undertakings.

17. CONTROLLING PARTY

The immediate parent company is RateGain Travel Technologies Private Limited, & company registered in India,
Their consolidated financial statements can be obtained from the Ministry of Corporate Affairs in India.

The ultimate controlling party is B Chopra, by virtue of his controlling stake in the parent company.

18. PREVIOUS YEAR FIGURES

Previous year figures have been reprouped and rearranged to make thern comparable with the current year fipures.
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RateGain Technologies Limited

Detailed Profit and [oss Accouit
for the Year Ended 31 March 2022

313.22 31321
£ £ £ £

Sales 12,256,316 11,911,797
Cost of Sales 6,775,899 6,185,536
Othey income
Sundry receipts 18,367 142,017

5,499,284 5,868,278
Expenditure
Hosting, Proxy and Data charge 2,511,318 2,046,256
IT & Telecom 189,182 165,202
Provision for doubtful debts 799,498 686,607 . i
Rate parity 179,747 149,759
Sales & markethg expenses 114,978 54,823 |
Sundry expenses : 34,139 98,333
Audit fees 5,000 37,000 |
Membeiship and Subscription 181,835 166,572 |
Sataries and Wages 639,598 1,026,055 |
Balance written off 15,840 §.267 |
Pacilities - 19,204 |
Legal and Professional fees 456,626 368,056
Foreign exchange osses (431,628) 311,554 ;
Amaortisation of intangible fixed assets 14,047 14,018 |
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 2,752 3,405 |
Bad debts 114,372 9,073 |

4,931,274 5,151,184 |

568,010 717,094
Finance costs |
Bank loan interest 502,939 -
Interest on Intercompany loan, 19318 g4 259
522,257 . 94,255

NET PROFIT 45,753 622,835

Page 25



B1.1

NIE: B66662511

SOCIAL DENOMINATION:

RATEGAIN TECHNOLOGIES SPAIN,
SLU

UNIT 1):

Euros: 08001

08002

Thouszndar

Millions: 09003

ACTIVE

2021

THE EXERCISE ME 2000 (g

A) NON-CURAENT ASSETS. . ....vvvveenns A R
L Intangible asSelS. . s veveseinnnsnsrsirsisansienasranss 11100
T DRRIBPIBIL e vy G b s

08 e Ty LT T - PGP S e e i

3. Patents, licenses, trademarks and the like

4. Goodwill

5. Computer applications. ... .. .ov e iinisrieieinn

6. Research

7. Intellectual property. ......ooivau ... 11180

8. Other intanglble assets.

. Inmobllized material . . ... covvvviiinririn i ivaanraas

1. Land and buildings. . ... .o iev i

2. Technical installations and ather tangible fixed assels. . ... ...... ki

2, CanstreiiOnS, v i v e iva e i bl e by ave e

V. Long-term investmenls in group companies and assoclates. . .

1. Equity instruments. . ...

2, Loans to companies. ... .. A e e e T

3.Debtsecurities. . ..vvvv v iininininriannanes 1430

4. Derivatives. . ......

6. Other INVESTMBNLS. i« cowvvvanasve snive v i iss s s s smss oo

V. Long-term financial investments.

1. Equity Instrumenls

2. Credils to third parties. . ............ N A wawrpwnasaniees1 1520

3, Debl securities, .. coovuinennna, e 11080

4, DerivaliVes. . o vessinsevsranassasianisssisiananis vene. 11540

5, Other financial assets...... S e A e e RO,

B OIer WesIMemS: v o vaamam s vism s s wss §aa R

SAW, Deferred tax assels, . .. ...

VIl Non-current commercial debts, . .

34,632.56 20,644.05

11000

11110

19,632.56 20,644.34

18,632.56 20,644.34

11400

15,000.00 -0.29

11500

15,000.00 -0.29

11600

11700

{1) Check the carrasp g box dep q
{2) Year to which the annual accounis refer,
{3) Previcus year.

on yau exp

the figures n units, thausands or milliona aof euros, All the documents that make up the annual accounts mus! be prapared in the s3

me unil




NORMAL BALANCE SHEET

| |

NIF: | BEGE625TT I

SOCIAL DENOMINATION:

RATEGAIN TECHNOLOGIES SPAIN,
SLU

ACTIVE

NOTESOF
THE EXERCIS

= MEMORY

2021

B)CURRENT ASSETS. ... ..cociinieiiaranintnanasssrnnrsins 12000

30683434 | 17397388

20?,“ 2)

|. Non-current assets held forsale. . .............

12100

T BRI ¢ e B A 12200

1 Commersials, .o i e s s s e S bt b i e 12210

2, Raw materials and other supplies........oovuiuiiinvian 12220

a) Raw materials and other long-term supplies. .........

12221

b) Raw materials and ather short-term supplies..........

12222

3. Products In progress. ; ceweviivisesisessininas s isasiianse b 12230

a) Long productioncyele, .. covvvrassssssrsnssrssvnrssrsas

12231

b) Short production cycle. s v vavevias mereserrrsesseaaeaane,

12232

4. Finlshed products, .. .covsevrsviisesinsnmiiossssisisnans 12240

a) Long productioncycle, .. ......o0vvimeerrnrnnrnnaneans

12244

b) Short production gyl . s casewuns Prrrssssrssressasensan

12242

5. By-producls, residues and recovered materials. . .............. 12250

6. Advancestosuppliers. ...ooieeieiieiniininiiiiaaiiinarns 12260

1Il. Commercial debls and others bills to receive the pay . ....onosreees

12300

183,403,650

79,462.65 |

1. Customers for sales and provision of services. . ................ 12310
a) Long-term custometrs for sales and provision of services........
b) Gustomers for shorl-term sales and provision of services. .......

2, Clients of group companies and assoclates, . . ...cvvvevniinvennnn. 123!

174,386.78

6683059 |

12311

12312

T74,386.78

20

3.5undry deBlorS. . . cosnesssesnsivinsirastssessesesssaernens 12320

9,074.82

1263196

B CUrrent 1ax as8els. oo inresibranssssisansnrpanans 12350

6. Other credits with the Public Administrations. ................ 12360

7. Sharehaolders (partners) for required disbursements. ........oovvvvrnns
IV. Short-term investments in group companies and assoclates. ..

1. Equity Instruments. .. cooovvviiniaiiiiisiessssnasnans 12410

2, Loans to companies. ...... A A A A M O S 12420
3.Debtsecurities. .. .. oo iiiiii i i i 12430

A DIBIVERIVOS, o v awiins o aionvss s w4 e T W e S 12440

5, Othar financial 888618, . . .. ciaviivnissssrsansivasnnsnrasen 12450

B, Other Investments. .. ...civirarivrainsvasnnsiiessasensns s 12460

12370

12400

¥6,6365:40

g92,43389

88,636.40

82,433.60

{1) Year to which the annual accounts refer,
{2) Previous year,




NORMAL BALANCE SHEET B1.3

NIE: BE6662511

SOCIAL DENOMINATION:

RATEGAIN TECHNOLOGIES SPAIN,
sLU

Space destined for the signal of the administrators

NOTES OF
ACTIVE THE EXERCISE MEMORY 2021 i 2020

V. Shart-term financial investments. . .. ....coivirnrrarnnsss 12500

1. Equity instruments. ... oot 12510

2 Loansto companias. . i oavesssinnroranvessvnsssnans Paareans 12520

3.DebtgeciIES. . o ey v s mne s gy s 12530

A DerivatiVves. . c cosvsvnriisinsrstssnsrsssssrnssssnssssnssanns 12540

5. Other financisl asSelS. . s vvevsassrsncasisrssssissrosonsin. 12550

6. Other Investments. . ..... cocviiinirrrraissnsnnaranssnnns 12560

SAW. Short-term accruals. . oo vvevvvnvsisinansinasaasss 12600

VII. Cash and other equivalent liquid assets ... ......... ««e.- 12700 34,794.34 12,077.34

A TreaBup:, e e e naiEw i b e v VR e 12710 34,794.34 12,077.34

2. Other equivalent liquid assefs. . .. ...covvvnrenrerronronss 12720

TOTAL ASSETS (A +B) e+« et eeevreenee e eneseseeeaeneneens 10004 341,466.90 194,617.93

{1) Year ta which the annual accounts refer.
{2) Previous year.




NORMAL BALANCE SHEET

B2.1

NIF: B66662511

SOCIAL DENOMINATION:

RATEGAIN TECHNOLOGIES SPAIN,

o~

@ (Barcelona |2 |

21\

SLU '
Space deslined for the signatures af the a
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES THE EXERCISE MEMORY 2021 T

A NETAORTH iyl s e e A e aRis iAol 20000 il 138,524.79
AAVOWNIINGS, ooy isips  eesesssdsdasieiees 21000 i s
- 21100 sS40 _ 3’_0_(_]07_00
1o reptatered CapIN i we s e s B A SR 2011 0000 4,000.00
wo (Capital NOtrequIred). . ... o..uiiiieiiiaia el 21120
ILISSUB PramiUum, .. covveirevianaianasnnans  asessiseseises 21200
RIS -y e s s Ay 21300 4,175.54 4,175.54
A Eogal aredl s a v s 5 b e R 21310 9080 600,40
2. OHEr rBSEIVES. cccovnniaanurarsrssvrssmnsns  sessvivassires 21320 3,575.54 3,575.54
3. Revaluallon reserve. . ... ..c.cvvveenns T 21330
4, CapHalizalion MESEIVE: « v sasvseeesssnensranisrsssinssan 21350
IV. {Shares and shares Inownequity) ........... 21400
V. Earnings from previous Years. .... i veiueeniansiaess 21500 154:980.23 Hi1ARSET
LREENE G s e e o b e R %1510 131,349.25 111,442.27
Wi (Negative results from previous exercises) — rer rereseeeeeeee 21520
SAW. Other contributions from business parners . ... ..coveevriveeraieaannans 21600 BaRasan
Vil Result of the BXCESICE . ..\ ooeveevsiiearionssronrrinsrinns 21700 i 19,80680
VIl (Dividend 0n 8CEAUNLY. ., ey rvsreescaneeines i iennaies 21800
|%. Other equily instruments. ... cocveviivineniinn. 21900
A-2) Adjustments far changes in value. ., sovrrererariianiiiiiaia, 22000
I. Financial assels al fair value with changes in

NELWOMR. c v v vees Fenes  eesissaaiessseersasiabeeesies 22100
BRI vvv0 v amsn s m s s ey by 23200
Ll ol el AT, S S
IV, Conversion ditference. coo i visiienesisnsisessivssies 22400
W OB o s ilein v ainialive whslvmns il eate i 0 p b i s aiiadiaiat 500
A-3) Subsidies, donations and legacies received. . ............. 23000
B) NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES. . 4t vusv i vansinassnosnivnssionans 31000
| Long-1erm ProvISIONS. ., . v reereeueiraseiararnrasis 31100
1. oObligations for long-lerm employee benefits ~ ceeeeeieenn 30111
2. Environmental acHons. . vseviisrassenaiiesairansass 31120
3. Pravisions for resteucturing. . . ..o ovvereiomneraenoniion 31130
A BB PrOVISIORE: + 1.0 00080 binisi Cany s abein o saeiamsais v 31140
1 LongAerm BB« i s amnamen vasmemmy s s 41200
1. Obligations and other negotiable securitles, . ............cooeens 31210

(1) Year to which the annual accounts refer.
{2} Previaus year.




NORMAL BALANCE SHEET B2.2

NIE: B66662511

SOCIAL DENOMIMATION:

RATEGAIN TECHNOLOGIES SPAIN,
SLuU

Space destined lor the signatures ol the administrators

NOTES OF S
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES THE EXERCISE MEMoRY 2021 2 @

2. Debts with creditinstitutions. . .o coveviiiinivninernerenas 31220

3. Creditors for finance [eases. .. oo vvviv v e e 31230

4, Derlvatives, . ...vvvuvn.s ST F R R e Ny i s 31240

5, Other financial liabilities. . .. cvviaviaisvrsvivisiasissnnrsnns 31250

IIl. Debts with group companies and long-term associates. . .. . 31300

IV, Deferred tax liabilities . .........cco0 ereeiiiieieeeen 31400

V.Longtermaccruals, . v vveeevinnnnnionae mrmsmeas 31500

SAW. Non-current commercial creditors. .. ..o vvvvvninasernns 31600

VII. Long-term debt with special characteristics. ........... 31700

Ly 6,093,
E) CURRENT LIABILITIES, . - oo vd wiimnnidinwn s s s smmmmimemainpesss 32000 Mgl ROiG-14

l. Liabilﬂlies related to non-current assels held for
sale

Il. Short-term PrOVISIONS .. ve e v s s s v ess svs aresin 32200

1. Provisions for greenhouse gas emission rights. 32210

2. Other provisionS. . . cosessrsarsrrnsrsrsrsssssrresssrasnnsns 32220

. Shorttermdebts . .......... =crerecesrssaanaaiaiiinns 32300

1. Obligations and other negotiable securities........ovvvveiniaannn 3231

2, Debts with creditinstitutions. .. ..o vevvvvnsrneissininanas 32320

3. Creditors for finance leases. ... .ccocvinnnnarrnnes 32330

4. Derivatives. .. . convvmisvunessvnraens - Lol N TS 47 S— 32340

5. Other financial liabilities. . .....cccii i iriareirarsnionanss 32350

IV, Short-term debts with group companies and associates, , . ., 32400

112,577.4 56,093.14
V. Trade creditors and other accounts payable. ........ o 32500 .

1. PIOVIBTIS, . oo iivsns mspmnmnrs y s oa st s ses wos s pwernsnses 32510

a) Long-term suppliers. .. ... i S 32511

b) Short-term SuUppliers, ... v veveerinirereenannsenss  trrees 32612

2. Suppliers, group companies and associates. ..........o.000es 32520

2. Varlous croditorE. . . ccovnviernsnnsssisssbnnnes R .- [1] 112,577.41 13,310.92

4, Personnel (remuneration pending payment), ....ooviiiiany 32540

5. Currenttax llabllitles, . ... oo cvvvvannnrinnnrarnnsss 32550

6, Other debts with the Public AdminiStrations. . ... v.esesose..s 32560 42,782.22

7. Customer AdVanCes, . . . .o rrrvisivsiivisadass s asieese s 32570

SAW.Shorttermaccruals, . ... vevvvinnnnnnas 0 rarrraaaas 32600

VI, Short-term debt with special characteristics. . .......... 32700 . _ o 2
341,466.90 194,617.93

TOTAL NET EQUITY AND LIABILITIES (A+B+C).....0vviieannnn. 3000

{1] Year to which the annual accounts refer.
{2) Previaus year.




NORMAL PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

P1.1

NIF: T B66662511

SOCIAL DENOMINATION:

RATEGAIN TECHNOLOGIES SPAIN,

SLU
Space destined for the signatures of the administrators
] NOTES OF L 5 2020
(MUST) / CREDIT THE EXERCISE MEMORY 021 @
A) ONGOING OPERATIONS
1. Netamount of fUrnover. . ... ccoiiiiaiinaninnnes 40100 1,078,686.09 642,937.80
AYSALBS, oo ovvmiminimioo/nioinioainmiie i donn s s sonsnnenss s meos 40110
b) Provision of ServiCBS, , .. eepessrssnssesssssssesorsnsonss 40120 1,078,686.09 #a29a1.50
c) Income of a financial nature from holding companies. .. ...... 40130
B il ol et i e [P
3. Work carried out by the company for its assets. . .......... 40300
B, BUPPHBE . « v rmcmms si onws imswinins e s bk 40400
a) Consumption 0f qOOds. ... +reeeressiciaiiiiiiiiiiian, .. 40410
b) Consumption of raw materials and other consumable materials........ 4p4az0
c) Work carried out by other companies. ........coeeiiinannnns 40430
d) Impairment of merchandise, raw malerials and other supplies. 40440
5, Other operating INCOMEe. . .. vivvivrnrrarnnamennanians 40500
a) Ancillary income and other current management. .........oo0iun 40510
b) Operating subsidies included in the result for the year. 40520
6. PErSONNE| EXPENSeS. . oo vt tvessusersrnrnarsssnirarnrsarens 40600 ke s D40,41356
a) Salaries, wagesand similar. .....ooviiiivairiissnrerannnsas 40610 -778,132.62 441540
By Soclalieharges: i in g i i i e g 40620 ~167,615.50 ~126,028.07
c) Provislons. .. casasvssesssnssspersansrenserssensrsssasnss 40630
7. Other operating BXPENSES. . . . ..cvvvuversisnsssnsnnsnsrns 40700 -80,663.31 -42,213.43
a) External 8ehiions; ;o ves s v s aeiiis vl s s 40710 +80,564,31 -42,213.43
BETRARBE e - e s €)  eererasaas 49720
- el e s SRR a073q
d) Other current management @XpPenSes. «ou.u e rserensrrsrrscnsrann 40740
e) Expenses for emission of greenhouse gases. . ......c.o0ue 40750
8. Amortization of fixed assels.........oooiiiii i 40800 -4,778.78 -4,558.70
e N R v 40940
10, Excess pravigions, ... .o« s siiiania s siisvevsssss 41000
11. Impairment and results fram disposals of fixed assels. ..... 41100
a) Impairment and I0SSES. . .o vviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiaai i 4111¢
b) Results from disposalsand others. ........coooeiiviiennns 41120
e s 41130
12. Negative difference of business combinations, . .......... 41200

{1} Year to whieh the annual accounts refer.
{2) Previous year.
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NOTES OF
(MUST) / CREDIT THE EXERCISE MEMORY 2021 ) 2020 1

13.Otherresulls. .. .o ovvvvinrsnrranes  sevsssssssssnsansas 41300 ~169.99 -30,150.90
A1) OPERATING INCOME

325344 +54 657+ B Bai0e i1+ 12498 cocniven i 49100 i 25,571,421
14, FiNancial iNCOME. . . .. vvvvneeeeenenersrassrisnrsinnnas 41400
a) Participations In equity instruments. ............... 41410
a 1) In group companies and associates. .. ...vevvanan. SRR 41411
to 2) Inthird parties, .v.ovieierricioiieeiracisrasiioisrssisriarsnss 41412
b)  Of marketable securities and other financial instruments -+ -+« v« oot 41420
b 1) From group companies and associales. ... .vevsrenes T 41421
b2y Eroni third Partles: . amiiisssammdhy oo saame 41422
c¢) Allocation of grants, donations and legacies of a financial

MR en aiar e e T DN R e A R R 41430
15, FiNANCIAl @XPENSES,  ovyis s ivanreasevosns vaniiansivesns 41500
a)  For debts with group companies and associales «-«.oxvvevvieers 41510
b) For debts with third parties, . . ..oveeeveieninianaes  srrrmsrasans 41520
¢) Due to updating of provisions, .. ....eeserrrerrniienennas 41530
16, Variation of fair value in financial instruments...... 41600

Fair value with changes in profitand loss............ 41610
a) b) Transter of fair value adjustments with changes in

SO i aes i caa vaman s st bayaaings ~ | Gemeass 41620
17. Exvhange differentes. .. c.coevvisnsiiassssiiossrsanansis 41700 -2,096.00 871.43
18, lmﬁaalrment and results from disposals of instruments

AN | - e rmonmmons b8 5500 008 &ra 8 aroce oG Thee AW Mo s 41800

a) Impairments and [0SSBS. . ..o uvuviuarsinnranrnrrnrnerenanaeien, 41810
b) Results from disposals and others, .. ...vevrvreiieienininas 41820
19, Other income and expenses of a financial nature. . .. ........... 42100
a) Incorporation ta assets of financial eXpenses, .......oovu. s 42110
b) Financial income derived from creditor agreements. ... .... 42120
) Other iNCOMe and EXPENSES. . . uveueunsriarrenes  sressssnaans 42130
A.2) FINANCIAL RESULT (14 + 15+ 16 + 17 + 18 +19), .. ... .. 49200 -2,096.00 971.43
A.3) RESULT BEFORE TAXES (A1 #A2) ...\ vevven... 48300 4522600 0
20. Taxas on proflts. . o vvvvivevsrinirniniininaia, 41900 -11,803.19 -6,635.66
A.4) PEQ?HT FOR THE YEAR FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS (A3 + 4400 33,426.70 19,906.98
B) INTERRUPTED OPERATIONS
21, Prolit for the year from operations

discontinued netoflaxes. .....oveviinvannans Vessa e 42000
A.5) RESULT OF THE YEAR (Ad +21) 001 vvvvvreneeeannnns 49500 33,426.70 19,906.98

(1) Year to which the annual accounts refer.
(2) Previous year,




ITS TADO OF CHANGES IN THE NORMAL NET WORTH PN1

A) Statement of income and expense 0 d in the year
'o - B
B666625 / AN \C \
— 66662511 ‘ N
8{ celona | =
SOCIAL DENOMINATION: /
cj;\\
RATEGAIN TECHNOLOGIES \f”(gf, ~ G
SPAIN, SLU NS 2
Space destined for the signatures of the administrators
NOTES OF
THE EXERCISE MEMORY _ 2021 v A2 (o
A) ACCOUNT RESULT OF LOSSES  AND PROFITS  ..... 54100 33,426.70 19,906.98
INCOME AND EXFENSES IMPUTADOS DIRECT MIND THE HERITAGE
NET
|. Due to the valuation of financial instruments. ..  ....0000en FRT 50010
1. Financlal assets at fair value with changes in the
net WOrth ~ rrrssssssssassssssss  sussssrasaeassantnis SR 50011
2. Other INCOME/BXPENSES. vuvv i vvarnsanrrrsssnrsssrssasssasnnas 50012
1. For cash flow hedges . . .......cveeuenannnn case 50020
1ll. Grants, donations and heritagas received .......covenana. 50030
IV, For actuarial gains and losses and other adjustments.......... 50040
V. For non-current assets and related liabilities held for
T | S e S 50050
SAW. Conversion Differences, v v ieevivanans seravassssssrnsas 50060
N T AMBHEEE: o b o bemresmaihie ST e s Bl Ty B 50070
B) Total income and expenses allocated directly to equity (1 + 11+ 11 + IV
FVEVHVID ccviviaianans i sanssnsvaiaias 58200
TRANSFERS TO THE PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
VIl. For valuation of financial instruments. ............0000. 50080
1. Financial assels at fair value with changes in the
NEEWAART | samahebiEinai e e .e.. | 50081
2, Other INCOME/BXPENSES, 11\ eeseisseissssssasninsasnininrnin 50082
IX. For cash flow hedges .....oivivinnarnnnnnns vaes 50080
X. Subsldies, donations and legacies received. . ..o.ovvieiaas 50100
X1, For non-current assets and related liabilities, held for
] T P P e T T T 50110
XIl. Conversion Differences. .. .ovvvenas g1 ek ek 50120
XIL, TALBMECL, . . o mrsiic s s s v a T e sl s wrwiien : 50130
C) Total transters to the profit and loss account
[T TIPS S S { B | 1 | e T 59300
TOTAL INCOME AND EXPENSES yOoU RECOGMIZED (TO +B#C) «r-vess 59400 33,426.70 19,906.98
(1) Year to which the annual accounts refer.
(2) Previous year.
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CAPITAL
WRITTEN [(NOT REQUIRED) ISSUE PREMIUM
o1 02 03
A) BALANCE, END OF YEAR (13019... ... 511 3,000.00
I. Adjustments for changes in criteria for the year
2018 (yand earkier I, ceeersreeeniiniiniias 512
Adjustments for errors in fiscal year 2018y and
GBEIBY: o v ivmsmvpmmmnmns . AR AR 513
B) ADJUSTED BALANCE, BEEGINNING OF THE YEAR
D ACSBE - 1) A i Ao 514 3,000.00
I. Total recognized income and expenses. ........oo000 515
Il Transactions with shareholders orowners............ 518
4 Capital TErRases. « sy ooy o s s aman e s uivew v 517
2. (=) Capital reductions. . ...coovvinininieinenns 518
3. Conversion of financial liabilities into equity
(conversion of obligations, forgiveness of debts) . 519
4, (=) Distribution of dividends. .. ... ..covovuiannnns 520
5, Operations with own shares or participations
S N B R — 521
8, Increase (decrease) in equity resulting from a business
combinalion. ....cvovaivivivriines 522
7. Other operations with partners or owners. ......... 523
IIL. Other changes N equity ... cvevuvanns 524
1. Movement of the Revaluation Reserve (4) ..., 531
2. Other variations..... T 532
C) BALANCE, END OF YEAR (2)2020, . 511 S
|. Adjustments for changes in criteria in the year
2%50 (L) P R R 512
II. Adjustments for errors In the exercise 2020 (1) 513
D) ADJUSTED BALANCE, BEGINNING OF THE
YERA! i e RS i . 514 SH00
. Total recognized income and eXpenses. ............. 515
II. Transactions with shareholders or OWNEIS ... .vvvvasas 516
1, Capital INCreases. ....vvveivevainiiaseinnsnnns 517
2. (-) Capital reductions. . .. ..vieesisrnannnisnns 518
3. Conversion of financial liabilities into equity
{conversion of obligations, forgiveness of debts) . 519
4, (~) Distribution of dividends. . .....vvvirnneeeeenss 520
5. Operations with own shares or participations
L e ey T 521
G. Increase (decrease) in equity resulting from a business
comBINAHON. .ve v v vns v bsensapass 522
7. Other operations with partners or owners. ......... 523
1Il. Other changes inequity .. ...vovuens 524
1. Movement of the Revaluation Reserve(4)  ...... 541
2. Othervanations. . ..o evissnsasssssestataanana 532
E) BALANGE, END OF FISCAL YEAR 2021 (3)........ 525 000
(1) Exercise N-2.
(2] Fiscal year prior to which the annual accounts refer (N-1].
(3] Year to which the annual accounts refer (N),
(4) Revaluation Reserve of Law 16/2012, of Dy ber 27, Companies covered by lualion provist other Than Law 162012 must delall the legal standard on which they are based.
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{ACTIONS RESULTS
AND PARTICIPATIONS OF EXERCISES
BOOKINGS IN OWN EQUITY) PREVIOUS
04 05 06
A) BALANCE, END OF YEAR (13019, ... 511 A8 )
1. Adjustments tor changes incriteria for the year
2019 (1) andearlierll,  «esoressirarisriranierie, 912
Adjustments for errors in the year (13019
AN Earller. . o vvsvey  Eresresssssesassesisaras 513
I e e, N 514 4,175.54 80,70331
|. Total recognized income and expenses, ... .......... 515
\I, Transactions with shareholders or owners.... =toee-e- 516
1. Capltal Inereases. .....cvvivieninnvinrsaiansns 517
2.{-) Capital reductions. ... eerees secseseciees 518
3. Conversion af financial liabilities into equity
(conversian of abligations, forgiveness of debts) . 519
4,{-) Distribution ot dividends, .. ...,.....  srereeeees 520
5. Operations with own shares or participations
(Bt e ra v s mad s R 521
6. Increase (decrease) in equily resulting from a business
combination. . ;..o vivasranrarrans 522
7. Other cperations with partners or owners. ......... 523
IIl. Other changes inequity . .....oevvev.. 524 30,738.96
1. Movement of the Revaluaiion Reserve (4)  ...... 531
2, Other variations. ..... et ol BE o e o | B 532 073836
C) BALANCE, END OF YEAR (2929, ... 511 Attane 111,442.27
I. Adjustments for changes in criteria In the year
2020 (1WO) . s rerrsrsrnnnansesnnnsssanprestinss 512
Il Adjustmants for errors in the exercise __ 20202) ... .. 513
e e et 514 4,175.54 111,442.27
. Tatal recognized income and expenses. ............. 515
1. Tr tions with shareholders or owners ...,  seoecines 516
1. Capltal INCreases. .. ...eoyreieraeenerinisiiion 517
2.{-) Capilal reductions, .... ~ seerene sereieaieans 518
3. Canversion af financial liabilities into aquity
{conversion of obligations, fergiveness of debts) . 519
4,{-) Distribution of dividends, .. .........  creereeees 520
5. Operations with own shares or parlicipations
a3 I s T 521
6. Increase (decrease) in equity resulting from a business
combination. .....ovuuniirineaians 522
7. Other aperations with partners or awners. ......... 523
11, Other changes Inequity . ........ou.s 524 19,906.98
1. Movement of the Revaluation Reserve (4}  ...... 531
2. Other variations. . . . .. PN, SWE e B W 532 19,906.98
E) BALANCE, END OF FISCAL YEAR 2021 (3)....... 525 4175584 131,349.25
(1) Exercise N-2,
(2) Fiscal year prior to which the annual accounts refer (N-1).
(4) Year to which the annual aceounts refar (M),
{4) Revaluatlion Reserve of Law 162012, of O her 27. C d by pr other than Law 16/2012 must delall the legal standard on which they are based,




STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NOBMAL NET WORTH

B) Total statement of changéssin equity

PN2.3

.
NIF: Beses2511 | IS (Barce
\D
SOCIAL DENOMINATION:
RATEGAIN TECHNOLOGIES
SPAIN, SLU
Space destined for the signatures of the administrators
OTHERS
CONTRIBUTIONS RESULT ({DIVIDEND
OF PARTHERS THE EXERCISE ON ACCOUNT]
a7 08 09
A) BALANCE, END OF YEAR {)..2019 511 30,738.96
I. Adjustmants for changes in criteria for the year
(1)and garlier|l,  ssvererrariisiiiiesiiians 512
Adjustments for errors in the year _ (@019
ANEBARIBE, +vivine s menmine o vvaly fres wm soadi s 513
B) ADJUSTED BALANCE, BEGINNING OF THE YEAR
gl e AR 513 30,738.96
I. Tatal recagnized Income and expenses. ......o.v 515 19,906.98
Il. Transactions wilh shareholders or owners ............ 516
1. Capital iNCreaASES. « cvv v rserasrnrerannrnaianis 517
2, (-) Capital reductions. . .......oue  rerrere weaes 518
3. Conversion of financial liabilities inlo equity
(canversion of obligatians, forgiveness of debts) . 519
4. (-) Distribution af dividends. . ...ovvawes rrrreeeies 520
5, Operations with own shares or participations
(L S e SR U T 521
6. Increase (decrease) in equity resulting from a business
GEMBTETION, 3 s e s F e sy 522
7. Other operations with partners or owners..... =+ 523
I Olsechantes inequiy. s, s 524 ~-30,738.96
1, Movement of the Revaluation Reserve (4)  ...... 5
2. Other variations. .. .oovevinrer i iainnanis 532 -30,738.96
C) BALANCE, END OF YEAR (2)..2020 511 19,906.98
I, Adjustments tor changes in criteria in the year
T 20D IWO) v wrenr sireeee rrareareseeneneiaas 512
Il Adjustments for errors in the exercise  202Q) .. ... . 513
OJADJUSTED SALANGE, BEGRRNG OTFISOAL » 19,906.98
| Tatal recognized income and expenses. , ......... 515 33,426.70
II. Transactions with shareholders or owners . ........... 516 56,938.00
1. Capital INCreases. .. .v.vveervrinensnrnrineenns 517
2.(-) Capital reductions. . . .ovvvvvavaneneas trres 518
3. Conversion of financial liabilities into equity
(conversion of abligations, forgiveness of debls) . 519
4. (-) Distribution of dividends. .. ......... ~  ceeeeseees 520
5. Operations with awn shares or participations
T g T T TP S PP P e gAY 521
6. Increase (decrease) in equity resulling from a business
combination. .. .....cocivnieriiana 522
7. Other operations with partners or owners..... ===+ 523 56,938.00
Ill. Other changes in equity ... ~ arreeeees 524 ~19,906.98
1, Mavement of the Revaluation Reserve (4)  ...... 51
2, Olhar vaHations. . . ivves s v e asie iaasen s deainatime 532 -19,906.98
E) BALANCE, END OF YEAR (3y.. 2021 525 56,938.00 33,426.70
(1) Exercisa N-2.
(2) Fiseal year prior lo which the annual aceounts reter (N-1).
(3) Year to which the annual accounts refer (N).
(4) Revaluation Reserve of Law 16/2012, of Di her 27. Comp i by ien provisi ather than Law 16/2012 must detall the lzgal standard an which they are based.
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SUBSIDIES,
OTHER INSTRUMENTS ADJUSTMENTS FOR CHANGES | DONATIONS AND LEGACY
OF NET WORTH OF VALUE RECEIVED
10 T 12
A) BALANGE, END OF YEAR (1)..2019 511
1. Adjustments tar changes in criteria for the year
_:ﬁaylg(ﬂandearlierll. ----- 512
Adjustments tor errors in the year {1201 9
and earlier, ..... Mre Vesie v A e o 513
B) ADJUSTED BALANCE, BEGINNING OF THE YEAR
({07 PR 514
|, Total recognized income and expenses, ............. 515
Il. Transactions with shareholders or owners....  «-e==+ . 516
1. Capital Increases. .......oovvve. s17
2, () Capital reductions. .. .. cerrene weaiesies e | 518
3. Conversion of financial liabilities into equity
{conversion of obligations, forgiveness of debts) . 519
4, (=) Distribution of dividends. . ... ... veve meeeeeeas . 520
5. Operations with own shares or participations
(et i e s 521
6. Increase (decrease) in aquity resulting from a business
combination. .. .. R = 522
7. Other operations with partners or owners. ......... 523 3
1ll, Other changes Inaquity .. .. v.veeesns 524
1. Movement of the Revalualion Reserve (4) Laaaep 531
2. Other variations. . « s o vus svsvaennaissosnanes i 532
C) BALANGE, END OF YEAR (2)..2020 - s
1. Adjus ts tor changes in eriteria In the year
Ilbgﬁaj{mrg],....”” .......................... . 512
II. Adjustments for errors in the exercise 202@2} ....... . 513
D) ADJUSTED BALANCE, BEGINNING OF FISCAL
YEARQBRT «ovvvrervrnnns s A S N S A 514
|. Total recognized income and expenses. ............ . 515
11, Transactions with shareholders or owners .. .. PR . 516
1. Capital increases............. R i 517
2. (-) Capital reductions. . ... Halibanle aliepaleieeisie 518
3, Conversion of financial liabilities into equity
(conversion of ohligations, torgiveness of debts) . 319
4, {-) Distribution of dividends. . .......... 520
5. Operations wilh own shares or parlicipations
(57 R 53 R T T 521
6. Increase (decrease) in equity resulling from a business
GOMBINATION. | ¢y vvanaevsnnssssves 522
7. Other operations with partners or owners.......... 523
|ll. Other changes inequity ... .. N 524
1. Movement of the Revaluation Reserve (4) o 531
2, Other variations. . ...... RS 532
E\ BALANGE, END OF YEAR (3., 2021 525

(1) Exercisa N-2.
{2) Fiscal year prior 1o which lhe annual accounls refer (H-1),
{3) Year to which the annual accounis refer (N).

{4) Revaluation Reserve of Law 162012, of December 27. Companles covered by revaluation provisions other than Law 16/2012 must detall the legal standard on which they are based.
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TOTAL
13
A) BALANCE, END OF YEAR (1)2019... 511 118,617.81
|. Adjustments for changes in criteria for the year
2019 (Handearlierll, «overarrrmrereiaisiannens 512
Adjustments for errors in the year 2019
AN BAHON: oo i i i e e R 513
B) ADJUSTED BALANCE, BEGINNFNG OF THE YEAR
. I e 514 118,617.81
. Total recognized income and expenses. ............. 515 19,906.98
II. Transaclions with shareholders or oWners ............ 516
1. Capltal Increases. .o ovuiveeineicaivasasanan 817
2, (-) Capital redUCtioNS. .« vuvvervnrarennernnnns . 518
3. Conversion of financial liabilities into equity
{conversion of obligations, forgiveness of debts) . 519
4, (-) Distribution of dividends. . . ..........covveanss 520
5, Operations with own shares or participations
A e R e e 521
6, Increase (decrease) in equity resulting from a business
SO BINBRON.  x g e s hopm s S s nton s 522
7. Other operations with partners ar owners, . ........ s 523
lll. Other changes in equity ........0000. 524
1. Movement of the Revaluation Reserve (4)  ...... 531
2, Other variations. .. ..co e viinniiainainssanannas 532
C) BALANGE, END OF YEAR (2)2020... 511 138,524.79
I. Adjustments for changes in criteria in the year
D020 (IWO) + v v vvvvsnrainininasans srtrnes srasnns 512
Il Adjustments far errors in the exercise 2020 (2)........ 513
D) ADJUSTED BALANCE, BEGINNING OF THE
3 e g gl TR 514 138,524.79
1. Total recognized income and eXpPenses. ....overvinens 515 33,426.70
Il. Transactions with shareholders oF OWNErS . vvvvvvasss 516 56,938.00
1, Capital INCreasES. cuvverrrerenarennneneaenanss 517
2. () Capital reductions. . sucavsssssncivininnnns 518
3, Conversion of financial liabilities into equity
(conversion of obligations, forgiveness of debts) . 519
4, () Distribution of dividends, ... ..vvvvveenniainnns 520
5, Operations with own shares or participations
e i e 521
6. Increase (decrease) in equity resulting from a business
combination. . .... Ve e 522
7. Other operations with partners or owners. ......... 523 56,938.00
1ll. Other changes inequity .. ........... 524
1. Movement of the Revaluation Reserve (4) ...... 531
_ 2. 0thervarialions.........ccovevnannriaiasiarnnns 532
E) BALANCE,ENDOFYEAR __ (3)2021... 525 228,889.49
(1) Exercise N-2,
(2) Fiscal year priar lo which the annual accounls refer {N-1),
() Year ta which the annual aceounts refer (N).
{4) Revaluation Reserve ol Law 16/2012, of December 27, Companles covered by luation pravisf other than Law 16/2012 must detall the legal standard on which lhey are based,
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| EXERCISE rluTEs 2021 (1) 4ISCAL YEAR 2020 pq)
A) CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
45,229.89 31,527.12
1. Profit for the year before taXes. ....ooovivervionss 61100
6 .78 530.13
2. Result adjUStments. ... .ov v verreeeennieinansnnns 61200. 2812 B
4,778.78 4,558.70
a) Amortization of fixed a5SeS (). .o v vvvvvrnirrianrarienanies 61201 !
b) Valuation corrections for impairment (+/=}. .. ..o voviiiiniiaaes 61202
c) Variation in provisions (+/=) .o oot iii s 61203
d) Allocation of subsidies (—} v .ovverniiirenainiianrensnes 61204
e) Results from write-offs and disposals of fixed assets (+/-) ........ 61205
f) Results from wrile-offs and dispasals of financial instruments (+/-) . 6120
g) Financialincome (=) v.vvvvvienniiacrrrensancsiisininnns 61207
h) Financial eXpenses (#) .o eeeeeeiuiannnss  frrsmss sosatnemaanaas 61208
2,096.0 971.43
i) Exchange differences (#/-) . ....oovvueins  tresses srassessaneaos 61209 ! . 1
i) Variation in fair value of financial instruments (+/-)...... G1210
56,938.00
k) Other income and BXPEnSes (—4+) v euureerarranernssnnensonneeas 61211 2
. -56,454.81 27,705.81
3. Changes inworking capilal. . ....oooiiiiiiii i, 61300
a) Inventories (#/-) s eusiienssisrersniiiiainiinonsessaainsiaian 61301
: -106,036.95 47,140.98
b) Debtors and other accounts receivable (+/-). ... P I  te 61302
C) Other GUITENt 8SSES (+/-) e v vvuereenne  sirrrss sesssasienanns 61803
49,582.14 -19,582.77
d) Creditors and olher accounts payable (+#=) .. cooovvuvninennnnn 6130
147.60
e) Other current liabilities (+/=) ..o coeeviiiiiiainnrrennnn <0, 61305
f) Other non-current assets and liabilities (+/<) ..........ovvniniinin 61346
] -5,048,66 -11,472.54
4. Other cash flows from operating activities....... 61400
a) Interest PAYMEeNIS (—) . ovvvrieraeeiasrsasninansiiniasnnins 61401
b) Callection of dividends (4] ..o oovvaiiiiiiini i 614
c) Interest charges (+) v veeevvieeeinonrrnesisnisannansnnns 61403
-5,048.66 -11,472.54
d) Income tax receipts (payments) (+/=) ..........onnnn 61404
g) Other payments (collections) (—/+) .. ..o oviviiririsinsiniiienenns . 61405
o 47,686.80 53,290.52
5, Cash flows from operating aclivities (1 + 2 + 3 + 4) 61500
(1) Year to which the annual accounts refer,
{2) Previous year.




F1.2

NIE: [ B66662511

SOCJAL DENOMINATION:

RATEGAIN TECHNOIL.OGIES SPAIN,
SLU

Space destined for the signatures of lgéTEHh{nlstwlom

EXERCISE!NDTES 2021 2020 )
B) CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
6. Payments for investments (=) v ovesrinsnssrsensisssnsnsrssnnns 621g0 -3,767.00 -495.04
a) Group companies and asseciales, . ..ovvieivairririaaiaaiecanan 6210
b) Intangible fixed agsels. .. ... ivav v iiainnsnninssrnnrenisnsnree 62102
c) Property, plant and equipment. . .. ... ... .o iiiiannieirinsananans . 62103 R i -485.04
d) Real estate investments. . ......ooovvay trrsess seniiaiaieann, 621104
@) Other financial 8ssels. ... .ooeeeaias rrrseen siniieanaaaaas 62105
f) Non-current assets held forsale. ................... 62106
Q) BUSINESS UMMt v v vvvninnnnnrnnsn frtessssisiiaisaniin, 621107
T} ORDE BEEBES, o conw v wr s b wbiw b, o oA e S R e 62108
7. Caollections for divestments {+) ... ..coevuieiriianiniannnsranss 62200
a) Group companies and ass0clates, . v viiiiir i 6220
b} Intangible tixed assels, .. .......civvininniinsnsnainsssssanss 62202
c) Property, plant and equipment........... T . 62203
d) Real estate Investments. . ...ovuuverees morrsss soscsniannnas 62204
e) Othet financial assets. ... ...ooviaenn srrrsrs sinieaiaeeaas 62p05
) Non-current assets heldforsale. . ...ooovviinieninn 62206 .
Q) BUSINESS UNIL oo vvvsiarnnrnnranns  mresecs sssisoaancooas 62007
h) Otherassels. .. .o.vvvemsiasssinivisasesivns Ll 62208
8. Cash flows from investing activities (6 + 7). .. ..... 62300 -3,767.00 495.04

{1) Year o which the annual accounts raler.
{2) Pravious year.




NORMAL CASH FLOWS STATEMENT F1.3

-

NIE: B66662511
SOCIAL DENOMINATION:
RATEGAIN TECHNOLOGIES SPAIN,
SLU
Space destined for the signatures of the administrators
E)(ERCISE]NDTES 2021 E[ 2020 o
C) CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
9, Collections and payments for equity instruments. .............. 63100
a) Issuance of equity instruments (+) ... oo eveviiinennnens 63101
b) Amortization of equity instruments (=) . ......coviivannns 63102
c) Acquisition of awn equity instruments (=) .............. 63103
d) Disposal of own equity instruments (+) ............. 63104
e) Subsidies, donations and legacies received (+) ..........o00usn 63105
10. Collections and payments for financial liabilily instruments. ........ 63200 =1,202.80 “48,300.50
a) Issuance........ R e e R A A S A S e 63201 36,086.03
1. Obligations and other negotiable securities (+)................. 53202
2. Debts with credit institutions (+) ... .. cooiviinnnan 63203
3. Dabts with graup companies and assaciates (+) .......ouvauin 63204 AR08R.04
4. Debts with special characteristics (+) ... ooveeiinanaa.. 63205
5. Other debls (). covmmmnmmrsmsmsm smms mg s s s wuss s smm 63206
b) Return and amortization of . ... i 63207 w2050 FA6.93
1. Obligations and other negatiable securities (<) . ................ 3208
2. Debts with credit institutions (-) . ............ mA%on e . 53209 :
3. Debls with group companies and associates (—) .. ............ 63210 -21,202.80 <67,386.93
4. Debts with special characteristics (=) ............cinatn 63211
S 0ther dabIs =) sei v inrnssamarnass sunmnrmnnnss s snnnass 63212
11. Payments for dividends and remuneratian of other instruments
OTNBIIIBAGE. . . ivovmns svsm g mna s an s a  piedia s siepomie was s sy o6 63300
a) DIvVidands (=) vvvvvvrireinnineissnrriiraieiis s s i 63301
b} Remuneration of other equity instruments (-} ............ 63302
12. Cash flows from financing activities (9 + 10 + 11) . 63400 e i “49,500.90
D) Effect of changes in éxchange rates. ............. 64000
O ERLALENTA D 10 TERB] o cvsisssss vimssiss 6500) 2271200 Spaass
Cash or equivalent at the begining of theexercise . ............coon.. 65100 120074 8,562.76
Cash or equivalents attheend oftheyear. ... .ooiiiiieiinnanins, 65400 34,794.34 12,077.34
(1) Year to which the annual agcounts rafer,
{2) Previous year.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Management,
RATEGAIN TECHNOLOGIES INC

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of RATEGAIN TECHNOLOGIES INC (the “Company”),
which comprise the balance sheet as of March 31, 2022, and related statement of income, statement of
stockholder’s equity and statement of cash flow for the year then ended and related notes to financial
statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the company, as of March 31, 2022, and the results of the operations and its cash flows for the
year then ended, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with accounting standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (“GAAS"). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of financial statements” section of our report. We are required to be
independent of the company and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant
ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financials statements that are from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate that raise substantial doubt about the company’s ability to continue as
a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be issued.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material statements, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue and auditor report that include
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is high level of assurance but not absolute assurance and therefore is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect material statements when
it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control. Misstatements, include omissions are considered material if there is a
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgement made by
reasonable user based on financial statements.



In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:

Exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financials statement whether due to
fraud and error, and design and perform audit procedure responsive to those risk. Such procedure
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosure in financial
statements.

Obtain an understanding of Internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedure
that are appropriate in circumstances, but not for purpose of expressing opinion an effectiveness of
internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and reasonableness of significant
accounting policies used and reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluate overall presentation of financials statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgement, there are condition or events, considered in aggregate that
raise substantial doubt about the company’s ability to continue as a going concern for reasonable
period of time.

We required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of audit, significant audit findings and certain internal control related identified
during the audit.

Emphasis of Matter
The opening balances as on April 1, 2021 and for the year ended March 31, 2021, is not required to be
audited as per laws and regulations applicable in United States of America.

/L\.F/{/
y ..__ﬂ_.h- -

Srinivasa Ve'ﬁ_"kat:-C;’A
For P&G ASSOCIATES, PLLC

Public Accounting Firm
Firm Registration Number: 5000066

Date: 1** August, 2022.



RATEGAIN TECHNOLOGIES INC,

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022
(all amounts are in United State Dollars, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note

i March 31, 2022

Assets

! Current Assets

i Cash and Cash Equivalents D 1,240,604
Accounts Receivables E 3,345,970
Other Current Assets F 12,487,704
Total Current Assets 17,074,278
Non-Current Assets
Property and Equipment, Net G 323,628
ROU Asset H 264,770
Intangible Assets, Net I 4,138,417
Investment J 14,691,050
Other Non Current Assets K 98,415
Total Non- Current Assets 19,516,280
Total Assets 36,590,558
Liabllitles & Stockholder's Equity
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payables L 454,760
Lease Liability-current 100,460
Other Current Liabilities M 8,468,750
Total Current Liabilities 9,023,970
MNen-Current Liabilities
Lease Liability-non current 190,847
Other Non Current Liabilities N 1,966
Total Non-Current Liabllities 192,813
Total Liahilities 5,216,783
Stockholder's Equity
Common Stock 100
Additional Paid in capital 25,916,020
Retained Earnings - 1,457,655
Total Stockholder's Equity 27,373,775
Total Liabilities & Stockholder's Equity . -_36,590,558

The accompanying notes fonm an integral part of these financial statements,

l?ur%sui/n'l‘uhuolugiul 1pyhiSA,

Director: B, Chopra
Date: 1st August 2022




RATEGAIN TECHNOLOGIES INC.

Statement of Income for the year ended March 31, 2022
(all amounts are in United State Dollars, unless otlherwise stated)

Particulars

Revenue

Sale of Services

Other Income

Total Revenue

Operating Expenses

Salary and Benefits

General and Administrative expenses
Depreciation and Amortization
Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income

Interest Expenses
Profit Before tax

Tax Expenses
Profit After tax

The accompanying notes fonm an integral part of these financial statements.

For V'fﬂ:]mulﬂglﬁ Ine, USA

Director: B, Chopra
Date: 1st August 2022

Note  prarch 31,2022

o] 15,387,132

61,789
15,448,921

5,782,473

4,368,144
GHI 1544895
11,695,512

3,753,409

0 179,867
3,573,542

R 30,726

3,542,816



RATEGAIN TECHNOLOGIES INC.

Statement of Stockholder's Equity for the year ended March 31, 2022

(all amounts are in United State Dollars, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Common Additional Retained Stockholder's
Stock Paid in Capital Earnings Equity
Balance as on_March 31, 2021 100 12,206,661 (2,085,160) 10,121,603
Changes during the Year - 13,709,356 - 13,709,356
Net Income for the year - - 3,542,816 3,542,816
Balance as on March 3.!' 1022 100 25916,020 1,457,655 27,373,175

During the year the stakeholders has infused additional paid in capital of § 3,034,354 and converted stakeholders loan of § 10,675,000

into equity.

The accompanying noles fonn an integral part of these financial statements.




RATEGAIN TECHNOLOGIES INC,

Statements of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2022
(all amounts are in United State Dollars, unless otherwise stated)

Cash Flows From Operating Activities

Nel Profit before taxes

Depreciation and Amortization

Interest Expense

Provision for Doubtful debts

Changes In Operating Assets And Liabilities
(Increase) In Accounts Receivable

(Increase) In Other Current Asscls

(Increase) in Other non Current Asscts
(Decrease) In Accounts Payable

(Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities

Tax Paid
Net Cash Generated By Operating Activities

Cash Flow From Investing Aetivities
Purchase of Property and Equipment
Net Cash Used By Investing Actlvities

Cash Flow From Financing Activitles
Proceeds from Additional Capital
Repayment of Borrowings

Interest Paid

Payment of Lease Liabilities

Interest On Lease Liability

Net Cash Used By Financing Activities

Net Inerease In Cash And Cash Equivalents
Cash And Cash Equivalents At Beginning Of Year

Cash And Cash Equivalents At End Of Year (Note D)

Cash flow statements have been prepared using Indirect method as specified in US GAAP.

Non- Cash Transactions:

During the year the company has converted related party loans from holding company inlo equity amounting to

10,675,000

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

March 31,2022

3,571,542
1,544,895
179.867
78,243

(423,730)
(2,060,206)
(108,470)
(592,689)
(965,727)

(12,029)

1,213,696

203,942
(203,942)

3,034,354
(3,698,209)
(111,033)
(8,791)
(5,455)

(789,134)
220,620

1,019,984
1,240,604




RATEGAIN TECHNOLOGIES INC.
Nates to the Financlal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Note A NATURE OF OPERATIONS
The company is a wholly owned subsidiury of RaieGain Technologies Limsited,, It is engaged in the busitess of providing data as a service, distribution and
market technologies to ravel and hospitality sector on 1 Saa8 platform.

Note B SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The significant sccounting policics are detailed bulow:

! Dol of accouating
The fal stat; hwve been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America (U3
GAAP) hluﬂnd |l|= financial pesition and results of operatons of e Company,

The fii are for the year ended March 31, 2022 Allamounts are siated in United States Dollars, unless specified otherwise,

P

1 Use of Estimate

The p ion: of finoncial in y with US GAAP requires to moke and ptions that affect the reported
mmsumuwmmmwdlmﬂn{mmnﬂmmnlliudahofd:" fnl and the neported of
Mmmhnllhemﬂhlzmrlmlm gement's st for realization of defi tumlamdlid:nhlm.dehmmnﬂ'uwfuluml‘or
property and ision for doubtful debts, all for chargebacks, di and rebates, and esti relating lo led tran and
mluuihhhme:hmdmmmcmmufﬂnx iculard i M | believes that the esti uned in tha ion of the
financial stements are prudent and reasonable. Acmlmﬂuuouludmcrn-nm these esti Appropriaie changes in esti are made as management
beenmes awnare of changes in ci ing the eglimates’. Revisians in ing estimales are recognized prospectively in the current and luture
periods,

3

Cash and Cash Equivalenty

Cash equivalents cousist of all cash accounts which arc not subject to withdrawal ictions or penaltics and all highly liquid investments with an infial
maturity of three months or less. The carrying value of eash and cash equivalents approximates fuir value because of die short maturities of those financial
i Cash bal in bank are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corparation up to specified sum for coch insured bank for each
uecount per depositor, Cash balasces in excess of the Pederal Deposit Insurance Corporation and similar inswance covernge are subjeet 1o the usual banking
risks associated with funds in exeess of those limits,

4 Revenue Recognition
Revenue from Contracis with C revenue is recopnised upan trnn&fer of conliol of promised services W custumers, Revenue is measured ot the fair
virlue of the ideration received ar recei luding di | bonuses, priee i Heated an behalf of
third paitics, or other similar items, if any, as specified in the contret with the R i eded ided Illc recovery of consideration is
probable and detemminable. R from vperations Is recugnised w the extent that it is probable that (he economic mﬁu will flow to the Company and the

revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue rom sale of services in cuse of hospitality secior is recognised over the specified subseription period on straight
line basis o on the besis of underlying seivices perfonmed, as e case may be, In accordance with the tems of the contracts with customens and in case of

umvel sector the same is recognised when the related services are performed ss per the terms of The Compiny defers 1 revenue, i g
payments received in advarice, until the related subszription period is complete or underlying services we performed,

Revenue from sale of services

Revenue from marketing support services, management fee amd auxiliary and business support serviees are in terms of agrecments with the customers and are
recagnised on the basis of satisfaction of perfi bligation uver the fon of the contract from the date the contracts are effective or signed provided
the consideration s reliably ds inable and no significant inty exists regarding the collection, The amount recognised as revenue {s net of applicable
taxes, -

SMMM

1 ivable is d at the amount management expeets o collect fram ding bal Manng provid T Hectibl
mmhw:chmlomiwudauwlm luation all based on its t of the status of individual sccounts, Balusces that are still
has used ble collection efforts are wrilten off through a charge to the valuation allowance und a credit to aceounts
receivable.
Based on the busi i L in which the comy P 2 iders that the ts receivables ore in default (credit impaired) if the
payments are mare than 165 days past due however the company based upon past trends d in loss all on receivables.




RATEGAIN TECHNOLOGIES INC.
MNotes to the Financial Statements for the year ented Mareh 31, 2012

& Fraperty ang Equipment,

Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equip nre It cost, less lated depreciation aml dated impai losses. The cost of an item of
penty, plant and equi p (a) s purchase price and fundabl: hase taxes, afler dr.-duclmg trade discounts and rebates; (b) any cosis

dlte:ll,y attributsble to bringing the asset 1o the lucllwn and cuidition necessary for al i@ bs capable of operating in the munier intended by monagement. The

cost of & self- d item of propenty, plant and equi prises the cost of ials and direct labour, any other cost directly attributabic to

bringing the ilem to working condition for it intended use. An item of property, plant gnd equip and any signifieunt part initially recognised is

derecognised upon disposal or when no future ic benefits are expecied from its use or disposal, Any gain or loss arising on derccoguilion of Ui assel

(culculated as the difference e net disposal p ds and the carrying amount of the assel) is included in tho statement of income when such asset is

derecognised.

Subsequent cost

Subsequent costa are included in tlie asset's carrying amount or recognised ns o separate asset, as appropriate, only whan it it probabla that the funire seanamic
benefits assoclated with expenditure will flow to the compuny and the cost of the item can be measured reliably, All ather subsequent cost are charged to
stateiment of income at the time of incurrence.
Depmhlﬁm

intion on PPE is provided on the stralght-line method computed on the basis of useful life on a pro-rata busis from the dale the asset is ready to put to
use Depreciation is caleulated on a pro rata basis for assets purchased/sold during the year. The residual values, useful lives and methads of deprecialion af

propery plant asd cquipment ane reviewed by e ut each reponting date and adjusted prospectively, as approp
Estimated
Useful Life
Asset Nome No. of years
Furniture and Fixtures 4-7
Computer Equipment 2-3
Office Equipment 24
Production Egg'mll 1-5
7 Jntangible Assets
Intangible assets that are acquired are recognised only if' it is probable that the expected fulure ic benefits that are attribulable to the asset will flow ta
the company and the cost of asscls cun be measured refiably. Thnodur gible assety are jed ot cost of acquisition including incidental cosis related o
sequisition and installation and we cavied ot cost less I isation and impai logses, il any. Gain or losses nn:mg {rom derecognition of

other intangible sssets are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the ather intangible assets and are
recognised in the statement of income when the asset is devecognised.

Subsequent cost

Subsequent cost is capitalised only when it i the future ic benefils embodied in the specific asset 1o which it relates. All the subsequent
diture on other i ible assets is pnised in of income , a8 incurred,

Mnlhl

Amoitisation is calculared to write off the cost of ather intangible assets over their estimated uselul lives as stated below using steaight-line method, The
estimated uscful lives of the amortizable intangible asset arc os follows:

Estimated
s Uselul Lire
Asset Name No. of years
| Intangible Assct 1-13

8 Leases
For any new or modificd leuss, the Company, at the inception of the contract, detenmines whether a contract is ar containg o lease, The Company records right-
of-use (“ROU") assets and lease obligations for its finance and operating leases, which are initially rcmm:d based on the mmmu mm lum payments
wmm—marhhmlrthcmmnphduuwc«npmﬂkawmmmny inable, the Ci licable i g rule is used
in calculeting the present value of the sumi of the lease payments, Lease term is defined as the non-cancelable penod of the lease plus any opm to extend or
tenminate the lcase when it is reasonably certain that the Company will exercise the option. The Company has elected nol o recognize ROU asset and leise
abligations for its short-term leases, which are defined as leases with an initial term of 12 months or less,

9 Income Taxes

In accardance with the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASH) Accounting Standards Codifieation (ASC Topie 740 “Income Taxes”,
income hxes are accounted for using the asset ond linbility method. Defeed lax ussets and halilities are recognized for the funire ax conscquences
altributable 1o differences between the Mnancial statement carrying amounts of existing assels and liabilities and their respoctive lax bases and oporating loss
camyforwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacled tax rules expecied o upply w taxable income in the years in which those
mﬂdtﬂmmm expected to be recovered or settled, The effect on deferred tax assets and linbilities of a change in tx rutes is recagnized in income in
the perivd that includes the { date. The deforred tax usset is reduced by a valuation allowanee if it is more likely than not that some portion or all of
the assels will not be realized. All deferred tax assets and liabilitics, along with any relaed valuation allowance, are clnssilied s noncurrent on the bulance
sheet,




RATEGAIN TECHNOLOGIES INC.
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

10 Fair Valve Measurements and Kinancial Instruments
Asscis and linbilities recorded at fair value in the fi | stat ts dee ized based upon the level of judgment associated with the inpuis used to
measure their fair value, Hicrarchical levels which are dircatly related to the amoun of subjectivity associsted with the inputs to the valustion of tivse sssets or
linbilities are as (ollows:

Level | - unadjusied quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company has the ubility 10 access as of the measurement date.

Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included within Level | that are directly observable for the agset or liability or indireelly observable hrough
comoboration witl observable market data

Level 3 - unobservable inputs for the asset or liability enly used when there is linle, if any, market activity for the asset or liability at the measurement date.

This hicrarcliy requives the Compuny w use ob ble market dota, when available, and to minimize the use of unobservable inputs when detcrmining fair
value

The Company's financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, ivable, | puyable and accrued liabilities. The
estimated fuir value of cush, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities npproximate their earrying amounts of these instruments, None of
these insouments are held for trading purposes,

11 Commitments and Contingencies
Liabililies lor loss conlingeneies arising (rom clains, assessments litigations, fines, penallics, and other sources arc mwdud when il is pmlnhlc Ihll a Iub\luy
hs been incurred and the amount can be reasonably estimated Legal eosts i d in ion with loss i 3 d as d. €

liabilities are nol recognized but are diselosed in the notes. Contingent assets are neither recogaized nor discl ms‘he“ ial

umwmmwm

We have reviewed the recent g and fuded they are either not applicable 1o the business or no material effiect is expected on the
financinl stalements as a resull of future adoption.

13 Earlv adgntion of accounting standards
Financial Accounting Stondard Board (FASB) lease secounting standard (ASC 842) will 1ake effcet beginning aficr D ber 15, 2021 (calendar 2022) (or
private companies, The company has adopted this ing standard with effect from | Aprl 2021 accounted and disclosed Leases accordingly.

Note C E[,B;!ﬂClﬁL INSTRUMENTS AND CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

inancial instruments that polentially subject the Company 1o concentritions of credit risk consist principally of cash equivalents and i By
lhcir noture, all ivable involve risk including the credit risk of non-performance by :uumu partics, In management's oplnion 28 of Muareh 31,
2022 there was no sigaificant risk of loss in the event of non- -performance of e counter parties 1o these cash equival i

Note D CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and Cash Equivalents, include the following:
Asal
March 31,2022
§

Cash at Bank 1,240,604
Total 1,240,604
The aompuny has no restricted cash balance as at March 31, 2022

Note E A 3 L ECEIVABLES
A.mmh mcamhh. net Inuluda the I'al.lowmg.
As at
Mareh 31,2022
: ]
| Accounts receivable 4,287,732
Allowance for iceounts (941,762)
Tatal 3345970
Note P OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
As at
| March 31,2022
5
P'repaid Expenses and Advances 450,545
Unbilled Reverue 294,463

Related Party Receivables® 11,742,686
Total 12,487,704

* Related party receivables are unsecured and interest free




RATEGAIN TECHNOLOGIES INC.
Natee to the Financlal Statements lor the year ended March 11, 2022

3 Note G FROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT. NET
Propecty and equipment, net, comprises of

Particulars Fine Arts

Furniture and Offiee Production  |{nou-
Fixtures i b Equipment Equipment  [depreciabl Tate
£)

Gross earrying value:

Balanee as at | April 202| 9,134 48319 76,863 2261419 35,600 2451,135

Additions 413815 13,638 3474 144,015 - 203,942

i justments " x 2
i Iﬂag s at 31 March 2022 51,949 61,957 80,337 2405434 | ss,600 | 2,655,277 |

Eduumllllad depreciation:
Balance as ai | April 2021 3,881 36,740 20,932 2,090,455 - 2,152,008
fation 3,781 9,441 20,484 145,935 - 179,64 |

Dig ients - - - 5 .
Balance as at 31 March 2022 7,662 46,181 41,416 1,236,390 % 2,331,649
Net ing value:

Balonce a5 ut 31 Mareh 2021 5,151 11,579 55931 174,964 55, 2499317
Balance as at 31 Mareh 2022 44,287 15,776 38,921 169,044 55,600 323,618

Note H ROU ASSET, NET

‘I‘ll‘lklll!rl Asat

Cross mlng value:
Bulance s at | il 2021 s

Additions 302,062

| Disposaly/ Adjustmeuts -
Balance as at 31 March 2022 302,062

i Accumulated depreciation;

i [Bolancs se ot | Apeil 2021 -
i | Depreciation Expense 37,202
Dispasals/ Adjustments -
Balance as at 31 March 2022 37,292

Net carryog value:
Balunes as at 31 March 2022 264,770

}Iatauulhlu: Total

4,540,656 4,875,000 9,415,656

4.540,§5|;| 4,875,000] 9,4153:._5_6_

3 1,380,149 3,949,043
884,516] 443,681 1,323,197

Balance as at 31 March 2022 3,453,409 1,823 830} 5,277,239

Nete vitlue:
1 Balance as at 31 March 2021 1,971,763 3,494 851 5,466,614
‘ Dalance ns at 31 March 2022 1,087,247 3,051,170 4,138,417
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RATEGAIN TECHNOLOGIES INC,

Nates to the Financial Stutements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Noted INVESTMENT
Particulars As at
Mareh 31,2022
Investment in BCY Social LLC
|'I'nlll
Note K OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS
Particulars Asat
Marc¢h 31,2022
Property Deposits 47,498
50917
Tatal
Note L ACCOUNTS PAYABLES
Partieulurs As at
Mareh 31,2022
434,760
54700
As at
Mareh 31,2022
7,655,902
Deferred Miscellaneous Revenue 92,607
Advances from customers 45,015
Accrued Expenses 354,602
Sales Tax puyable 4,324
Others 316,284
Total 8,468,750]

* Reluled party poyables arc unsceured wid mterest free

RELATED PARTY PAYABLES

Mame of Entity Ax at
March 31,2021

Rategain Technologics Limited (UK 1225133

Company)

|RateGain Travel Technologics Limited 430,770

(Formeerly known ns HueGain Travel

Technol 3 Private Limited

Total 7,655,901

Note N

Purticulars Asat
Mareh 31,2022

Defarred Rent 1,966

Tatal 1,966




HATEGAIN TECHNOLOGIES INC,
Notes to the Finaneial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2012

Note O SALE OF SERVICES

R from services and other income 15,387,132
|provided in USA
Revenue disaggregated by timing of recogmition:
For the year
ended
March 31,2022
5
Sale of Services overn of time 15,387,132
Total revenue b of tian 15,387,132
Note P GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
| Particulars Far the year
ended

Muareh 31,2022

856,615
SE?E%'
440,198
334,565
270,119
152,721
78.243
174,915
145,326
184,859)
57,728
62,203
14,291
8,880
3,905
211
3,182
49,622
433,663
4,368,144

Note Q INTEREST EXPENSES

| Particulars For the year
ended
March 31,2022
5

55,661
118,750
5,455
179,367

Note R TAX EXPENSES

For the year ended March 31, 2022, the company will file federal and slate tax relurns as per regulations applicable in the United States.

The components for the provision for inconie taxes ure as follows:

TPurticulars For the year
ended
March 31,2022
3
Current taxes 30,726|




RATEGAIN TECHNOLOGIES INC,

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

NoteS RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Relaied Purty Relationships
Related Party Nature of
velatlon
Parent and
% i Ultimate
IthaGnm Travel Technologies Limited Contrlling
P
g Y £ Wholly owned
Ratogain Technologics Limited Bafi
" Whelly owned
'm Technologies Spain S.L. wabsidioiy
Socisl Wholly awned
S b [subssidiary
el clated P
Amount as on 3]st
Expenses Incurred on behalf of March 2022
‘Ilm(hln Tecluologivs Limited, UK 216,454
RateGain Travel Technologics Limited 69,042
(BCV Social 185,670
Amount as on 3st
ense incurred on our behall by Mareh 2022
RateCiain Technolopies Limited. UK 155,167
TuteGain Travel Technologies Limited 632,395
‘BCV Social 561,304
Amount as on 31st
Customer realization on behall of Mareh 2022
| RateGuin Technolugies Limited, UK 381,097
RateGain Travel Technologies Liniited 142,407

Amount 25 on 315t
March 2022

12,025,000




RATEGAIN TECHNOLOGIES INC,
Notes to the Finnnelal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Balances with Related Party
(Name of Entity - Amaount as on 313t
Tramsacdon March 2022
Type s
Rategain Technologies Limited Other Corrent 3873234
Assels
BCV Social LLC Otver Current 7,869,462
Assels
Rategain Technologics Limied {Other Cusrent 7,225,133
Linbilities
ItTmOm‘nruul Technologies Limited Other Current 430,770
Liabilitics
Note T RISI AND UNCERTAINTIES
The Company's furure resulls of aperations involve several risks and uncertainties. Factors thal could affect the Company's fulure- operating results and cause
actual results to vary fally from expectations include, competitive factors, includi leﬂmiwdmpdahu ion in generul i
conditions; the C 's ability to effectively manage ing costs and increase operating efficlencies; d in s, lechnological and market
changes; the ability to sttract and retain mld"nd omployus und lhc Company‘t ability to executs on its business plan.
The Company's exposure ta credit risk for the is mini The average credit period to setile accounts receivables is about 30 doys to 60
days.

Nate [ SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Subsequent events have been evaluated (il the dato on which is the date the financial statements were issued. No material subsequent event has been noted.

Nate V The opening balances us on April 1, 2021 derived from finuncial information thal were not subject to audil as per US GAAP.
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Public Accounting Firm (FRM)

Regd. Office;

36, South 18th Avenue, Suite 0,
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Management,
BCV Social LLC

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of BCV Social LLC (the “Company”), which comprise
the balance sheet as of March 31, 2022, and related statement of income, statement of stockholder’s equity
and statement of cash flow for the year then ended and related notes to financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the company, as of March 31, 2022, and the results of the operations and its cash flows for the
year then ended, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America,

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with accounting standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (“GAAS”). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of financial statements” section of our report. We are required to be
independent of the company and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant
ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financials statements that are from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate that raise substantial doubt about the company’s ability to continue as
a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be issued.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material statements, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue and auditor report that include
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is high level of assurance but not absolute assurance and therefore is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect material statements when
it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control. Misstatements, include omissions are considered material if there is a



substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgement made by
reasonable user based on financial statements.
In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:

Exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financials statement whether due to
fraud and error, and design and perform audit procedure responsive to those risk. Such procedure
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosure in financial
statements.

Obtain an understanding of Internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedure
that are appropriate in circumstances, but not for purpose of expressing opinion an effectiveness of
internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and reasonableness of significant
accounting policies used and reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluate overall presentation of financials statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgement, there are condition or events, considered in aggregate that
raise substantial doubt about the company’s ability to continue as a going concern for reasonable
period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of audit, significant audit findings and certain internal control related identified
during the audit.

Emphasis of Matter
The opening balances as on April 1, 2021 and for the year ended March 31, 2021, is not required to be
audited as per laws and regulations applicable in United States of America.

/@—-—&’\_’/uf,ﬁ
m—
p—————

Srinivasa Venkat, CPA

For P&G ASSOCIATES, PLLC

Public Accounting Firm

Firm Registration Number: 5000066
Date : 1* August, 2022.



BCVY SOCIALLLC
Balance Sheet as at Mareh 31, 2022

(all amounts are in United State Dollars, unless otherwise stated)

Partlculars

Assets

Current Assels

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivables
Other Current Assets
Total Current Assets

Non-Current Assets
Property and Equipment, Net
Intangible Assets, Net

Total Non- Current Assets
Total Assets

Liabilitics & Stockholder's Equity
Current Liabilities

Accounts Payables

Other Current Liabilities

Total Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Commitments and Contingencies (Note J)
Stockholder's Equity

Equity Share Capital

Additional Paid in Capital

Retained Eamings

Total Stockholder's Equity

Total Liabilities & Stockholder's Equity

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements,

For BCV Social LLC

Director: B. Chopra
Date: 1st August, 2022

Note

=mg

March 31, 2022

242,542

2,406,203
222574

2,871,319

139,064

11,788,610

e 14,659,029

428,273

10,500,313

6,192,912
15,269,492
(17,302,788)

4,159,616

—-—-M



BCV SOCIAL LLC

Statement of [ncome for the year ended March 31, 2022
(al) amounts are in United State Dollars, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Revenue

Sale of Services
Other Income
Tatal Revenue

Operating Expenses

Salary and Benefits

General and Administrative expenses
Depreciation and A it

Total Operating Expense

Operating Loss

Net Loss

The accompanying notes forman [ntegral part of these financial statements.

For BCV Social LL.C

d %/ 2
%}
Director: B. Chopra
Date: 1st August, 2022

Note
M

March 31,2022

10,099,467

SE— 7] |
10,124,918

7,793,546
N 3,578,270
G&H 1693501

13,065,317
— (2,040,200
(2,940,399)



BCVSOCIALLLC

Statement of Stockholder's Equity for the year ended March 31, 2022
(all amounts are in United State Dollars, unless atherywise stated)

Equity shave Additional Retained Stockholder's
Partiminrs capital Paid in Capital|  Earnings Equlcy
Balance as on March 31, 2021 6,192912] 15,269,492 (14,362,389 7,100,013 |
Net loss for the year 4 (2,940,399) (2,940,399)
Balance as on March 31,2022 6,192,912 Islu°é91 mgnz!‘m} déﬂ?lilﬁ
mm—

‘The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.




BCV SOCIALLLC

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2022
(all smounts are in United State Dollars, unless otherwise stated)

Cash Flows From Operating Activities

Net Loss

Depreciation and Amorti
Provision for Doubtful debts
Loss on sale of asset

Changes In Operating Assets And Liabilities
(Increase) In Accounts Receivable

(Inerease) In Other Current Asscts

Increase In Accounts Payable

Increase in Other Current Liabilities

Net Cash Used By Operating Activities

Cash Flows From Investing Aetivitles
Purchase of Computer Office and Equipment
Proceeds from sale of fixed asset

Net Cash Used By Investing Activities

Net Decrease In Cash And Cash Equivalents
Cash And Cash Equivalents At Beginning OF Year
Cash And Cash Equivalents At End Of Year (Note D)

Cash flow stat have been prepared using Indirect method as specified in US GAAP.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

March 31,2022

(2,940,359)
1,693,501
69,308
20,081

(1,244,690)
(155,941)
91,040
2,084,813
(382,287)

. (59378)
NS I 7~
(52,412)

(434,699)
677,241
242,542




BCV SOCIALLLC
Notes to the Finaneial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Note A .
The eompuny is a wholly owned subsidiary of RateGain Technologies Ine. It is engaged in the business of providing data asa service,
distribution and market technologies to travel and hospitality sector on a Sua§ platform.

Naote B SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The signifi F G

are detailed below:

L Ly

: 1 Basis of accounting
$ The panying fi ial have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United
States of America (US GAAP) to reflect the financial position and results of operations of the Company,

The fi inl st fre p d for the year ended March 31, 2022, All amounts are stated in United States Dollars, unless
specified otherwise.

2 Useof Estimate

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with US GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that

affect the reported amounts of assers and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial

statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporling period. The management's eslimates for
: determination of uscful lives for property and equipment, provision for doubtful debis, allowance for chargebacks, discounts and
rebates, and estimation relating to unsetiled transactions and events at the balance sheet date represent certain of these particularly
i sensitive estimates. Management believes that the estimates used in the preparation of the financial stat s are prudent and
reasonable. Actual results could differ from these estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management becomes sware
of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates', Revisions in accounting estimates are recognized prospectively in the current
and future periods,

w

Cash and Cash Equivelents
Cash equivalents consist of all cash accounts which are not subject to withdrawal restrictions or penalties and all highly liquid

investments with an initial maturity of three months or less. The carrying valuc of cash and cash equivalents approximates fair value
because of the short maturities of those financial instruments, Cash balances in bank accounts are insured by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation up to specified sum for each insured bank for cach account per depositor. Cash balances in cxcess of the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation and similar insurance coverage are subject to the usual banking risks associated with funds in excess of
those limits.

Reveaue from Contracts with Customers, revenue is tecognised upon transfer of control of promised services to customers. Revenue is
measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, excluding discounts, incentives, performance bonuses, price
concessions, amounts collected on behalf of third parties, or other similar items, if any, a5 specified in the contract with the customer,
Revenue is recorded provided the recovery of consideration is probable and determinable. Revenue from operations is recognised to the
extent that it is probahle that the economie benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be relinbly measured. Revenue from
sale of services in case of hospitality sector is recognised over the specified subseription period on straight line basis or on the basis of
underlying services performed, as the case may be, in accordance with the terms of the wilh cust The Company defers

d , including pay ts received ir:advanoc.until the related subseription period is plete or underlying services are

.E 4 Revenue Recoguition

performed.

Sale of Services

Revenue from markeling support services, social media munagenent fee and auxiliary business support services are in terms of
agreements with the customers and are recognised on the basis of satisfaction of performance obligation over the duration of the
| contract from the date the contracts are effective or signed provided the consideration is reliably detenninable and no significant
uncertainty exists vegarding the collection. The amount recognised as revenue is net of applicable taxes,




i BCY SOCIAL LLC
] Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

5 Provision for Doubitful accounts

The Company follows the specific identification method for recognizing provision for doubtful accounts. Management analyses
compasition of the accounts receivable aging, historical bad debts, current economic trends, risk identified and customer credit
warthiness of each accounts reccivable when evaluating the adequacy of the provision for doubtful accounts, Provision for doubtful

is included in g | and administrati p in the of income. The Company charges off bad debis against
{ the provision in the period in which it determines they are uncollectible. Based on the business environment in which the company
i operates, management iders that the receivables are in default (credit impaired) if the payments are more than 365 days

past due however the company based upon past trends determine loss allowance on receivables.

¢ Eumu__m_m.p_m_m_
and cment

Iwmu of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. The
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises: (a) its purchase price and nou-refundable purchase laxes, after deducting
trade discounts and rebates; (b) any costs directly atiributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the ded by The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment
comprises the cost of materials and direct labour, any olher cast directly anributable to bringing the flem 1o \mrtms condition for its
intended use. An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecogni d upon disposal or
when no [uture economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the canying amount of the nsset) is included in the statement of

: income when such asset is derecognised.

i Subsequent cost

i Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a sepavate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that the future ic benefits inted with expenditure will flow to the company and the cost of the item can be measured
: relinbly. All other subsequent cost are charged to statement of income al the time of incurrence.

i Depreciation

Depreciation on PPE is provided on the straight-line method computed on the basis of useful life on a pro-rata basis from the date the
asset is ready to put to use Depreciation is calculated on & pro rata basis for assels purchased/sold during the year, The residual values,
useful lives and methods of dcprcclahon of property plant and equipment are reviewed by management at each reporting date and

djusted prospectively, as approp
Estimated Useful Life
Asset Name No. of years
Fumiture and Fixtures 7
Computer & Office Equip t 5-7]
7 Intangible Assets

Intangible assets that are acquired are recognised only ifit is probable that the expected future cconomic benefits that are attributable to
i the asset will flow to the company and the cost of assets can be measured reliably. The ofher intangible assets are recorded al cost of
i acquisition including incidental costs related to acquisition and installation and are carricd at cost less accumulated amortisation and
i impairment losses, if any. Gain or losses arising from derecognition of other intangible assets are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carryipg amount of the other intangible assets and are recognised in the stat t of income when
the asset is derecognised.

Subsequent eost

Subsequent cost is capitalised only when it i the future nic¢ benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All
the subsequent expenditure on other intangible asscts is recognised in of income , as incurred.

Amortisation

Amontisation is calculated to write off the cost of other intangible assets over their estimated usetul i ves as stated below using straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives of the amortizable intangible asset are as follows:

Goodwill Impairment;
The company tests goodwill for impairment annually. The management eonducts impairment assessment and compares the carrying
amount of goodwill with its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is computed based upon di 1 cash flow proj;

Estimated Useful Life
Asset Name No. of years
Softwares 1-13]




BCY SOCIAL LLC
Notes to the Finaneial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

8 Querading Lenses

Lease rent expenses on operating leases are charged to expense ever the lease term, Certain aperating lease agreements provide for
scheduled rent increases over the lease term. Rent expense for such leases is recognized on a straighl-line basis over the lease term,

9 Income Taxes
The company with khold has elected to be taxed as an 'Single Member LLC ' under the provisions of the Internal
Revenue Code and comparable state revenue tax law. As an 'Single Member LLC' the company is generally not subject to corporate
income taxes and the Company's' net income or loss is reported on the individual tax retumn of the stakeholders of the Company.
Therefore, no provision for liability on income tax or deffered tax is reflected in the financial statements.

10 easu ents and Finaneial
Assets and liabilities recorded at fair value in the financial statements are categorized based upon the level of judgment associated with
the inputs used to measure their fair value. Hicrarchical levels which are directly related to the amount of subjectivity associated with
the inputs to the valuation of these assets or liabilitics are as follows:

Level | - unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company has the ability to access as of the
measurement date,

Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included within Level | thal are directly observable for the asset or liability or indireetly
observable through corroboration with observable market data

Level 3 - unobservable inputs for the asset or liability only used when there is litte, if any, market activity for the asset or linhility at the

measurement date.
This hierarchy vequires the Company to use observable markel data, when available, and to minimize the use of unobservable inputs
when determining fair value
The Company's fi ial instr ist of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued
liabilities, The estimated fair value of cash, accounts receivable, aceounts payable and sccrued liabilities approximate their carrying
of these instr None of these instouments are held for trading purposes.
1Hc itments and Contil (3]

Liabilities for loss contingencies arising from claims, assessments litigations, fines, penalties, and cther sources are recorded wiiea it is
prulmblc that a liability Im been incurred and the amount can be reasonably estimated Legal costs incurred in connection with loss

ies arc expensed as incurred, Contingent liabilitics are not recognized but are disclosed in the notes. Contingent assets are
muhe.r recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements.

12 Recently jssued accounting standards not vet adupted

We have reviewed the recent g p and luded they are either not applicable to the business or no material
effect is ted on the financial stat as o result of future adoption,

P

Note C FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist principally of cash equivalents and
accounts receivable, By their nature, all accounts receivable involve risk including the credit risk of non-performance by counter
parties, In management's uplmnn, as of March 31, 2022 thcm was no significant risk of loss in the event of non-performance of the
counter parties to these cash equivalents and i

The Company's exposure to credit risk for the accounts mcewlbies is minimum. The average eredit period to settle accounts

receivables is about 30 to 60 days.
NoteD CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and Cash Equivalents, include the following:
Asat
March 31,2022
Balances with banks 242,542
Total 242,542

The company has no resiricted cash balance as at March 31, 2022




BCY SOCIAL LLC
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Note L ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES
A s receivable, net inelude the following;
As ut
Mareh 31,2022
Accounts and other receivable 2,485,511
Less: Allowance for doubtful (79,308
Total 2,406,203
Note F OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Other Current Assets, net include the following:
As at
Mareh 31,2022
Security deposits 19,569
Prepaid cxpenses 85,750
| Advances to employees 117,255
Total 222,574
Note G PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET
Property and equipment, net, comprises of
Particulary Computer &
Furniture and Fixtures Office Total
w £ +
Gross carrying value:
Balance as at | Apiil 2021 29,741 446,835 476,576
Additions - 59,378 59,378
Dispasals/ Adjustments - (88,042) (88,042)|
Balance as at 31 March 2022 29,741 418,171 447,912
A 1 A ﬁupl !l :
Balance asat | April 2021 24,158 299,627 323,785 |
Depreciation Expense 3413 42,645 46,058
Disposals/ Adjustments - (60,995) (60,995)|
Balance as at 31 March 2022 27,571 281,277 308,848
Net carrying value: L
Balance as at 31 March 2021 5,583 147,208 152,791
Balance as at 31 Murch 2022 2,170 136,894 139,064
Note H INTANGIBLE ASSETS, NET
Particulars Sofltwares Goodwlll Total
Gross carrying value:
Balance as at | April 2021 14,454,879 2,690,658 17,145,537
Balance as at 31 March 2022 14,454,879 2,690,658 | - 17,145,537
} lated “lllvl th L
Balance as at | April 2021 3,848,549 - 3,848,549
Amiortization Expense 1,647,447 - 1,647,442
Bal as at 31 March 2022 5,405,001 - 5,495,991
Net curying value:
Balance as at 31 March 2021 10,606,330 1,690,658 13,196,988
Balance us at 31 March 2022 8,958,888 2,600,658 11,649,546
P e
S0C/5 ™
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BCV SOCIAL LLC

Notes to the Financlal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Notel OTHER CURRENT LIARILITIES

Other Current Liabilitics, net i e the following:

As at

March 31,2022

Employee related paysble

150,007

Related Party Puyables

8,483,988

Statutary lisbilities

125,536

Advance from customer

116,858 |

Deferred Revenue

1,156,834

Accrued Expenges

38,817

Total

10,072,040

NoteJ COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

There are no Commitments and Contingent Liabilities as at 31st Mareh, 2022.

Note K RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related Party Nature of relation

RateGain Travel
Technologies Limited (India)

Ultimate Holding Company

RaleGain Intermediate Holding
Technologies Limited (LK) | Company

RateGain
Technologies Tne.(US)

Holding Company

Transactions with velated parties

Expenses incurred on behalf of

Amount as on March
31,2022

RateGain Technologies Inc., US

561,304

Expense incurred on our behalf by

RateGain Technologies Limited, UK

218,047

RateGain Technologies Inc., US

185,670

RateGain Travel Technologies Limited

760,842

Balances wjth related parties

Related Party

Transaction Type

i
Amount as on
Mareh 2022

RateGain Technologies Inc.(US)

Other current liability

7,869,463

RateGain Travel Technologics Limited (India)

Other current liability

298,249

RateGain Technologies Limited (UK)

Other current liability

116,276

(_:70(2;
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BCVSOCIALLLC
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2022

Note L EM 1T

Short Term Employce Beneflts;

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as thie related service is provided. A liability is gnized for the pected to be
puid if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as u result of past sevvice provided by the
employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Defined Benefit Employee Plans:
The contributions made by the pany under defined contribution plan are ized a3 an exy in the ofi

Note M REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

The following tables summarize revenues by region for the Mareh 31,2022;
Reglon Revenue Amount
Revenue from services provided in USA 10,099,467

Revenue disaggregated by liming of recognition: B,
For the year ended

March 31,2022
Services transferved over time 10,099,467
Total revenue by timing of recognition 10,099,467
NoteN GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
As at
March 31,2022

Advertising and marketing exy 1,923,146
Trade and other receivables (Provision created for Dad debis) 69,308
Bank charges 22,708 |
Communication charges 19,721

.| Contractual manpower cost A\ 363,302
[ Electicity charges 8,975
Legal and professional 25,558
Fees and subscriptions 622,535
Miscellanegus expenses 2,089 |
Office maintenance 27,449 |
Postage and courier charges . 2,175
Rent 185,776
Training & Recruitnient expenses 101,142
Travelling and conveyance 186,213
Loss on Assets theft 20,081
Total 3,578,270

Note O B]ﬁ. K AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Company's future results of operations involve several risks and uncertaintics. Factors that could affect the Company's future
operating results and cause actual results to vary materi Ily from exp ions include, competitive factors, including but not limited to
pricing pressures; deterioration in general economic conditions; the Company's ability to effectively manage opersting costs and
i perating efficiencies; declines in » technolagical and market changes; the ability to altract and retain qualified
pl and the Company's ability to exceute on its business plan,

&4

Note P SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent cvents have been evaluated till the date on which is the date the financial statcments were issued. No material subsequent
event has been noted. -

MNote Q Theopening balances as on April 1, 2021 derived from financial information that were not subject to audit as per US GAAP.




Myhotelshop GmbH
Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022
All amounts are in Euro unless otherwise stated

As at
Particulars Notes 31 March 2022
ASSETS
Mon-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 20,117
Right-of-use assets 4 103,463
Intangible assets 5 31,660
Financial assets
Loans 11 1,515,323
Invastments 12 3,000
Other financial assets ] 14,040
Deferred tax assels (net) 30 649,961
Total non-current assets 1,757,564
Current assets
Financial assets
Trade receivablas 9 1,270,350
Cash and cash equivalents 10 1,155,422
Other financial assels B 522,029
Other current assels a 26,045
Total current assets 2,973,848
Total assets 4,731,410
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity shara capital 13 1,070,341
Other equity 14 1,173,688
Total equity 2,244,029
LIABILITES
Mon-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Lease liakilities 16 47 468
Total non-current liabilities 47,468
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Lease liabilities 16 59,318
Trade payables 17 614,278
Other financial liabilities 18 2,705
Other current liabilitias 19 1,228,365
Current tax liabilities (net) 7 535,247
Total current liabilities 2,439,913
Total liabilities 2,487,381
Tatal equity and liabilities 4,731,410

Significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Myhot: p GmtiH

Bhanu Chopra
Managing Direclor
Date: May 13 2022
Place: Delhi




Myhotelshop GmbH

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss
for the period ended ended 31 March 2022
All amounts are in Euro unless otherwise stated

Period from
Particulars Notes 1 Sep 2021 to
31 March 2022
Revenue from operations 20 5,136,685
Other income 21 47 074
Total income 5,183,759
Expenses
Employee benefits axpensa 22 1,463,794
Finance costs 23 1,471
Depreciation and amorlisation axpensa 24 50,876
Other expenses 25 3,296,912
Total expenses 4,813,053
Profit befaore tax 370,706
Tax expense: 26
Current tax 163,937
Deferred tax (credit)/charge (48,373)
Total tax expense 107,564
Profit for the period 263,142
Other comprehensive income -
Total other comprehensive income “
Earnings per equity share (EPS)
Basic EPS 27 0.25
Diluted EPS 27 0.25
Significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
Fordnd on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Mygbt p GmbH

u Chopra
Managing Director
Date: May 13 2022
Place: Delhi
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Myhotelshop GmbH

Standalone Cash Flow Statement

for the period ended 31 March 2022

All amounts are in Euro unless otherwise stated

Particulars Period Ended
31 March 22
Operating activities
Profit before tax 370,706
Adjustments for:
Depraciation and amortisation expense 50,876
Finance cost 1.471
Allowance for expected credit loss 141,256
Operating profit before working capital changes and other adjustments 564,309
Working capital adjustments:
(Increase)f Decrease in trade receivables (630,183)
(Increase)f Decrease in financial assets 169,499
(Increase)! Decrease in other assals (12,474)
Increase/ (Decrease) in trade payable 35,837
Increase/ (Decrease) in other financial liabilities (126,037)
Increase/ (Decrease) in ather liabilities 88,627
Cash generated from operating activities 89,578
Income tax refund received / (paid) -
MNet cash generated from operating activities 89,578
Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (18,811)
Loan Recovered ( 572 407
Loan given (1,515,323)
Net cash used in investing activities (961,727)
Financing activities
Repayment of long-term borrowings (100,000)
Repayment of lease liabilities (35,109)
Net cash (used in) financing activities (135,109)
Net (decrease)fincrease in cash and cash equivalents (1,007,258)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the perlod ; 2,162,680
1,155,422

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period

Notes:

The Standalone Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the ‘Indirect method' as sat out in the Ind AS -7 on

‘Statement of Cash Flows'.

. Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities:

As at Cash Non-Cash
Particuiar 01 August 2021 | Inflows/(Outflows) Changes
Borrowings 100,000 (100,000) -
Lease liabilities 140,424 (35,109) 1,471
Total 240,424 (135,109) 1,471

For and on behalf of the Board of Directars of
Myhoty P H

Bhanu Qhopra
Maneging Director
Date: May 13 2022
Place: Delhi




Myhotelshop GmbH

Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity
for the period ended ended 31 March 2022
All amounts are in Euro unless otherwise stated

a. Equity share capital

Particulars Amount
Balance as at 31 August 2021 1,070,341
Changes in equity share capital during the pericd -
Balance as at 31 March 2022 1,070,341

b. Other equity

Particulars Share Equity share | Retained Total
premium |issuance costs| earnings

Balance as at 31 August 2021 143,959 {8,500} 775,087 910,546
Profit for the period - - 263,142 263,142
Balance as at 31 March 2022 143,959 (8,500)| 1,038,229 1,173,688

The deseription of the nalure and purpose of each reserve within equity is as follows:

Y

Share premium :
Share premium is credited when shares are issued at premium. |t is utlised in accordance with the local laws and regulations

2 Equity share issuance cost |
It is related to incremental costs directly attributable to issuing new aquity shares.

3 Retained earnings :
This represents undistributed accumulated earnings/losses of the Company as on the balance sheel date
For and ehalf of the Board of Directors of
Myhot P bH

Bh Chopra
Managing Diractor
Date: May 13 2022
Place: Delhi




Myhotelshop GmbH
Notes forming part of the Standalone financial statements
for the period ended 31 March 2022

2.1

(a)

(b)

(c)

Background

Myhatelshop GmbH (the 'Company’ or ‘the Holding Company') is registered under registration number 28024
in the German Commercial Register and domiciled in Germany, having its registered office at FloBplatz 6,
04107 Leipzig, Germany. The Company was incorporated on 31 January 2012. The Company is 100%
subsidiary of Rategain Technologies Limited based out in United Kingdom.

The Company is an Information Technology company providing innovative solutions to help clients in the
hospitality and travel industry to achieve their business goals. The Company connects hotel websites to major
meta searches and runs marketing campaigns to increase direct bookings and push the websites as a
distribution channel. The Company earns net market placement revenue from advertisement/media spends
and recurring monthly fee under packages such as campaign management, campaign management light, full
management, stc.

Significant accounting policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of this special purpose
standalone financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

RateGain Travel Technologies Limited, a SaaS company registered in India, ("RateGain”) has acquired
Myhotelshop GmbH through its subsidiary company RateGain Technologies Limited, a company registered
in United Kingdom, vide Sale and Purchase Agreement (SPA) entered on 10 September 2021, RateGain is
listed in the stock exchanges in India. The financial statement of RateGain is prepared in accordance with
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Indian Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule
3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Ind AS’) for the purpose of providing
information to the RateGain Travel Technologies Limited salely to enable it to prepare its standalone financial
statements

Accordingly, the special purpose standalone financial statements for the 7 months' period ended 31 March
2022 have been prepared in accordance with the Ind AS.

For all periods up to and including the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company prepared its financial
statements in accordance with the German statutory accounting and reporting requirements (German GAAP)
(hereinafter referred to as ‘Previous GAAP’) used for its statutory reporting requirementin Germany. However,
the previous financial statements are not audited as it is not required to be audited as per German statute.

Basis of measurement’
The standalone financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for certain financial
assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair value or amortized cost.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent liabilities at the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are based upon
management's best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and
astimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or
liabilities in future periods. Changes in estimates are reflected in the standalone financial statements in the
periad in which changes are made and if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the standalone
financial statements.

Information about significant areas of estimation /uncertainty and judgements in applying accounting policies
that have the mast significant effect on the standalone financial statements are as follows:




Myhotelshop GmbH
Notes forming part of the Standalone financial statements
for the period ended 31 March 2022

(d)

2.2

(a)

« judgment required to determine probability of recognition of deferred tax assets;

« impairment assessment of non-financial assets key assumptions underlying recoverable amount;

s impairment assessment of financial assets;

« measurement of financial guarantee contracts, provisions and contingent liabilities;

+ measurement of share-based payments, provisions and contingent liabilities;

« judgment required to ascertain lease classification, lease term, incremental borrowing rate, lease and
non-lease component, and impairment of ROU;

« judgement required to determine that the government grant will be received

o measurement of unbilled or deferred revenue

o cash flow projections and liquidity assessment with respect to Covid-19.

There are no assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material
adjustment within the next financial year except for as disclosed in these financial statements.

Fair value measurement
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

« In the principal market for the asset or liability, or .

¢ In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible lo / by the Company.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the standalone financial statements
are categarized within fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level of input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole.

« Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

« Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

s Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the standalone financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing
categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at
the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy
as explained above. !

Other significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to the periods presented in the
standalone financial statements.

Property, plant equipment

Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises: (a) its purchase price and non-refundable
purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates; (b) any costs directly attributable to bringing the
asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management.

%



Myhotelshop GmbH
Nates forming part of the Standalone financial statements
for the period ended 31 March 2022

(b)

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and direct
labour, any other cost directly attributable to bringing the item to working condition for its intended use.

The cost of improvements to leasehold premises, if recognition criteria are met, are capitalized and disclosed
separately under leasehold improvement.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognized upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising
on derecagnition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the standalone Statement of profit and loss when such asset is
derecognized.

Subsequent cost

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with expenditure will flow to
the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All aother subsequent cost is charged to
standalone Statement of profit and loss at the time of incurrence.

Depreciation
Depreciation on property, plant equipment is provided on the straight-line method computed on the basis of
estimated useful life on a pro-rata basis from the date the asset is ready to put to use.

Depreciation has been charged based on the following useful lives:
Asset description Useful life of asset (in years)

Office Furniture and Fixtures 3]

Depreciation is calculated on a full year basis in the year of purchase or sale for that year.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property plant and equipment are reviewed
by management at each reporting date and adjusted prospectively, as appropriate.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets that are acquired are recognised only if it is probable that the expected future economic
benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the Company and the cast of assets can be measured
reliably. The other intangible assets are recorded at cost of acquisition including incidental costs related to
acquisition and installation and are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if
any.

Gain or losses arising from derecognition of other intangible assets are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the other intangible assets and are recognised in the
standalone Statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

Subsequent cost

Subsequent cost is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits embadied in the specific
asset to which it relates. All the subsequent expenditure on other intangible assets is recognised in standalone
Statement of profit and loss, as incurred.

Amortization

Amortization is calculated to write off the cost of other intangible assets over their estimated useful lives as
stated below using straight-line method. Amortization is calculated on full year basis for assets purchased
/disposed during the year.

Amortization has been charged based an the following useful lives:
Asset description Useful life of asset (in years) ‘




Myhotelshop GmhH
Notes forming part of the Standalone financial statements
for the period ended 31 March 2022

‘ Computer software 5 :]

Amortization method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.

Leases

The Company as a lessee

The Company enters into an arrangement for lease of buildings. Such arrangements are generally for a fixed
period but may have extension or termination options. In accordance with Ind AS 116 — Leases, at inception
of the contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains a lease. A lease is defined as 'a
contract, or part of a contract, that canveys the right to control the use an asset (the underlying asset) for a
period of time in exchange for consideration’.

To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company
assesses whether:
s The contract involves the use of an identified asset — this may be specified explicitly or implicitly, and
should be physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity of a physically distinct asset.
If the supplier has a substantive substitution right, then the asset is nat identified;
e The Company has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset
throughout the period of use; and
e The Company assesses whether it has the right to direct ‘now and for what purpase’ the asset is used
throughout the period of use. At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease
component, the Company allocates the consideration in the cantract to each lease companent on the
basis of their relative stand-alone prices. However, for the leases of land and buildings in which itis a
lessee, the Company has elected not to separate non-lease components and account for the lease
and non-lease components as a single lease component.
Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee 5
The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The
right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted
for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and
an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the
site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated
impairment losses.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannat be readily
defermined, the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Company uses its incremental
borrowing rate as the discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the fallowing:
« fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;
e variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at the commencement date;
e amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and
o the exercise price under a purchase option that the Company is reasonably certain to exercise, lease
payments in an optional renewal period if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an
extension aption, and penalties for early termination of a |ease unless the Company is reasonably
certain not to terminate early.
The lease liahility is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when
there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in
the Company's estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if the
Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.
When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount



Myhatelshop GmbH
Notes forming part of the Standalone financial statements
for the period ended 31 March 2022

of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in Statement of profit and loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-
use asset has been reduced to zero, as the case may be.

The Company as a lessor

At the inception of the lease the Company classifies each of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance
lease. The Company recognises lease payments received under operating leases as income on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

(d) Impairment - non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication of impairment exists, then the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated. For impairment testing, assets are companyed together into the smallest
company of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash
inflows of other assets or cash generating units (‘CGU’). Goodwill arising from a business combination is
allocated to a CGU or companys of CGU that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its falr value less costs to
sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset ar CGU. An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
estimated recoverable amount.

Impairment losses are recognised in the standalone Statement of profit and loss. They are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU and then to reduce the carrying amounts of
the other assets in the CGU on a pro-rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. For other assets, an impairment loss is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal
is made only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

(e) Provisions and contingent liabilities

()

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive abligation as a result of a
past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Company. Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Employee benefit liabilities such as salaries, wages and bonus, etc. that are expected to be settled wholly within
twelve months after the end of the reporting period in which the employees render the related service are
recognised in respect of employee's services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at an
undiscounted amount expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. Grants related to employees’ costs
subsidy are deducted from the respective emplayee cost.

e
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Post-employment benefit plans
Defined benefit plans
There are no defined benefit plans in the Company.

Defined coniribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the Company pays fixed
contributions to the government and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts.
Payments to defined contribution plans are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributiens.

(g) Share based payments

(h)

The grant-date fair value of equity-settied share-hased payment arrangements granted to eligible employees
of the Company under the Employee Stock Option Scheme (‘ESOS') is recognised as employee stock option
scheme expenses in the standalone Statement of profit and loss, In relation to options granted to employees
of the Company (over the vesting period of the awards), with a corresponding increase in other equity. The
amount recognised as an expense toreflect the number of awards for which the related service and non-market
performance conditions are expected to be met, such that the amount ultimately recognised is based on the
number of awards that meet the related service and non-market performance conditions at the vesting date.
The increase in equity recognised in connection with a share based payment transaction is presented in the
"Employee stock options outstanding account’, as separate component in other equity. Far share-based
payment awards with market conditions, the grant- date fair value of the share-based payment is measured to
reflect such conditions and there is no true- up for differences between expected and actual outcomes. At the
end of each period, the Companyrevises its estimates of the number of options that are expected to be vested
based on the non-market performance conditions at the vesting date.

In case of cash-settled plan, fair value is determined on each reporting date and expense Is accordingly
recognised in the statement of profit and loss with a carresponding increase to the ESOP liability.

If vesting periods or other vesting conditions apply, the expense is allocated over the vesting period, based
on the best available estimate of the number of share options expected ta vest. Upon exercise of share
options, the proceeds received, net of any directly attributable transaction costs, are allocated to share capital
up to the nominal (or par) value of the shares issued with any excess being recorded as share premium.
The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted
earnings per share.

Income taxes

Income tax expense comprises of current tax and deferred tax. Itis recognised in the standalone profit or loss
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and
any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax
reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty,
if any relating to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates enacted for the relevant reporting period.
Current lax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts, and it is intended to realize the asset and settle the liability on a net basis.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are

recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can
be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit may not be
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(M

)

available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Company recognizes a deferred tax asset only
to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing other evidence that
sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realized. Deferred tax
assels - unrecognized or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised / reduced to
the extent that it is probable / no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized
or liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting
date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax liabilities and assets levied by the same tax authorities.

Functional and presentation currency

The management has determined the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company
operates, i.e., the functional currency, to be Euro. The financial statements are presented in Euro, which is
the Company's functional and presentation currency. All amounts have been rounded to the nearest Euro,
unless otherwise stated. Consequent to rounding off, the numbers presented throughout the document may
not add up precisely to the totals and percentages may not precisely reflect the absolute amounts.

Foreign currency transactions

Monetary and non-monetary transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional
currency of the Company at the exchange rates at the date of the transactions.

Monetary foreign currency assets and liabilities remaining unsettled on reporting date are translated at the
rates of exchange prevailing on reporting date. Gains/(losses) arising on account of realization/settlement
of foreign exchange transactions and on translation of monetary foreign currency assets and liabilities are
recognised in the standalone Statement of profit and loss.

Foreign exchange gains / (losses) arising on translation of foreign currency monetary loans are presented
in the standalone Statement of prafit and loss on net basis.

(k) Revenue recognition

Revenue from Contracts with Customers, revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised
services to customers. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable,
excluding discaunts, incentives, performance bonuses, price concessions, amounts collected on behalf of
third parties, or other similar items, if any, as specified in the contract with the customer. Revenue is recorded
pravided the recovery of consideration is probable and determinable.

Revenue from operations is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured.

Revenue from sale of services in case of hospitality sector is recognised over the specified subscription period
on straight line basis or on the basis of underlying services performed, as the case may be, in accordance
with the terms of the contracts with customers and in case of travel sector the same is recognised when the
related services are performed as per the terms of contracts.

Contract assets are recognised when there is excess of revenue earned over billings on contracts. Contract
assets are classified as unbilled receivables (only act of inveicing is pending) when there is unconditional
tight to receive cash, and only passage of time is required, as per contractual terms.

&
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The Company defers unearned and deferred revenue, including payments received in advance, until the
related subscription period is complete or underlying services are performed.

Service income

Revenue from marketing support services, management fee, set-up fee and auxiliary and business support
services are in terms of agreements with the customers and are recognised on the basis of satisfaction of
performance obligation over the duration of the contract from the date the contracts are effective or signed
provided the consideration is reliably determinable and no significant uncertainty exists regarding the
collection. The amount recognised as revenue is net of applicable taxes.

Interest income
Interest income on financial assets (including deposits with banks) is recognised using the effective interest
rate method.

() Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables and debt instruments are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial
assets are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All financial assets are initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through
standalone Statement of profit and loss, transaction costs that are attributable to its acquisition or use.

Classification
For the purpose of initial recognition, the Company classifies its financial assets in following categories:

» Financial assets measured at amortized cost;
« Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI); and
» Financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the
Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset being ‘debt instrument' is measured at the amortized cost if both of the fallowing conditions
are met:
« The financial asset is held within a business model whose cbjective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and
« The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are Solely
Payments of Principal and Interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

A financial asset being ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:
«  The assetis held within the business model, whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual
cash flows and selling the financial assets, and
e The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are SPPlon
the principal amount outstanding.

A financial asset being equity instrument is measured at FVTPL.
All financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTOCI as described above are measured
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at FVTPL.
Subsequent measurement

Financial assets at amortized cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amartized cost using the effective interest method. The
amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses, if any. Interest income and impairment are recognised in
the standalone Statement of profit and loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest income,
are recognised in the standalone Statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the
Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not
retain control of the financial asset. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in the standalone
Statement of profit and loss.

Impairment of financial assets (other than at fair value)

The Company recognizes loss allowances using the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for the financial
assets which are not fair valued through profit and loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no
significant financing componentis measured atan amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all other financial assets,
expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition, in which case those financial assets are measured
at lifetime ECL. The changes (incremental or reversal) in loss allowance computed using ECL model, are
recognised as an impairment gain or loss in the standalone Statement of profit and loss.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there
is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the
counterparty does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to write-off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to
enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company's procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Financial liabilities

Recognition and initial measurement

All financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value minus, for an item not
at fair value through profit and loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the liability.

Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is
designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net
gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in the standalone Statement of profit and
loss.

Financial liabilities other than classified as FVTPL, are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method. Interest expense are recognised in standalone Statement of profit and loss. Any
gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in the standalone Statement of profit and loss.

i



Myhotelshop GmbH
Notes forming part of the Standalone financial statements
for the period ended 31 March 2022

Derecoghition

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or

expired.

The Company also derecognizes a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under
the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on modified terms
is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished
and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in the standalone Statement of profit and
loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount presented in the standalone Balance
Sheet when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts
and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

(m) Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its equity shares. Basic EPS is
calculated by dividing the standalone Statement of profit and loss attributable ta equity shareholders of the
Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is
determined by adjusting standalone Statement of profit and loss attributable to equity shareholders and the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding, for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares,
which comprise share options granted to employees.

The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted retraspectively for all periods
presented for any share splits and bonus shares issues including for changes effected prior to the approval
of the financial statements by the Board of Directors. i

(n) Current and non-current classification

All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current.

Assets ;
An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or cansumption in, the Company's normal operating
cycle;
o itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
e itis expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting date; or :
e itis cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets. All other assets are classified as
non-current.

Liabhilities
A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
o itis expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle;
e itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
e itis due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting period; or
s the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting period.

Current liabilities include the current portion of non-current financial liabilities. All other liabilities are classified
as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

i
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(o)

(p)

(q)

(r)

(s)

(t)

Operating cycle

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash
or cash equivalents. Based on the nature of operations and the time between the acquisition of assets for
processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating
cycle being a pericd of 12 months for the purpose of classification of assets and liabilities as current and
non- current.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprises of cash at banks and short-term deposits with an original maturity of
three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Segment reporting
As the Company'’s business activity primarily falls within a single segment which is providing innovative
solutions to help clients in the hospitality and travel industry to achieve their business goals. The
geographical segments considered are "within Germany”, “within European Union" and “outside European
Union” and are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating
Decision Maker ("CODM") of the Company who monitors the operating results of its business units not
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. The
CODM is considered to be the shareholder who make strategic decisions and is responsible for allacating
resources and assessing the financial performance of the operating segments. The analysis of geographical

segments is based on geographical location of the customers.

Exceptional items
Exceptional iterns are transactions which due to their size or incidence are separately disclosed to enable a
full understanding of the Company’s financial performance.

Cash flow statement
Cash flows are reported using indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects
transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments.
The cash flows from regular revenue generating, financing and investing activities of the Company are
segregated. Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow comprise cash at bank, cash/cheques in hand and
short-term investments with an original maturity of three months or less.

Share issue expense
Share issue expenses of an equity transaction are accounted for as a deduction from equity to the extent
they are incremental costs directly attributable to the equity transaction that otherwise would have been
avoided.

Government Grant
Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply
with the conditions attached to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a systematic basis over the years
in which the Company recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to
compensate or when performance obligations are met.

Grants related to income and reimbursement of fixed costs are presented as part of profit or loss separately
under ‘Other income'. Grants related to employees’ costs subsidy are deducted from the related expense.

The benefit of a government loan at a below-market rate of interest and effect of this favourable interest is
treated as a government grant. The loan or assistance is initially recognised at fair value and the government
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grant is measured as the difference between proceeds received and the fair value of the loan based on
prevailing market interest rates and recognised to the income statement immediately on fulfillment of the
performance obligations. The loan is subsequently measured as per the accounting policy applicable to
financial liabilities.

(u) New and amended standards adopted by the company

The company has applied the following amendments to Ind AS for the first time for their annual reporting
period commencing 1 April 2021:

- Extension of COVID-19 related concessions — amendments to Ind AS 116

« Interest rate benchmark reform — amendments to Ind AS 108, Financial Instruments, Ind AS 107, Financial
Instruments: Disclosures, Ind AS 104, Insurance Contracts and Ind AS 116, Leases.

The amendments listed above did not have any impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and are
not expected to significantly affect the current or future periods.

(v) New amendments issued but not effective
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has vide notification dated 23 March 2022 notified Companies (Indian
. Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022 which amends certain accounting standards, and are

effective 1 April 2022. These amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the company In the
current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable future transactions.
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3 Property, plant and equipment

Gross carrying value:
Balance as at 31 August 2021
Additians for the period
Balance as at 31 March 2022
Accumulated depreclation:
Balance as at 31 August 2021
Charge for the period

Balance as at 31 March 2022

Net carrying value:

Balance as at 31August 2021
Balance as at 31 March 2022

Right-of-use assets

Gross carrying value:
Balance as at 31 August 2021
Additions for the period
Balance as at 31 March 2022
Accumulated amortisation:
Balance as at 31 August 2021
Charge for the period

Balance as at 31 March 2022

Net carrying value:

Balance as at 31 August 2021
Balance as at 31 March 2022

Office furniture
and fixtures

Total amount

109,763 109,763
18,811 18,811
128,574 128,574
97,961 97,961
10,496 10,498
108,457 108,457
11,802 11,802
20,117 20417

Office building

Total amount

233,315 233,315
233,315 233,315

96,187 96,187

33,665 33,665
129,852 129,852
137,128 137,128
103,463 103,463
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5 Intangible assets

Softwares Total amount
Gross carrying value:
Balance as at 31 August 2021 91,260 91,260
Additions for the period - -
Balance as at 31 March 2022 91,260 91,260
Accumulated amortisation:
Balance as at 31 August 2021 52,885 52,885
Charge far the period 6,715 6,715
Balance as at 31 March 2022 59,600 59,600

Net carrying value:

Balance as at 31 August 2021 38,375 38,375
Balance as at 31 March 2022 31,660 31,660
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6 Other financial assets
(Unsacured and co o good at

f eost)

Non-current
Sacurily deposils

Current
Interest recsivables
Unkilled revenus?

T Asat
31 March
2022

14,040

14,040

22,809
469,130

522,029

AUnbilled revenue pertains to manthly outstanding invaices which ara ralsed and approved in the

subsequant financial year

T Income 1ax assels and liabilities

Gurrent tax labilities
Income tax payable

] Other assets
{unsecured and considsred good)

Currant

Prepaid expenses
Advance to suppller
Advences to employees
Others

9 Trade receivables

Unsecured, considered good
Less; Loss allowance (refer note 31(fi}a))

535,247
535,247

10,957
2,740
1,330

11,008

26,045

1,677,035
(308,685)

1,270,350
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1

T Asat

31 March
2022
Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks
- In currant accaunt 1,155,422
1!155!421

Thera are no repatriation restictions with regard lo cash and cash equivalznts as at end of reperting pericd
and prior periods.

Non-current loan

Unsecured, considered good
Rategain Technologies Limited*® 1,515,323

1,515,323
** The loan was granted to Rategain Technologies Lid, the Parent company. The company has
diskursed the loan amounting to Eure 15,15,323 In the manth of January 2022. The repayment of loan

shall shall be mada in one amount an termination date ( Le. 31st December, 2026). The outstanding laan
halanee would canry an interezt @ 7% p.a. payable on a quarterly basis.

Man Gurrent Investmant

Investment in subsidiary 3,000
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13 Equity share capital

Subscribed capital

1,070,341 equity shares of Euro 1 each fully paid up

Notes:

(i) Terms and rights attached to equity shares

As at
31 March
2022

1,070,341

1,070,341

The Company has only one class of equily shares having a par value of Euro 1 per share, Each holder of equity shares is
antitlad to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of tha Company, holder of equity shares will be entitled to receive
remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amount. The distribution will be in proportion to the

number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

a Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the period:

Particulars

As at

31 March 2022

Mo of Shares Amount

Equily shares cutstanding at the beginning of the period 1,070,341 1,070,341
Add : |ssued during the perind = 3
Equity shares outstanding at the end of the periad 1,070,341 1,070,341
iii) Shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5 percent shares:
Particulars As at
31 March
2022

Rategain Technologies Limited

(iv) Details of shareholding of promoters:

Sr. Promoter namea At the end of 31st March 2022
No
No of % of % Change
Shares total  during the
shares year
1 |Rategain Technologies Limited 1,070,341 100% 0%

1,030,000

(v) No shares have baen issued by the Company for consideration other than cash, during the period of five years immediately

preceding the reporting periods.
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As at
31 March 2022

14  Other equity

Share premium 143,959

Retained earnings 1,038,229

Equity share issuance cosls (8,500)
1,173,688

14.1 Share premium

Balance at the beginning of the period 143,959
Change during the period -
Balance at the end of the period 143,959

14,2 Retained earnings

Balance at lhe beginning of the periad 775,087
Prafit for the period 263,142
Balance at the end of the period 1,038,229

Retained earnings are created from the profit / loss of tha Company, as adjusted for distributions to owners, transfers
to other reserves, elc.

14.3 Equity share issuance costs

Balance at the beginning of the periad (8,500)
Incurred during the period =
Balance at the end of the period {8,500)
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16

17

18

19

As at
31 March
2022
Lease liabilities
Office and Buildings
MNon-current
Opaning Balance 140,424
Add : Interest expense 1,471
Less : Paymenls during the period 35,108
106,786
Less ! Classified to currant 59,318
Lease liabilities 47 468
47,468
Current
Lease liabilities 59,318
T 59,318
Trade payables
Trade payables 614,278
614,278
Ageing for trade payables outstanding as at March 31, 2022 is as follows:
tstanding for following periods from due date of paymer
Particulars Not Due Total
Less than HSVERE DL More than 3
1 Year Years
Trade Payable
Oihers 527,310 26,714 - - 554,024
Disputed dues - Others - - - - -
Accrued expensas 80,891 60,891
588,201 26,714 - - 614,815
Other financial liabilities
Current
Payable to Trivago 2,705
2,705
Other liabilities
Current
Advances from cuslomers 66,053
Stalutory liabilities 207,798
Provisicns for employee benefits 143,826
Defarred revenua 810,608

1,228,365
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20

Note:

(b

Period from
1 Sen 2021 to
31 March 2022

Revenue from operations

Sale of services 5,136,685

5,136,685

Disaggregated revenue information
Sat oul belaw is the disaggregation of the company's revenue from contracts with customers:

Particulars Period from
1 Sep 2021 to
31 March 2022

Type of services
Market placement and other consultancy fees 5,136,685

Total revenue from contracts with customers 5,136,685

Geographical region

Germany 3,912,332
European Union other than Germany 509,436
Other countries 714,917
Total revenue from contracts with customers 5,136,685

Timing of recognition
Revenue recognised al a point of time 5,136,685

Tatal revenue from contracts with customers 5,136,685

Assets and liabilities related to contracts with customers

Trada receivables 1,270,350
Unbilled revenus 499,130
Advances from customers 66,053
Deferred revenue 810,688

Remaining performance obligations as at the reporting date are expected to be substantially
racognised over the next reporting period by the Company.

{c) Revenue recognised in relation contract liabilities

Contract liabilities related to sale of services
Advances from customers 66,053
Deferred revenue 810,688

(d) Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the

contracted price

Revenue as per contracted price 5,136,685
Adjustments:

Rebate -
Revenue from contracts with customers 5,136,685

Other income

Government grant income 10,000
|nterest income 22,429
Other miscellaneous income 14,645

47,074
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22

23

24

25

Employee benefits expense
Salaries and wages

Contribution te social securilies
Staff welfare expenses

Finance costs

Interest on lease liabilities

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

Amortisation of right of use assats
Amortisaticn of intangible assets

Other expenses

External Services

Legal and professional fees

Rent and other space costs(Refer note 29)
Paostage, talephane and internet expenses
Licenses and concessions expenses
Vehicle running and maintenance

Training and recruitment expenses
Insurance and other charges

Travelling and conveyance

Bank charges

Loss on foreign exchange (net)

Office supplies and incidental expenses
Gifts, hospitality and attentions
Adverlising and sales promolion expenses
Allowance for expected cradit loss

Bad debts

Miscellanecus expenses

Total

Period from
1 Sep 2021 to
31 March 2022

1,214721
223,315
25,758

1,463,794

—_————

1,471
1,471

10,496
33,665
8,715

50,876

2,730,875
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Period from
1 Sept 2021 to

31 March
2022
26  Income taxes

Income tax recognised in the Standalone statement of profit and loss

Current tax

In respect of the current period 153,937
153,937

Deferred tax

In respect of the currant petiod (46,373)
(46,373)

Total income tax expense recognised in the current period 107,564

The Income tax expense for the period can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:

Profit before tax 370,708
Statutory income tax rate 31.925%
Incema tax expense at statutory income tax rate 118,348
Others (10,784)

107,564

27 Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the period attributable to equity holders by the weighted!
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period,

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the period attributable to equity holder by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period plus the weighted average number of equity shares
that would be issued on conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares.

The following reflects the incoma and share data used in the basie and diluted EPS computations:

J Period from
Particulars 1 September 2021 to
31 March 2022

Earnings attributable to equity holder of the Holding Company 263,142
Weighted average number of equity shares 1,070,341
Basic EPS ' 0.25

Diluted EPS 0.25
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28

29

Segmient reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the Internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Declslon
Maker ("CODM") of the company. The CODM is considered to be the Managing Director who makes strategic decisions and
is respensible for allocating resources and assassing the financial performance of the operating segments.

The company's business activity falls within a single segment, which is providing innovative solutions to help clients in the
hospitality and travel industry to achieve their business goals, in terms of Ind AS 108 on Segment Reporting, Information
about relevant gecgraphy wide disclosure are as follows:

Particulars Period from
1 September 2021 to
31 March 2022

Revenue from external customers by location of the customers #

(i} Garmany 3,912,332
(i) European Union other than Germany 509,436
(ili) Other countries 714,917
Total 5,136,685
Particulars As at

31 March 2022

Non-current assets *

(i) Germany 155,240
(ii) European Union other than Garmany =

(iii) Other countries =

 Nan-current assels, other than financial instruments and income tax assets (nel)/fefarrad lax assat (nai).

Particulars Period from

1 September 2021 to
31 March 2022

Single external customer of the company contributing 10% or mare of the 1,024 297
company’s total revenue

#R hers are after inft ipany eliminations.

Leases

The company has leases for office buildings and apartments, With the exception of short-term leases and leases of low-value
underlying assets, each lease is reflected on the balance sheet as a right-of-use asset and a lease liability. The company
classifies its righl-of-use assets in a consistent manner to Its property, plant and equipment. The company has recorded two
offica leasa as right-of-use assets which has average lease lerm of 5 years and average remaining lease term of 2 years.
Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension opfions are also included in the measurement of the lease
liability. The lease payments are discounted using incremental borrowing rate of the company, being the rate the company
waould have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to he right-of-use asset in a similar
enviranment with similar terms, security and conditions.

Amounts recognised In the Standalone statement of profit or loss:

Particulars Period from
1 September 2021 to
31 March 2022

Amortisaticn on right-of-use assets 33,665
Interast on lease liabllities 1471
Expenses relating to short-term leasas (5,017}
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30 Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets in relation to:
Loss allowance for deubtful debts
Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities

Deferred tax assets (net)

(a) Mavement in deferred tax liabilities for the period ended 31 March 2022 s as follows:

As at
31 March
2022

68,900
1,061

T 69,861

Opening Closing
Balance Recognise balance
d in Profit
or loss
Deferred tax assets in relation to:
Lass allowance for doubtiul debts 22,536 48,364 68,900
Right-of-use assets and lease llabilities 1,052 9 1,061
23,588 46,373 69,961
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31 Related party disclosures
(1) Relationship with related parties:

(a) Parent company
MHS Ventures (upto 31st August 2021)
Rategain Technologies Limited, United Kingdom (w.e.f: 1st September 2021)

{b) Key management personnel (KMP):
Mr. Ullrich Kastner (Chief Executive Oificer and Managing Director upto 30the Seplember 2021)
Mr. Bhanu Chopra (Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director w.e.f 1st October 2021)

() Transactions with related parties during the period 1 September 2021 to 31 March 2022:

Particulars Period from
1 September 2021
to 31 March 2022

Other expenses

Rategain Technologies Limited, United Kingdom 49 887
Loan given

Rategain Technologies Limited, United Kingdom 1,515,323
Interest income

Rategain Technelogies Limited, United Kingdom 22,899
Compensation to KMPs

Mr. Ullrich Kastner 30,385

(I} Outstanding Balances

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 August 2021
(i) Payables
Rategain Technolagies Limited, United Kingdom 49 687 =
Mr, Ullrich Kastnar 5176 5

(i} Loan receivable
Rategain Technologies Limited, United Kingdom 1,515,323 “
MHS Ventures (upto 31st August 2021) - 572,407

(iii} Interest receivable
Rategain Technologles Limited, United Kingdom 22,899 -
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32 Fair value measuremenls

1) Financial instruments by category

As at 31 March 2022

R FVTPL Amortised cost
Financial assets
Trade receivables - 1,270,350
Cash and cash equivalents - 1,155,422
Loans - 1,515,323
Other financial assels - 536,080
Tatal - 4,477,164
Financial liabilities
Lease liabilities - 106,786
Trade payables - 614,278
Other financial labililies - 2,705
Total - 723,769

i) Fair value hierarchy

Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value in the slandalone balance sheet are divided into three levels of a fair value hierarchy. The three
levels are defined basad on the observability of significant inputs to the measurement, as follows:

Level 1: Quotad prices (unadjusted) in active markets for financial instruments.
Level 2: The fair value of financlal nstruments that are not traded in an active market is detarmined using valuation techniques which maximise the use aof
observable market data rely as litile as passible on entity specific estimates.
Level 3: If one or more af the significant inputs is not based on observable market dala, the instrument is included in level 3.

a. Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost:
The carnying amounls of trade receivables, trade payables, cash and cash equivalants, ather bank balances, other current financials assets and llabilities are
considered to be the same as thelr falr values, due to thair shorl-term nature.

The company has barrawings at fixed interest rate. Therefare, the management eslimates that the fair valus of thase borrowings are approximate to their

raspective carrying values.

For financial assels and liabilities that are measured al fair value, the carrying amounts are equal to the fair values.

iii) Financlal risk management

The company's aclivilies expose it to market risk, liqui

dity risk and credit risk. The company's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and

oversight of the company's risk managemant framework, This note explains the scurcas of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk
and the related impact in the financial statements.

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Managemeant
Credil risk Cash and cash equivalents, trade Ageing analysis Bank deposits, diversification of assat
receivables, financial assats basa, cradit limits and collateral.
measured at amortised cost
Liquidity risk Borrowings and other liabilities Rolling cash flow forecasts Availability of committed credit fines and ,
borrowing facllities
a. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty fails lo discharge an obligation to the company. The company is axposed to this risk for varous financial instruments, for
example by granting loans and receivables to cuslomers, placing deposils, elc. The caompany's maximum exposure to credit risk is imited to the carrying amount of

following types of financlal assels.
- cash and cash equivalents,
- trade receivables,

- loans and receivables carried at amortised cost, and

- deposits with banks



Myhotelshop GmbH
Notes forming part of the Standalone financial statements

for the period ended ended 31 March 2022
All amounts are in Euro unless otherwise stated

a. Credit risk (continued)
The maximum exposure to credit risks is reprasented by the total carrying amount of these financial assets in the Standalone balance sheat:

As at
Parti
el 31 March 2022
Leans {current and non currant) 1,515,322
Trade raceivables 1,270,350
Cash and cash equivalents 1,155,422
Othar financial assets (current and non-current} 536,069

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits {shown under other bank balances) and other financial assets Is limited as the company generally
invests In deposits with banks with high credil ratings assigned by domestic credit rating agencles. The loans primarily represents loan given to related parties and
amployees. Other financlal assets measured at amartized cost includes security depasits and others. Credit risk related to these other financial assals is managed
by monitaring the recoverability of such amounts continuously,

The exposure to the cradit risk at the reporting date s primarily fram sacurity deposils and (rade recaivables.

Trade recelvables are typically unsecurad and are derived from revenue earnad from customers primarily located in Germany, Spain and other Eurpean countries.
The company does manitor the economic envirenment in which it operates. The company manages Its credit risk through eredit approvals, establishing credit mits
and continuously monitoring credit worthiness of customers to which the company grants credit terms in the normal course of business.

The company uses expected credit lass madel lo assess the impairment loss. Credit risk In security deposits considered ta be low as they form part of other
commeralal arrangements such as leases, therefore security deposit are Impaired only when thare is objective evidence of impairment. The company uses a
provision malrix to compute the expected credii loss allowance for rade receivables. The pravision matrix takes into account availabla intermal credit risk factors
such as the company's historical experience for custemers, Based on ihe business environment in which the company operates, management considers that the
trade receivables are in default (eredit impaired) if the payments are more than 180 days and 385 days for past due as applicable lo respaclive company entity,
however, the company based upon past trends determine an impairment allowancea for loss on receivables (other than receivables from relaled partias).

Refer note 9 for bifurcation of trade receivables into credit impaired and others.

Changes in the loss allowance in respact of trade receivables For the period
1 Sept 2021 to
31 March 2022

Balance at the beginning of the year 166,429
Change in impairment allowances for raceivables 141,256
Balance at the end of the year 306,685

The management believes that no further provision is necassary in respect of trade recelvables based an historical trends of these cuslomers.

The aging of trade recelvables at the reponing date was as follows;

Particluars For the Period
ended 31
March 2022
Mot Due 653,873
Lass than 6 Maonlhs 794,686
6 Maonths - 1 Year S 37,679
More than 1 Years 80,797
Gross Trade Receivable 1,577,035
Lass allowance {306,685)
Met Trade Receivable 1,270,350

b. Liguidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk thal the company may encounter difficulty in meeting its present and future obligations associated with financial liabilities that are required to
be settled by delivering cash or anather financial assel. The company's cbjective is to, at all imes maintain optimum levels of liquidity to mes! its cash and collateral
obligations. Ulimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the shareholders. The company's manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate
reserves, banking faciliies and reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously manitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of
financial assets and liabilities Management menitors ralling farecasts of the company's liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents an the basis of expacted
cash flows.



Myhotelshop GmbH

Notes forming part of the Standalone financial statements
for the period ended ended 31 March 2022

All amounts are In Euro unless otherwise stated

b,

a3

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Maturities of financial liabilities

The tables below analyse the company’s finandial iabililies into relevant maturity companyings based on their contractual maturities for all non-derivative
financial liabllities. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

31 March 2022 Carrying amount | Less than 1 year 1-5 year More than Total

5 years
Non-derivatives
Lease liabilities 106,786 59,318 47 468 - 106,786
Trade payables 614,278 614,278 - - 614,278
QOther financial iabilities 2,705 2,705 = - 2,705
Total 723,769 676,301 47,468 - 723,769

Market risk - Interest rate risk

The company's policy is to minimise interest rate cash flow risk exposures on long-lerm financing. At the reparting periods end, the company s not expased to
changes in market interest rates as all borrowings are at fixed interest rates.

. Market risk - Price risk

The company does not have invetments held and classified in the balance sheat at fair value through profit or loss. Hence, the company does not have price risk.

Capital management policies and procedures

Tha company’s objective for capital management Is to maximize shareholder's value, safeguard business continuity and suppert the growth of the company. The
company determines the capital requiremant basad on annual cperating plan and other stralegic investment plans. The company aims to manage its capital
efficiently so as to safeguard its abllity to continue as a going cancern and to oplimiza returns ta all its sharehalders. The company’s funding requirements are met
through equily infusicns and internal accruals an long-term borrowings. The company raises long term loans mastly for ts expansion requirements and based on
the working capltal requirement utllise the working capital facllities. The company manitors capital on the basis of standalona total debt to standalone lotal equily an
a periodic basis.

The amounts managed as capital by the company's for the reporling periods under review are summarised as follows:

As at
Particulars 31 March 2022
Long-term barrowings =
Total borrowings =
Less:
Cash and cash equivalents 1,155,422
Net debts (1,155,422)
Total equity* 2,244,029
Net debt to equity ratio #

*Equity includes equity share capital and other aquity of the company that are managed as capital.
# The company has no debt as at March 31, 2022, Hence, net debt to equity ratio has not been calculated.

M
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Notes forming part of the Standalone financial statements
for the period ended ended 31 March 2022
All amounts are in Euro unless otherwise stated

33 Additional Reulatory Information

Ratias
Particulars Numerator Denominator 31st March 2022

| Current Ratio Total current assets Total current Liabilities 1.22

Il Debt Equity Ratio Total Debt Total Equity -

Il Debt Service Coverage Ratio Earning for Debt Service = Net Profit  Debt service = Interest and |ease 2.34

after taxes + Non-cash operating payments + Principal repayments #
expenses + Interest + Other non-cash
adjustment

IV Return on Equity Profit for the year less Preference Average total equity 11.73%

dividend (if any)

V' Inventory turnover Revenue from operations Average Inventory -
VI Trade Receivable turnover Ratio Revenue from operations Average trade receivables 5.02
VIl Trade Payable turnover Ratio Cost of External Services Average trade Payable 4.58
VIII Net Capital Turnover ratic Revenue from operations Average working capital (i.e. Total

current assets less Total current
liabilities 9.62
IX Net Profit Ratio Profit for the year Revenue from operations 5.12%
X Return on capital employed Profit before tax and finance costs Capital employed = Net worth + Lease
liahilities + Deferred tax liabilities
15.83%
Xl Return on Investment Final value of Investment - Initial Value
of Investrment Initial Value of Investment *x

# The Company does nol have any debt however, repayment of lease liability Is considered for the calculation of Debt Servicing Ratio as

per the Guidance Note on Schedule Il issued by the Institute of Charterad Accountancy of India,

* The Company is in service sector and hence inventory turnover ratio is not applicable to the Company
** The Company does nol have any investment and hence the stated analytical ratia is not applicable
34 The outbreak of coronavirus (COVID-18) pandamic globally is causing significant disturbance and slowdown of economic aclivity, The

company's operations were impacted due to restriction on travel and hotel accommodation during the nationwide lockdown. As a
result of lockdown, the volumes for the period/year have been impacted. Further, the company has considered the possible effects
that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 on the carrying amounts of receivables and other assets. In developing the
assumptions relating to the possible future uncertainties in the global econamic condition because of the pandemic, the company, as
at the date of the approval of these standalone financial statements has used internal and external sources on the expected future
performance of the company. Based on current indicators of future conditions, the company expecls the carrying amount of these will
be recavered and sufficient liquidity is available to fund the business operations. Given the uncertainty because of COVID-19, the final
impact on the company's assets in future may differ from the estimated as at the date of approval of the standalone financial
statements,

Faor and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Myhote p bH

Bh hopra
Managing Director
Date: May 13 2022
Place: Delhi




Shridhar & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Directors of
Myhotelshop GmbH

Report on audit of special purpose Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the special purpose consolidated financial statements of Myhotelshop GmbH (*the
Holding Company™), and it’s a subsidiary (Holding Company and it’s a subsidiary together refer to as
“the Group™) which comprise:

(a) the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2022;

(b) the consolidated statement of profit and loss accounts (including other comprehensive income),
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash flow statement for the period
beginning from 1 September 2021 to 31 March 2022; and

(c) notes to the special purpose consolidated financial statements. including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as
“the special purpose consolidated financial statements™) .

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid special purpose consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Indian
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the
Group as at 31 March 2022, of its consolidated profit and other comprehensive income, consolidated
changes in equity and its cash flows for the period ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Audiror’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Special Purpose Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the special purpose consolidated financial statements in terms of the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, and the relevant provisions of the Act, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion
on special purpose consolidated financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter — Basis of Accounting and Restriction on Distribution and Use

We draw attention to Note 2 to the special purpose consolidated financial statements, which describes
the basis of preparation, The special purpose consolidated financial statements are prepared to assist a
parent company to comply with the accounting principle generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act for the purpose of
preparing a consolidated financial statement under the requirement of section 129(3) of the Companies
Act, 2013. As a result, the special purpose consolidated financial statements may not be suitable for
another purpose. Our report is intended solely for Parent company and should not be distributed to or
used by parties other than Parent company. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

—
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Shridhar & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Special Purpose
Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and
presentation of these special purpose consolidated financial statements in terms of the requirements of
the Act that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial
performance, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Ind AS specified under section
[33 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the special purpose consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the special purpose consolidated financial statements, the management and board of
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so. The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Special Purpose Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the special purpose consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these special purpose consolidated financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional Judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

® Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the special purpose consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

® Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

® Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

estimates and related disclosures made by management. o
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Shridhar & Associates
Chartered A ccountants

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Special Purpose Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the special purpose consolidated financial statements or, if such

® Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the special purpose consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all relationships and other

safeguards.
Other Matter

The special purpose consolidated financial statements of the Group upto 31 August 2021 were not
audited,

For Shridhar and Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 134427W

A Lo
\ " e JI Abhishek Pachlangia
LS 74 Partner
Place: Mumbai Membership No. 120593
Date: May 13, 2022 UDIN: 22120593A1YDAO6565
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Myhotelshop GmbH
Special purpose consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022
All amounts are in Eure unless otherwise stated

As at As at
Paciauier - 31 March 2022 31 August 2021
Audited Unaudited
ASSETS
Mon-current assets
Property, plant and equipmant 3 20117 11,802
Right-of-usa assels 4 103,463 137,128
Intangible asssls 5 31,660 48,375
Financial assels
Loans i 1,518,923 572,407
Othar financial assets 6 18,040 18,040
Nan-current tax assels (Net) T 72 1,089
Defarrad tax assels (nat) 28 69,961 23,588
Total non-current assets 1,758,836 803,329
Current assets
Financial assets
Trade recelvables ] 1,270,350 776,237
Gash and cash equivalents 10 1,203,412 2,192,559
Oither financlal assels 6 522,029 691,528
Other current assets 8 24,954 23,663
Total current assets 3,030,745 3,663,987
Total assets 4,789,581 4,487,326
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 12 1,070,341 1,070,341
Cther equity 13 1,232,891 964,545
Total equity 2,303,332 2,034,686
LIABILITES
Non-current llabilities
Financial liabilitles
Barrowlngs 14 . 100,000
Lease llabilllles 15 47,468 82,215
Total non-current liabilities 47,468 182,215
Current liabilities
Financlal llabilitios
Lease liabilities 15 59,318 56,208
Trade payables 16 614,915 574,176
Other financial liabiliies 17 - 111,250
Other current liabilities 18 1,229,301 1,145,261
Current tax lisbilities (net) 7 535,247 301,310
Total current liabilitles 2,438,781 2,270,225
Total liabilities 2,486,249 2,452,440
e T
Total equity and liabilities 4,789,581 4,487,326
Significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financlal statements
As per our report of even date attached
For Shridhar and Associates Far and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Charlerad Accountunis Myhotelshop GmbH

Firn's Rugistration Number: 134427W

(i
abhishekPachlangla
Pariner

Date: May 13 2022
Flace: Mumbal




Myhotelshop GmbH

Special purpose consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
for the period ended ended 31 March 2022

All amounts are in Euro unless otherwise stated

e ——

Peariad from
Particulars Notes 182110
31 March 2022
fovenue from operations 19 5,136,685
Other incame 20 47,074
Taotal Incoma 5,183,759
Expensas
Employea benefils expense 21 1,674,798
Finance cosis 22 1,546
Depraciation and amarti tion expense 23 50,876
Other expenses 24 3,180,529
Total expenses 4,807,749
Proflt before tax 376,010
Tax expensa: 25
Gurrant tax 153,937
Dafarred tax (credit)/charge 45,373
Total tax expanse 107,584
Profit for the period 268,446
Other comprehensive income -
Profit for the periad 268 445
Altributable to:
Cwners of the Holding Company 260,446
Total comprehensive income for the period 268,446
Altributable to:
Owners of the Holding Company 260,446

Earnings per equity share (EPS)
Basle EPS 26 025
Diluted EFS 26 0.25

Significant accounting policles 2

The accompanying notes are an Intearal part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Diractors of

For Shridhar and Associates Myhotelshop GmbH

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration Number: 134427W

1
Abhishek Pachlangia Bhanu Ch
Parlner Managing Dirdel {

Membership Number: 120593

Date: May 13 2022
Place: Mumbal

Data: MEy-+3 2022
Place: Delhi




Myhotelshop GmbH

Speclal purpose consolidated Cash Flow Statement
for the period ended 31 March 2022

Al amaunts are in Euro unless otherwise stated

____________________—————————_'
Particulars Perlod Ended Year ended
31 March22 | 31August2i |
Audited Unaudited
Qperating activities
Profit befora tax 376,010 334,940
Adjustments for:
Depraciation and amontisalion exponss 50,876 32,733
Finance cost 1.471 1,288
Allowance for expected credit loss 141,266 | -
Operating profit before working capital changes and other adjustments 569,613 368,962
Working capital adjustments:
{Increase)/ Decrease in trade receivables (635,369) {450,475)
{Increase)/ Decrease in financial assats 169,499 (615,524)
(increase)/ Decrease in olher assels {11,281) 234,086
Increass! (Decrease) In trade payable 40,740 452,234
Increasef (Decrease) in other financial llabllities (111,280) 43,663
Inerease/ (Decrease) in other llabilities 105,732
Cash generated fram operating activities erETTl

|income tax refund raceived | (paid)
Net cash generated from operating activities

Investing activities

purchase of property, plant and aquipment
Loan Recoverad

Loan given

Net cash used in |nvasting activities

Financing activities
Repayment of lang-tenm borrowings
Repayment of lease liabilitias

Net cash (used In) financing actlvities (135,109)
Nel (dacreasa)fincraase in cash and cash equivalents {980,147)

Cash and cash equivalents at the baginning of the period 2,192,559

Cash and cash equivalents at and of the perlod
Notes:

4, Tha Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared undar the 'Indirect method' as set out in the Ind AS -7 an 'Statement of Cash
Flows".

2. Changes in llabilities arising from financing activilies:

As at Cash
Particular 4\ 01 August 2021 Inflows/(Qutflows)
400,00

140,424 106,788
240,424 106,786

S-S

As per aur report of even date attached Far and en benalf of the Board of Directars of
Far Shridhar and Assoclates Myhoteishop GmbH
Chartared Accountants

Firm's Registration Number. 134427W

A

Partnar
Membarship Number: 120593

Date: May 13 2022
Placa: Mumbal




Myhotelshop GmbH
Special purpose consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
for the period ended ended 31 March 2022

All amounts ara in Eure unless ntherwise stated

a. Equily share capital

Particulars Amount

Balance ns at 31 August 2021 1,070,341

Changes in equity share capital during the period -
1,070,341

Balance as at 31 March 2022

b. Other equity

Particulars Share Equity share Retained
premium |issuance costs| earnings
Balanca as at 31 202 143,959 5 29,088
Profit for the period - - 268 446
Balance as at 31 Ma 2022 443,950 3.500) 1.097,532 1,232,991 |

The description of tha nature and purpose of each rasarve within equity is as fallows:
4 Share premium i
Share premium is credited when shares are jasued at pramium. It is ullised in accardance wilh tha local laws and regulations

2 Equity share Issuance cost |
It is related to incremental costs diractly alfributable to issulng new aquily shares.

4 Retained earnings :
This reprasents undistributed accumulated ear ingsflosees of the Company as on the balance sheet data

As per our report of aven date attached For and on behall of the Board of Diractors of

For Shridhar and Assoclates Myhotelshop GmbH
Chanered Acoountants
Fiem's Registration Number: 134427W

LI
Abhishek Pachlangla

Pariner
Mambership Number: 120583

Dateray 13 2022

Date: May 13 2022 r
Place: Delhi

Place: Mumbai




Myhotelshop GmbH
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements
for the period ended 31 March 2022

1

241

(a)

(b)

Background

Myhotelshop GmbH (the ‘Company' or ‘the Holding Company') is registered under registration number 28024
in the German Commercial Register and domiciled in Germany, having its registered office at FloRplatz 6,
04107 Leipzig, Germany. The Company was incorporated on 41 January 2012. The Company is 100%
subsidiary of Rategain Technologies Limited based out in United Kingdom. These consolidated financial
ctatements comprise the financial statements of the Company and it's a subsidiary company (collectively
referred to as the 'Group').

The Group Is an Information Technalogy company providing innovative solutions to help clients in the
hospitality and travel industry to achieve their business goals. The Group connects hotel websites to major
meta searches and runs marketing campaigns to increase direct bookings and push the websites as a
distribution channel. The Group eams net market placement revenue from advertisement/media spends and
recurring monthly fee under packages such as campaign management, campaign management light, full
management, etc.

Details relating to Group considered in these consolidated financial statements are as follows:

Name of the Country of Nature of 9, voting power [9, voting power
company incorporation relationship held as at held as at
31 August 2021 | 31 March 2022

Subsidiary 100% 100%

Myhotelshop S.L. Spain
A el £ l_ ol § S S

The financial statements of the above subsidiary are drawn up-te the same accounting period as that of the
Group.

Significant accounting policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparalion of this special purpose
consolidated financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

Basls of preparation

RateGain Travel Technologies Limited, a SaaS company registered in India, ("RateGain”") has acquired
Myhotelshop GmbH through its subsidiary company RateGain Technologies Limited, a company registered
in United Kingdom, vide Sale and Purchase Agreement (SPA) entered on 10 September 2021, RateGain is
listed in the stock exchanges in India. The financial statement of RateGain is prepared in accordance with
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Indian Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule
3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Cornpanies (Indian Accounting
standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Ind AS') for the purpose of providing
information to the RateGain Travel Technologies Limited solely to enable it to prepare its consolidated
financial statements

Accordingly, the special purpose consolidated financial statements for the 7 months' period ended 31 March
2022 have been prepared in accordance with the Ind AS.

For all periods up to and including the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group prepared its financial
statements in accardance with the German statutory accounting and reporting requirements (German GAAP)
(hercinafter referred to as ‘Previous GAAP') used for its statutory reporting requirementin Germany. However,
the previous financial statements are not audited as it is not required to be audited as per German statute,

Basis of measurement
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for certain
financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair value or amortized cost.




Myhotelshop GmbH
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements
for the period ended 31 March 2022

(c) Critical accounting estimates and judgements

(d

—

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent liabilities at the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are based upon
management's best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and
astimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or
liabllities in future perlods, Changes in estimates are reflected In the consolidated financial statements in the
period in which changes are made and if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements.

Infermation about significant areas of estimation Juncertainty and judgements in applying accounting policies
that have the most significant effect on the consolidated financial statements are as follows:

judgment required to determine probability of recognition of deferred tax assets;

impairment assessment of non-financial assets key assumptions underlying recoverable amount;
impairment assessment of financial assets;

measurement of financial guarantee contracts, provisions and contingent liabilities;

measurement of share-based payments, provisions and contingent liabilities,

judgment required to ascertain lease classification, lease term, incremental borrowing rate, lease and
non-lease component, and impairment of ROU;

« judgement required to determine that the government grant will be received

« measurement of unbilled ar deferred revenue

« cash flow projections and liquidity assessment with respect to Covid-19.

There are no assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material
adjustment within the next financlal year except for as disclosed in these financial statements,
Fair value measurement X
Falr value is the price that would be received to sell an assel or paid ta transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption thal the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

s+ In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

o In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible lo / by the Group.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed In the consolidated financial statements
are calegorized within fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level of input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole.

+  Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assels or liabilities

« Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

« Lavel 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing
categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whola) al
the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the
basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as
explained above,
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(e} Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary
company.
Subsidiary company
Subsidiary company is an entity controlled by the Company. The Company cantrols an entity when it is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its Involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the enlity. Power is demonstrated through existing rights that give the
ability to direct relevant activities, those which significantly affect the entity's returns. The financial statements
of a subsidiary company is Included in the consolidated financial statements from the date on which control
commences until the date on which control ceases.

The standalene financial statements of the Company and financial statements of the subsldiaries are
consolidated on a line-by-line basis by adding together the book values of like items of assets, liabilities,
incomes and expenses, after eliminating intra-group halances, intra-group transactions and any unrealized
incomes and expenses arising from intra-group transactions. These consolidated financial statements are
prepared by applying uniform accounting policies in use at the Group.

2.2 Other significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to the periods presented in the
consolidated financial statements.

(a) Property, plant equipment
Recognition and measurement
lterns of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises: (a) its purchase price and non-refundabla
purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates; (b) any casts directly attributable to bringing the
asset to the lacation and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating In the manner intended by
management.

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and direct
labour, any other cost directly attributable to bringing the item to working condition for its intended use.

The cost of improvements to leasehold premises, if recognition criteria are met, are capitalized and disclosed
separately under leasehold improvement.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognized upon
disposal or when no future economic henefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain ar loss arising
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the consolidated Statement of profit and loss when such asset Is
derecognized.

Subsaquent cost

Subsequent costs are included In the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it Is probable that the future economic benefits associated with expenditure will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably, All other subsequent cost is charged to
consolidated Statement of profit and loss at the time of incurrence,

Depreciation
Depreciation on property, plant equipment is provided on the straight-line method computed on the basis of
estimated useful life on a pro-rata basls from the date the asset is ready to put to use.

Depreciation has been charged based on the following useful lives:
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Asset description l Useful life of asset (in years)
Office Furniture and Fixtures | 5 S L

Depreciation IS calculated on & full year basis in the year of purchase or sale for that year.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property plant and equipment are reviewed
by management at each reporting date and adjusted prospectively, as appropriate.

(b) Intangible Assets

(c)

Intangible assets that are acquired are recognised only If it is probable that the expected future economic
benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the Group and the cost of assels can be measured reliably.
The other intangible assels are recorded at cost of acquisition including incidental costs related to acquisition
and installation and are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any

Gain or losses arising from derecagnition of other intangible assets are measured as the difference betwean
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the other intangible assets and are recognised in the
consolidated Statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

Subsequent cost

Subsequent cost is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific
asset to which it relates. All the subsequent expenditure on other intangible assels is recognised in consolidated
stalement of profit and loss, as ineurred.

Amortization

Amortization is calculated to write off the cost of other intangible assets over their estimated useful lives as
stated below using straight-line method. Amortization Is calculated on full year basis for assets purchased
Jdispesed during the year.

Amortization has been charged based on the following useful lives:
Asset description Useful life of asset (in years) 1

F]omputar software 5

Amortization method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted
prospactively, if approprlate‘

Leasas

The Group as a lessee

The Group enters into an arrangement for lease of hulldings. Such arrangements are generally for a fixed
periad but may have extension or termination aptions. In accordance with Ind AS 116 — Leases, at inception
of the contract, the Group assesses whether a contract s, or contains a lease. Alease is defined as 'a contract,
or part of a contract, that conveys the right to contral the use an asset (the underlying asset) for a period of
time in exchange for consideration’.

To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Group assesses
whether:
e The contract involves the use of an identified asset — this may be specified explicitly or implicitly, and
should be physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity of a physically distinct asset.
If the supplier has a substantive substitution right, then the asset is not identified;
« The Group has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits fram Use of the asset
throughout the period of use; and
« The Graup assesses whether it has the right to direct ‘now and for what purpose’' the assel is used
throughout the period of use. Al inception or on reassessiment of a contract that contains a lease
component, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to aach lease companent on the basis
of their relative stand-alone prices. However, for the leases of land and buildings in which itis a lessee,
the Group has elected notto separate non-lease components and account for the lease and non-lease
components as a single lease component.
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Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee

The Group recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date, The right-
of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for
any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an
estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site
on which itis located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated
impairment losses,

The lease liabllity is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Group's incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate
as the discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:
o fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;
* variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at the commencement dale;
¢ amolnts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee: and
* the exercise price under a purchase option that the Group is reasonably certain to exercise, lease
payments In an optional renewal period if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise an extension
option, and penalties for early termination of a lease unless the Group is reasonably certain not o
terminate early.
The lease liability is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when
there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in
the Group's estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if the Group
changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option, When the
lease liability is remeasured in this way, a correspanding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset, or Is recorded in Statement of profit and loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset
has been reduced to zero, as the case may be.

The Group as a lessor

At the inception of the lease the Group classifies each of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance
lease. The Group recognises lease payments raceived undar operating leases as income on a stra ight-line
basis over the lease term.

(d) Impairment - non-financial assets
Al each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets to datermine
whether there Is any indication of impairment. If any such indication of impairment exists, then the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated. For impairmaent testing, assets are grouped togather into the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of
other assets or cash generaling units (‘CGU'). Goodwill arising from a business combination is allocated 1o a
CGU or groups of CGU that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to
sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of maney and the risks specific to the
assel or CGU. An impairment loss Is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
estimated recoverable amount.

Impairment losses are recognised in the consolidated Statement of profit and loss. They are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU and then to reduce the carrying amounts of
the other assets in the CGU on a pro-rata basls.
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An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. For other assets, an impairment loss is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal
is made only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation or amartization, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

(e) Provisions and contingent liabllities
Provislons
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
events, it is probable that an outflow of rasources embadying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

If the effect of the lime value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within he
control of the Group. Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a centingent liability, unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

(f) Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits
Employee benefit liabilities such as salaries, wages and bonus, ete. that are expected to be settled wholly within
twelve months after the end of the reporting period in which the employees render the related service are
recognised in respect of employee's services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at an
undiscounted amount expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. Grants related lo employees' costs
subsidy are deducted from the respective employee cost.

Post-employment benefit plans
Defined benefit plans
There are no defined benefit plans in the Group.

Defined contribution plans

Adefined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions
fo the government and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Payments to
defined contribution plans are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling
them ta the contributions.

(g) Share based payments

The grant-date fair value of equity-sellled share-based payment arrangements granted to eligible employees
of the Group under the Employee Stock Option Scheme (ESQS') is recognised as employee stock option
scheme expenses in the consolidated Statement of profit and loss, in relation to oplions granted to employees
of the Group (over the vesting period of the awards), with a corresponding increase in other equity. The amount
recognised as an expense to reflect the number of awards for which the related service and non-market
performance conditions are expected to be met, such that the amount ultimately recognised is based on the
number of awards that meet the related sarvice and non-market performance conditions at the vesling date.
The increase In equity recognised in connection with a share based payment transaction is prasented in the
"Employee stock options outstanding account", as separate component in other equity. For share-based
payment awards with market conditions, the grant- date fair value of the share-based payment is measured to
reflect such eonditions and there is no true- up for differences hatween axpacted and actual outcomes. At the
end of each period, the Groupravises its eslimates of the number of options that are expected ta be vested
based on the nan-market performance conditions at the vesting date.
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(h)

(i)

0

In case of cash-settled plan, fair value is determined on each reporting date and expense is accordingly

recognised in the statement of profit and loss with a corresponding increase to the ESOP liability.

If vesting periods ar other vesting conditions apply, the expense is allocated over the vesting period, based
on the best available estimate of the number of share options expected to vest. Upon exercise of share

options, the proceeds received, net of any directly attributable transaction casts, are allocated to share capital

up to the nominal (or par) value of the shares issued with any excess being recorded as share premium.
The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional ehare dilution in the computation of diluted
earnings per share.

Income taxes

Income tax expense comprises of current tax and deferred tax. It is recognised in the consolidated profit or
loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised In other comprehensive income or directly in

aquity.

Gurrent tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and
any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax
reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or recelved after considering the uncertainty,
if any relating to Income taxes. It is measured using tax rates enacted for the relevant reporting period.
Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only If there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recagnised amounts, and it is intended to realize the asset and seltle the liability on a net basis.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reperting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can
be used. The existence of unused tax losses Is strong evidence that future taxable profit may not be
available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Group recognizes a deferred tax asset only to
the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing other evidence lhat
sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realized. Defarrad tax
assets - unrecognized or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised / reduced to
the extent that it is probable / no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Deferred tax is measurad at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized
or liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacled or substantively enacted by the reporting
date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Group expects, at the reporting date, lo recover or setlle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities,
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax liabilities and assets levied by the same tax authorilies.

Functional and presentation currency
The management has determined the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company
operates, i.e., the functional currency, to be Euro. The financial statements are presented in Euro, which is
the Company's functional and presentation currency. All amounts have been rounded to the nearest Euro,
unless otherwise stated. Consequent to rounding off, the numbers presented throughout the document may
not add up precisely to the totals and percentages may not precisely reflect the absolute amounts,

Foreign currency transactions
Monetary and non-monetary transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional
currency of the Group at the exchange rates at the date of the transactlions.
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Monetary forelgn currency assets and liabilities remaining unsettled on reporting date are translated at the
rates of exchange prevalling on reporting date, Gains/(losses) arising on account of realization/settlement
of foreign exchange transactions and on translation of monetary foreign currency assels and liabilities are
recognised In the consolidated Statement of profit and loss.

Foreign exchange gains [ (losses) arising on translation of foreign currency monetary loans are presented
in the consolidated Statement of profit and loss on net basis.

(k) Revenue recognition

Revenue from Contracts with Customers, revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised
services to customers. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable,
excluding discounts, incentives, performance bonuses, price concessions, amounts collected on behaif of
third parties, or other similar items, if any, as specified in the contract with the customer. Revenue is recorded
pravided the recovery of consideration is probable and determinable.

Revenue from operations is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured.

Revenue from sale of services in case of hospitality sector is recognised over tha spacified subscription period
on straight line basis or on the basis of underlying services performed, as the case may be, in accordance
with the terms of the contracts with customers and in case of travel sector the same Is recognised when the
related services are performed as per the terms of contracts.

Contract assets are recognised when there is excess of revenue earnad over billings on contracts. Contract
assels are classified as unbilled receivables (only act of invaicing is pending) when there is unconditional
right to receive cash, and only passage of fime is required, as per cantractual terms.

The Company defers unearned and deferred revenue, including payments received in advance, unlil the
related subscription period Is complete or underlying services are performed.

Service income

Revenue from marketing support services, management fee, set-up fee and auxiliary and business suppaort
services are in terms of agreements with the customers and are recognised on the basis of satisfaclion of
performance obligation over the duration of the contract from the date the contracts are effective or signed
provided the consideration is reliably determinable and no significant uncertainty exists regarding the
collection, The amount recognised as revenue Is net of applicable taxes.

Interest income
Interest income on financial assets (including deposits with banks) is recognised using the effective interest

rate method.
Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equily instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables and debt instruments are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial
assets are initially recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All financial assets are initially measured al fair value plus, for an iterm not al fair value through
consolidated Statement of profit and loss, transaction costs that are attributable ta its acquisition or use,
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Classification
For the purpose of initial recognition, the Group classifies its financial assets in following categories:

» Financial assets measured at amortized cost;
« Financial assets measured al fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI); and
» Financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

Financial assels are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the
Group changes its business model for managing financial assels.

A financial asset being ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortized cost if both of the following conditions
ara met:
e The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and
« The contraclual terms of the financial asset glve rise an specified dates to cash flows that are Solely
Payments of Principal and Interest (SPP1) on the principal amount outstanding.

A financial asset being ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:
«  The assetis held within the business model, whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual
cash flows and selling the financial assets, and
o The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates ta cash flows that are SPFlon
the principal amount outstanding.

A financial asset being equity instrument is measured at FVTPL,
All financial assets not classified as measured at amortized costor FVTOCI as described above are measured

at FVTPL.
Subsequent measurement

Financial assets at amortized cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. The
amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses, if any. Interest income and impairment are recognised In
the consolidated Statement of profit and loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL
These assets are subsequently rmeasured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest income,
are recognised in the consolidated Statement of profit and loss.

Derecagnition

The Group derecognizes a financial assetwhen the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assel
expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially
all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred ar in which the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of
the financial asset. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised In the consolidated Statement of prafit
and loss.

Impairment of financial assets (other than at fair value)
The Group recagnizes loss allowances using the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for the financial assets
which are nat fair valued through profit and loss. Loss allowance for trade recelvables with ne significant
financing compaonent is measurad at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all other financial assets, expected
credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant
increase in credit risk from Initial recognition, in which case those financial assels are measured at lifetime
ECL. The changes (incremental or reversal) in loss allowance computed using ECL model, are recognised
as an impairment gain or loss in the consolidated Statement of profit and loss.
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Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there
is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Group determines that the
counterparty does nol have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows lo repay the
amounts subject to write-off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to
enforcement activities in order to comply with the Group's procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Financial liabilities

Recognition and initial measurement

All financial liabilities are Initially recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. All financial liabilities are Initially measured at falr value minus, for an item not at fair value
through profit and loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the liability.

Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is
designated as such on initial recognition, Financlal liabilities at FVTPL are measured al fair value and net
gaine and losses, Including any interest expense, are recognised in the gonsolidated Statement of profit and
loss,

Financial liabilities other than classified as FVTPL, are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interast method. Interest expense are recognised in consolidated Statement of profit and loss. Any
gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in the consolidated Statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition
The Group derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or
expired.

The Group also derecognizes a financial liability when its terms are madified and the cash flows under the
modified terms are subslantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on modified terms Is

recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished
and the new financial liability with medified terms is recognised in the censalidated Staternent of profit and
loss,

Offsetting of financial Instruments

Einancial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount presented In the consolidated Balance
Sheet when, and only when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and
it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realize the assets and sellle the liabilities simultaneously.

{m) Earnings per share
The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its equity shares. Basic EPS s
calculated by dividing the consclidated Statement of profit and loss attributable to equity shareholders of the
Group by the weighled average number of equity shares oulstanding during the year, Diluted EPS is
determined by adjusting consolidated Statement of profit and loss attributable to equity shareholders and the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding, for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares,
which comprise share options granted to employees.

The number of equily shares and polentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted retrospectively for all periods
presented for any share splits and bonus shares issues including for changes effected prior to the approval
of the financial statements by the Board of Directors.
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(n) Current and non-current classification
All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current.

Assets
An asset Is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
it Is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Group's normal operating cycle;
e itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
s itis expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporling date; or
« itls cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricled from being exchanged or used lo sellle a liability
for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets. All other assets are classified as
non-currant.

Liabilities
A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
s tis expected to be settled in the Group’s normal operating eycle;
o itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded, :
o ilis due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting period; or
e the Group does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting period.

Gurrent liabilities include the current partion of non-current financial liabilities. All other liabilities are classified
as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

QOperaling cycle

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash
or cash equivalents. Based on the nature of operations and the time between the acquisition of assets for
processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Group has ascertained its operating cycle
being a perlod of 12 months for the purpose of classification of assets and liabilities as current and nan-
current.

{o) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprises of cash at banks and short-term deposits with an original maturity of
three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

(p) Segment reporting

As the Group's business activity primarily falls within a single segmentwhich is providing innovative solutions
to help clients in the hospitality and travel industry to achieve their business goals. The geographical
segments considered are "within Germany”, "within European Union" and “outside European Union® and are
reperted in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operaling Decision Maker
("CODM") of the Group who monitors the operating results of its business units not separately for the purpose
of making decisions about resource allocation and perfermance assessment. The CODM is considerad to
be the shareholder who make strategic decisions and is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
the finandal performance of the operating segments, The analysis of geographical segments is based on
geographical location of the customers,

(q) Exceptional items
Exceptional ltems are transactions which due to their size or incidence are separately disclosed to enable a
full understanding of the Group's financial performance.
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U]

Cash flow statement
Cash flows are reported using indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects
transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or paymenls,
The cash flows from regular revenue generating, financing and investing activities of the Group are
segregated. Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow comprise cash at bank, cash/cheques in hand and
short-term Investments with an original maturity of three months or less.

(s) Share issue expense

U]

Share issue expenses of an equity transaction are accounted for as a deduction from equity to the extent
they are incremental costs directly atiributable to the aquity transaction that otherwise would have been
avoided.

Government Grant
Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Gompany will comply
with the conditions attached ta them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in the Statement of Prafit and Loss on a systematic basis over the years
in which the Company recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to
compensate or when performance obligations are met.

Grants related to income and reimbursement of fixed costs are presented as part of profit or loss separately
under ‘Other Income’. Grants related to employees' costs subsidy are deducted from the related expense.

The benefit of a government loan at a below-market rate of interest and effect of this favourable interest is
treated as a gavernment grant. The loan or assistance is initially recognised at fair value and the government
grant is measured as the difference between proceeds received and the fair value of the loan based on
prevalling market interest rates and recognised to the income statement immediately on fulfillment of the
performance obligations. Tha loan is subsequently measured as per the accounting policy applicable to
financial liabilities.

(u) New and amended standards adopted by the group

V)

The group has applied the following amendments to Ind AS for the first time for their annual reporting period
commencing 1 April 2021:

« Extension of COVID-19 related concessions — amendments to Ind AS 116

- Interest rate benchmark reform — amendments to Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, Ind AS 107, Financial
Instruments: Disclosures, Ind AS 104, Insurance Cantracts and Ind AS 118, Leases.

The amendments listed above did not have any impact on the amounts recagnised in prior periods and are
not expected to significantly affect the current or future periods.

New amendments issued but not effective

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has vide notification dated 23 March 2022 notified Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022 which amends certain accounting slandards, and are
effective 1 April 2022, These amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the group in the
current or fulure reporting periods and on foreseeable future transaclions.
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3 Property, plant and equipment

Office furniture Total amount
and fixtures

Gross carrying value:

Balance as at 31 August 2021 109,763 109,763

Additicns for the pariod 16,811 18.811

Balance as at 31 March 2022 128,574 120,674

A lated dc]. fation:

Balance as at 31 August 2021 87,961 97,861

Charge for the period 10,498 10,496

Balance as at 31 March 2022 108,457 108,457

Net carrying value:

Balance as at 31 August 2021 11,802 11,802

Balance as at 31 March 2022 20,117 20117
4 Right-of-use assats

Offica bullding Total amount

Gross carrying value:

Balance as at 31 August 2021 233,315 233,315

Additions for the period . %

Balance as at 31 March 2022 233,315 233,315

A 1abtad ulu“lal 41

Balance as at 31 August 2021 96,187 96,187

Charge for the period 33 665 33,685

Balanco as at 31 March 2022 129,852 129,852

MNet carrying value:

Balance as al 31 August 2024 137,128 137,128

Balance as at 31 March 2022 103,463 103,463
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5 Intangible assets
Gross carrying value:

Balance as at 31 August 2021
Additlons for the period
Ralanca as at 31 March 2022

Accumulated amortisation:

Balance as at 31 August 2021
Charge for the pericd
Palance as st 31 March 2022

Met carrying value:

Balance as at 31 Augusl 2021
Balance as at 31 March 2022

___ Softwares Total amount

01,260 91,260
91,260 91,260
52,885 62,885

6,715 8,715
59,600 59,600
38,375 38,375
31,660 31,680
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Asat TAsat
31 March 31 August
2022 2021
6 Other financlal assets
{Unsacured and considered goad at amortised cost)
Non=current
Sacurity daposils 18,040 18,040
18,040 18,040
Current
a 1 grant receivable® - 352,464
Interest receivables 22,899 15,264
Unbilled revenua® 499,130 323,400
——tll2), __GUNEER
*Governmeant subsidy d during the previous periods on accaunt of Covid-19 were accountad as Revenue Grant, Durlng the current periad same has bean
raceived
*Unbllled revenue pertains to monthly outstanding involess which are ralsed and approved in the subsequant financial year
7 Income tax assets and llabllitles
Non-current tax assols
Income tax racalvsble 272 1,989
272 1,999
Currant tax labilities
Inecame tax payable 535,247 381,310
535,247 381,310
(] Other assels
{unsecured and gonsidered good)
Current
Prapald expenses v 10,967 12,1568
Advance to supplier 2,740 -
Advances in empleyees 1,330 1,330
Prapald Value Added Tax 8,908 10,082
Others 11,008 85

34,954 23653
9 Trade raceivables

Unsecured, considared good 1,677,026 041,688
Less: Loss allowance (refar nole 31(ii){a)) i (306,685) (165,424)

1,270,350 776,237
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As at As at
31 March 31 August
2022 2021
Agelng for Trade Recelvabl ~Bllled - O ing as at 31st March, 2022
[#] ding for following periods from dug date of paymant
Particulars Mot Due LessthanB BMonlhs-1 Maore than 3 Tolal
it Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years i
Undisputed trade receivables — considerad 653,873 704 686 37,679 80,797 - - 1,577,035
pood
Undisputed rada recaivables — which have - - - - - - -
significant increase In credit sk
Undisputed trade receivables - eredit - = # - . = o
impalred
Disputed trade recelvablas — considarad . A . 4 . % N
good
Disputid trade raceivables = which have - - - - - - =
significant Increase in credit risk
Disputed trada receivables ~ credit . - . - - .
impairad 0
653,873 794,680 7,678 90,797 - - 1,677,035
Less: Allovancs for Doublful Trade Receivable _(306,685)
Total 1,270,350
ageing for Trade Recelvabl - Billad - Outstanding as at 31st August 2021
Buistanding far following periods fram due date of payment
Particulars NotDue  Lessthan6 6&Months -1 More than 3 Total
Months Yok 1-2 Years 23 Years Vaare -
Undisputed trade receivables — iderad 769,919 95,946 48,264 27,517 = & 941 666
good
Ureisputed trada recaivables — which have - - - - - < "
significant increase in cradit risk
L putad trade recal bles — cred/l - - - - - - -
Impaired
Disputed trade recelvables — considerad - - - & a - -
good
Disputed trade receivables — which have . . . . - - .
significant increase In credit risk
Disputed trade recelvables - eredit - - - - - = "
impaked i
769,919 95,946 AB,284 21,517 - - 441,666
Luss: Miowance for Doubtful Trads Recalvable (165,429)
Total Tr6,237
10 Gash and cash equivalents
Balanges with banks
- In current accaunt 1,203.412 2,182,558
- 1n savings eccount - 10,003

_tz03diz, 2,192,559
Thera are no repatriation restrictions with regard lo cash and eash aquivalents as at end of reporting pedod and prior periods,
11 Non-current loan

Unsecured, considered good
Loan 1o MHS Venlures GmbH* - 572,407
Ratagain Technologles Limited** 1,515,323 .

1 !515!32! 872,407

+ The loan was granied to Rategain Technologles Lid, the Parani campany. The company has disbursad the lnan amaunting to Euro 15,15,323 in the month of
January 2022, The repayment of loan shall shall be made in ene amaunt on termination date ( .. 31sl Decamber, 2026). The oulstanding loan balanca would carry
an Witerest & 7% p.a, payable on & quanarly basls.

* The parny has granted d loan @ MHS Vontures GmbH and (he same |a repayable wilhin 10 years from the date of loan agreement L, 04ih January
2021, Interest is charged at 5.5% p.a, payabla quartarly on the 10th calendar day of a quarter.During the current period, {he loan has been squared off and the
company has recelved the full amount on 30th Seplember 2021,
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As at As at
31 March 31 August
2022 2021

12 Equity shore capital

Subscribed capital

1,070,341 (31 December 2020: 40,341 and 1 January 2020: 40,341) equity shares of 1,070,341 1,070,341

Euro 1 aach fully paid up B Mo o
1,070,341 1,070,341

Naotes:

(i) Terms and rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equily shares having a par value of Euro 1 per share. Each holder of equity shares ls entitled Lo une
vote per share. In the event of liquidaticn of the Company, halder of equity shares will be entitled (o recsive remaining assels of the
Company aller distribution of all preferential ameunt, Tha distribution will be In proportion to the number of equity sharas held by tha
shareholdars,

a Recongciliation of the number of shares and amount cutstanding at the beginning and at the end of tha period:

As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 August 2021
No of Shares Amount No of Shares Amount
Equity shares outstanding al the baginning of the period 1,070,341 1,070,341 1,070,341 1,070,341
Add : lssued during the perlod - - - -
Equity shares outstanding at the end of the perled 1,070,341 1,070,341 1,070,341 1,070,341
(i) Shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5 percent shares:
Particulars As at As at
31 March 31 August
2022 201
MHS Ventures GmbH . 1,030,000
Rategain Technologles Limitad 1,030,000 -
(iv) Details of sharaholding of promotars:
sr, Promeoter name At the end of 315t March 2022 At the end of 315t August 2021
Na
No of % of % Change No of % of total % Change
Shares total  during the Shares shares during the
shares year year
1 |MHS Ventures - - - 1,070,341 100% 0%
2__|Rategain Technologies Limited 1,070,341  100% 0% - - -

(v} Mo shares have been issuad by the Company for cansideration other than cash, during the period of five years immediately preceding the
reparting periods,




Myhotelshop GmbH
Notes forming part of the Special purpose consolidated financial statements
for the period ended ended 31 March 2022

All amounts are in Euro unless otherwise stated

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 August 2021

13 Other equity

Share premium 143,950 143,958
Retained earnings 1,097,532 829,086
Equity share lssuance cesls (8,500) (8,500)
1,232,091 964,545
13.1 Share application maney
Balance at the beginning of the period - 1,080,000
Recaived during the period - -
Share issuad during the periad - (1,040,000)
Balance at the end of the peried - »
13.2 Share premium
Balance at the baginning of tha pariod 143,958 143,958
Change during the pariod - -
Balance at the end of the peried 143,959 143,959
13.3 Retained earnings
Balance at the beginning of the perlod 829,086 594,202
Profil for the poriod 268,446 234,884
Balance at the end of tha peried 1,097,532 829,086
Relained sarnings are created from the profit / loss of the Group, as adjusted for distributions to awnars, transfers 1o olther reserves, ate.
13.4 Equity share Issuance costs
Balance at the beginning of the period (8,500) (8,500)
Incurred during Ihe period - -
Balance at the and of the period 3,500 (8,500)
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Al amounts are i e e ——————

As at As at
31 March M August
2022 2021
14 Borrowings
Nan-current
(Unseecured, at amortised cost)
Tem loans from a bank s 100,000
- 100,000

a] Terms and security detalls of term loans fram banks:

The Campany btalad nondntarest-baaring barowing from SAB, Saxony, Germeny af 100,000 Furo. The loan is rapayable from 31 August 2023 In a
quarterly equal instaiments of Eurg 3,571.43 payable in February, May, August and Nevember of sach year. The last instalment of the lnan is payable on 31 May
2030, As par agreement, the Campany neads to repay only 90% of principal amount, it settled within 3 years, During the currant peded company has pald the

above laan ta the axtent of 90% and remainining 104 Is consider as an olhar incomo.

15 Leasa liabliities

Office and Buildings

Non-currant

Opening Balance 140,424 164,144

Add : Interest expense 1,471 1,269

Less ; Paymenis during the pariod 35,108 26,009
X 106,786 140,424

Leus : Classified lo currant ; 59,318 58,209

Leaso lnbilities A7 AGE A2.215

47468 82215
Currant
Lease labilties 59,018 98,208

59,318 58,200

16 Trade payables

Trade payables 614,915 574,175
614,815 574,175

Ageing for trade payables cutstanding as at March 31, 2022 is as follows:

Outshndlnﬁ for lellowing periods Irom due date of payment

Particulars D Total
ok HovRus Loss than 4 Year  1-2Yoars 2 -3 Years Maralngn 3 P

Years
Trade Payable
Others 521310 26,714 - . - 854,024
Disputed dues - Others - - - = v -
Accrued expenses 2 60,891 80,881
508,201 26,714 - - - £14,915
17 Other financial llabllitles
Current
Share basad paymerils Fabllity® - 111,260
- 111,250
———— et
* During the pravi periad, has gr d Shara eptl I (cash settled) te its 3 sligible amployoes. This has heen sattlad in cash in the manth of
soptember, 2021,
18 Other llabllities
Current
Advances from customers 66,053 124,006
Stalutory labiliies 208,820 161,221
Provisions for empioyee Lenefits 143,740 94,776
Daferred revenue 810,686 765,270

976,301 1,145,201

P
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19 Revenue from operations

Pariad fram
1 Sep 2021 to
31 March 2022

Sale of services 5,136 685
s 5,196,685
Naota!
(a) Disaggregated revenue information
Set out balow s tha disaggregation of tha Group's I from cor 1s with customers:
Particulars Periad from

1 Sep 2021 to
31 March 2022

Type of services
Markel placement and other consultancy fees
Total revenua from contracts with customers

Geographical region

Garmany

European Union ather than Germany

Other countries

Tatal revanue from contracts with customers

Timing of recegnition
Revenue regognised ol a point of lime
Total revenue from contracts with customers

{b) Assets and llabllities related to contracts with customers
Trade receivables
Unbilled revenue
Advances from customers
Deferred revenue

5,136,685
5,136,685

3,012,332
509,436
7148917
5,136,605

5,136,685
5,136,685

1,270,350
499,130
66,053
810,688

Remalning performance obligations as at the reporting date are expecied lo be substantially recognised ovar tha naxl

reporting periad by the Group.

{c) Revenue recognised in relation contract liabilities

Gontract liabilities relatad to sala of services
Advances fram cuslomerns
Deferrad ravenue

66,053
810,688

{d) Reconclling the amount of ravenue recognised In the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price

Revanue as per conlracted price
Adjustments:

Rebate
Revenue from contracts with customers

20 Other Income

Gaovernment grant incorme [refer note 14(a)]
Intarest income
Other miscellaneous ncome

5,136,685

5,136,685

10,000
22,420
14,645

47,074
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21

22

23

24

Employes benefits expense

Salaries and wages
Gontribution lo social securilies
Staff welfare expenses

Finance costs

Interest on lease liabilities
Other finance costs

Depreclation and amorlisation expense

Depreclation on property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of right of use assals
Amortisation of intangible assets

Other expenses

External Services

Legal and professional fees

Rent and other space costs{Rafer nota 28)
Postage, telephona and internal expanses
Lieenses and concessions expenses
Vehicle running and maintenance

Training and recruitment expenses
Insurance and other charges

Travelling and conveyance

Bank charges

Loss on foraign exchanga (net)

Cffice supplies and Incidental expanses
Gifts, hospitality and attentions
Advertising and sales promotion expenses

Allowance for expected credit loss(refer note 31{iii)(a))

Bad debts
Miscellaneous expenses

Total

Perlad from
1 Sep 2021 to
__31March2022

1,305,192
243,845
25,758

1,574,748

1474
76

1,546

—— e

10,495
33,665
6,715
 HOETE

2,740,875
33,275
18,542
44 852
35,706
19,333
28219

5,400
44, 586
12,580

1,009

1,566

6,670

6,787

141,256
532
49,351

3,180,529




Myhotelshop GmbH

Notes forming part of the Special purpose consolidated financial statements
for the period ended ended 31 March 2022

All amounts are In Eure unless otherwise stated

Period from
1 Sept 2021 to

31 March
2022
25 Income taxes
Inceme tax rezoanised in the Conselldated statement of profit and loss
Current tax
|n respect af the current period 153,937

153,837
Deferred tax —_—
In respect of the current period (48,373)
(46,373)

Total income tax expense recognised in the current period 107,564

The Income tax expense for tha period can be reconciled to the accounting profit as fellows:

Profit before tax 376,010
Statulory income lax rate 31.925%
Income lax exp al tory | tax rate 120,041
Others (12,477
107,564

26 Eamnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounls are calculatad by dividing the profit for the period attrbutable lo equity holders by the welghted

avarage number of equity shares putstanding during the period.

Dilutad EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the perlod atributatle to equity holder by the welghted
avarage number of equity shares outstanding during the period plus the weighted average number of equity shares

that would be issued an canversion of all dilutive potential equity shares Into equity sharos.
The following reflects the income and sharae data used in the basic and diluted EFS computations:

Period from
Partlculars 1 September 2021 to
31 March 2022
Earnings allributable to equily holder of the Holding Company 268,446
Weighled average number of equity shares 1,070,341
Baslc EPS 0.25

Diluted EPS 0.25
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27

24

Segment reporting

Operaling segments are reported n & consistent with the i | reporting provided to the Chief Oparating Dacision Makar (*CODM?) of the
Group. The CODM Is censiderad lo ba tha Managing Director who makes stirategic decisions and is respensible for allocating rasources and assossing
the financial perf of the operaling segment

The Group's business activity falls within a single segment, which is pr iding i live solutions 1o help clients in tha hospitality and travel industry ta

achieve thelr business goals, In terms of Ind AS 108 on Segment Reporling. Infarmation aboul relevanl geography wide disclosura ara as followws:

Partlculars Periad from
1 Septembar 2021 to

31 March 2022

Revenue from external customers by location of the customers #

(i) Germany 3,812,332
(i} Europaan Union other than Germany 500,438
(iii) Other countries 114,917
Total 5,136,685
Particulars As at As al

31 March 2022 31 August 2021

Non-gurrent assets *

(i) Germany 155,240 187,305

(ii) European Unien ethar than Garmany % =

(i) Other countries - = -

" Non ¢ urrent assots, oiher (hen financial instruments and incoma tax assets (neiMefaned lax assel (nal),

Particulars Period from
1 September 2021 to

31 March 2022

Gingle external cuslomer of the Group cantiibuting 10% or more of the Group's lotal revenus 7,024,297
R bers are after intergrouy

Leases

The Group has leases for office bulldings and apartments. With the nlion of short-term leases and leases of low-value undarlying assels, each

lease is rellacled on the balance sheal as a right-of-use assel and a (ease llability, The Group classifics its righl-of-use asgels in a consislenl manner lo
Its property, plant and equipment, The Group has recorded (wo office lease as right-of-use assels which has average lease term of § years and average
ramaining leasa tarm of 2 years.

Leasa paymants lo be made under reasonably certain axtenslon apliens are also included In the measurement of the lease liability. The lease payments
are discaunted Using Ineremental barrowing rata of the Group, belng the rate the Group would have o pay to borrow the funds necessary lo oblain an
asset of similar value to the right-of use asset in a imilar anvironmant with similar tarms, security and conditions.

Amounts recognised in the consolidated stat 1t of profit or loss:
Fartlculars Period from
1 September 2021 to
31 March 2022
Amorlisalion on right-of-use assels 33 665
Interest on lease liabillties 1,471

Expenses ralating 1o short-term leases 7.783
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As at As at
31 March 31 August
2022 2001
29 Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets in relatlon to:
Loss allowance for doublful debls 68,900 22,538
Right-of-use assats and lease llabilities 1,081 1,062
Doferred tax assets (net) 69,961 23,568
(a) Movement in deferred tax liabilities for the perlod ended 31 March 2022 is as follows:
Opening Closing
Balance Recognise balance
d in Profit
or loss
Deferred tax assets in relation to:
Loss allowance for doubtful debls 22,536 46,364 68,000
Right-of-uae assels and lease liabililes 1,052 8 1,064
23,588 46,373 69,961

{b) The Group has not recognised any deferred lax liability in respect to uprecogrised temporary differences refating 1o investmant in

subsidiaries as the Parent Company Is able to control the timing of distributions from tha subsidiaries.
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30 Related party disclosures

() Relationship with related parties:

(a) Parent company
MHS Ventures {upta 31st August 2021)

Rategain Technelogies Limited, Unitad Kingdom {w.e.f: 18t Seplembar 2021)

(b) Koy managomant parsannal (KMP):

Mr, Ullrich Kastner (Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director upto 30the Septembar 2021)

Mr. Bhanu Chopra (Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director w.e.f 151 October 2021)

{11) Transactions with related parties during the perlod 1 September 2021 to 31 March 2022:

Particulars

Period from

1 Septembear 2021
to 31 March 2022

Other expenses

Rategain Technologles Limited, United Kingdem 49,607
Loan given

Rategain Technologies Limited, United Kingdom 1,515,323
Intarest income

Rategain Technologles Limited, United Kingdam 22,899
Compensation to KMPs

Mr. Ulirich Kastner 30,365

(1) Outstanding Balances

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 August 2021

(1) Payables

Rategain Tachnologies Limitad, United Kingdam 49,687 -

Mr. Ulirich Kastner 5176 -
(li) Loan recelvable

Rategain Technologies Limited, United Kingdom 1,516,323 >

MHS Ventures (upto 31st August 2021) - 572,407
{iil} Interast recelvable

Rategain Technologles Limited, United Kingdom 22,849




Myhotelshop GmbH
Notas forming part of the Special purpose consolidated financial statements
for the period ended anded 31 March 2022
All amounts are In Euro unless otherwise staled

N

h

Falr value measurements

Flnancial instr by categary
As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 August 2021
slssuiale FOTeL | mertssdci|FVPL | Amortaediaat
Financlal assets
Trade rocelvablos - 1,270,350 - 778,237
Cash and cash aquivalanls . 1,203412 - 2,192,569
Leans - 1,515,323 - 572,407
Other finsncial assals - 540,069 - 709,568
Total - 4,520,154 - 4,250,771
Financial liabliitias
Berravings - - - 100,000
Lease fabilties - 108,788 . 140,424
Trade payables - 814,915 - 574,175
Other financial kabililies - . . 111,250
[Tetal . 721,701 - 925,849

il) Fair value hierarchy
Financial assets and financial llablitles measured at fair value In the consolldalad balance sheet are divided into Ihree |avels of a fair valua hierarchy, Tha three
levels ere defined based on the absarvability of significant inpuls to the measurement, as follows:

Level 1: Quoled prices (unadjusted) In active markets for financial Instruments,
Lavel 2: The falr value of financlal Instruments that are not traded in an activa markat Is delermined using valuation tachniques which maximise the use of
obssrenbla market dale rely as lile as possible on enlily specific estimales,
Lavel 3: If one or mara of the significsnt inpuls is not based an obsarvabla markel dala, the instrument (s included in level 2,

g

iii} Financlal risk management
The Group's activities expose it ta market risk, §quidity risk and credil risk, The Group's board of direcl
ovarsight of the Group's risk management I

Fair valus of financial assets and liabilitios measured at amortised cost:
The carrying amounts of lrsde receivables, (rade payables, cash and cash aquivalents, other bank balances, other current financials assels and llabiilies are
considerad lo ba the sama as thale fair vabies, due to thelr shori-term nalura.

The Group has borrowings at fixed Inlerest rale. Tharafore, the management eslimates that the fair vaiue of these bormawings are approximate to ther respective

carrying values,

For financlal assets and liabilites that are measured at falr value, the camying amounts are equal lo the fair values,

rk. This note explai

tha related lmpact In the financial statements.

hmant and

has averal

Ity for the

the sources of rlsk which the enlily is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk and

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management
Cradit rigk (Cash and cash equivalents, rade Ageing analysis Bank deposits, diversification of assal
ivables, financial assels base, credit limits and cotlataral
measured at smortised cost
Liquidity risk mewmm and other liabiiiles Raling cash flaw forecasts Avallabiiity of commitied credit nes and
barrowing faciiies
Credit risk

Cradit risk Is tha risk that a counterparty falls to discharge an obiigation 1o the Group. Tha Group is axposad to this rsk for various financial instuments, for example
by granting loans and receivatles lo customers, placing depesits, etc. The Group's maximum exposurs lo credit risk Iz limited o the carrying amount of following

types of financinl assets,
- gash and cash equivalants,
- trade racelvabies,

- laans and receivables carled al amorlised cost, and

- daposits with banks
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a,

-

Gradit rlsk (confinued)
The maximum exposure 1o oredil risks is represented by the tolal carrying amount of these financial assets in the sonsafidated halance sheal:

As at As at
PRt 31 March 2022 31 August 2024
Loans (current and nan current) 1,515,323 572,407
Trade receivables 1,270,350 176,237
Cash and cash equivalents 1,203,412 2,192,668
Other financial assets (eurent and non-currant] 540,069 700,564

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents snd bank deposits {shown under othar bank balances) and olher financial assets is lirmited as the Group generally invesis
In deposits with banks with high credit ralings assigned by domeslic credit rating agencies. The loans primarily represents loan glven to related parties and
amployses, Other financial assels measured al amortized cost includes security deposhs and others. Cradil risk relaled to thase alher financial assels is managed
by manitoring the bility of such i 1}

Tha exposure lo the credit risk al he reporting date is primarily from security deposits and rade receivables,

Trade raceivables are typlcally unsacured and are derived from revenue camed from primarily located In w, Spain and othar Eurpesn countries.
The Group dass monitor the econemic enviranment in which It aperates. Tha Group manages ite crodit rigk through cradit appravals, establishing cradit limils and
cont Iy itaring sredil warthi of ta which the Graup grants credit lerms In the normal course af business.

The Group uses expeclad cradit loss model 1o assess (ha impairment loss, Cradit risk in security deposils sansidered 1o be low as they form part of giher
cemmercial arrangaiments such as leases, herefore security deposlt are Impaired only when there Is cbjsctive avidence of impairmant, The Group uses a provision
malrix to compute the expecied credil loss allowance for rade recaivables. The provision malrix takes into account avallable internal credil risk laclars such as the
Group's historleal experiance for customers, Based on tha business environmant in which the Group operates, management considers that lhe lrada receivailes
are in dafault (cradit Impaired) If tha payments ara more Lhan 180 days and 385 days for past due as applicable to reapactive group entity, howevaer, he Group

based upon past trands d Ina an impai liowance for lass on recelvables (olher lhan receivablas from related parties).
Reler note 9 for bifurcation of trade receivables into credit Impaired and othars,
Ch in the lass In of trade receivabl ) For the perlod For the period

1 Sept 2021 10 1 April 2021 10
s = 31 March 2022 31 Aug 2021
Balance al (ha baginning of the year 164,429 165,429
Change in Impairment all for raceivab) 141,256 .
Balance at (he end of the year 306,685 165,429

The managemant balioves that no lurther provision Is nacessary in respest of irade raceivables basad on historical trends of these customers,

The aging of irade receivables at the reporting date was as follows;

Particluars Forthe Parled  For the year

anded 31 ended 31

Mareh 2022 August 2021
Not Dueg 653,873 769,919
Less than 6 Months 794,686 85,846
G Months - 1 Year : 7679 48 264
More than 1 Years 90,707 27,617
Gross Trado Receivable 1,577,035 941,666
Losa allowance e i _1306.685) [165,428)
Met Trade Receivable 1,270,350 716,237
Liguldity risk >
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group may encounter difficulty in ting lts p t and future obligalions ciated with fi ial habilities that are required to be

solllad by delivering cash or anather financial assel. Tha Group's cbjecliva Is 1o, at all imes maintain optimum levels of liquidily lo meat its cash and collateral
obligations. Ulimate responsibility for liquidity risk managemant resls with the shareholdars, The Group's manages liquidity rizk by maintaining adequate reserves,
banking faciities and raserve borrowing (acllilies, by centinuously monitaring forecast and aclual cash flows, and by matching the malunty profiles of financial
asseds and liabilles Manag | maniters roiing f 15 of the Group's llquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expecied cash flows,
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b. Liquidity risk (Continued)
Maturitles of financial llabilities
The lables below analyse the Group's financlal llabiities Into relevant maturnty groupings based on their coniractual maturilies for all non-derivalive
financial labilties, The amounts disclosed in tha table are the conlractual undiscounted cash flows,

31 March 2022 Carrying amount | Less than 1 year 1-5 year Maora than Total

5 years
Mon-darivalives
Lease |labilities 106,786 58,318 47,468 - 106,786
Trada payables 614,915 614,815 - - B14.915
| Other financial iabililies = - = - &
Tatal 721,701 674,233 47,468 - 721,701
31 August 2021 Carrying amount | Less than 1 year 1-5 year More than Tatal

5§ years
Non-derivativas
Horowings 100,000 100,000 - - 140,000
Laase labiliies 140,424 58,209 82,218 - 140,424
Trada payables 574,175 574,175 . - 574175
Othar financia| fabiities 111,250 111,250 - - 111,250
Tatal 925,849 843,634 82,215 - 925,849

c. Market risk - Interest rate rlsk
Tha Group's policy Is to minimise Interest rale cash flow risk sxpasures on Jang-lerm financing. At the repariing perods end, tha Group is nel axpasad to changes
In markel Interes! rales as all borrowings are al fixed Interest rales.

d. Market risk - Price risk
The Group doss not have invetments held and classified in the balance sheet at fair valua thraugh profit or [oss. Hence, the Group does not hava price risk.

32 Capital g t policles and pre
The Group's abjective for capital management is to maximize shareholder's value, safaguard business conlinuily and support the growth of the Group. The Group
determines the capltal requirement based on annual operating plan and olher strateglc investment plans, The Group aims te manage its capital afficiantlly so as lo
saleguard its ability to continue as a going concern and Lo aptimiza relums to all its shareholders. The Group's lunding requirements are met through aquity
infusions and internal accruals an kong-term borrowings. The Group ralses long lerm loans mostly for ils expansion requirements and based on the working capiial
)L ulllise the working caplial fasiiies, The Group manitors capiial on the basis of consclidaled lotal debl to consolidated total equity on a periodic basis.

Tha amaunts managed as capital by the Group's for the reporting periads under review are summarisad as follows:

As at As al

Partieulars 31 March 2022 31 August 21
Leng-term borrowings - 100,000
Total borrowlngs - 100,000
Less:

Cash and cash equivalents 1,203,412 2,182,554
Net debls (1,203,412) (2,092,559)
Total equity* 2,303,332 2,034,086
Nat debt to equity ratio L 0.08

“Equity includes equity share capital and alher aquity of tha Group thal are managed as capital,
# Tha Group has no debt as al March 31, 2022, Hence, net debt to equity ratio has not been calculated.
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33 Additional Reulatory Information

Ratios
Particulars Numerator Danominator 31st March 2022
| Current Ratio Total current assels Total current Liabilitles 1.24
Il Debt Equity Ratio Total Debt Tolal Equily -
Il Debt Service Coverage Ratio Earning for Debl Service = Net Profit ~ Debt service = Interest and lease 237
after taxes + Non-cash operating payments + Principal repayments #
expenses + Interest + Other non-cash
adjustment
IV Return on Equity Frofit for the year less Preference Average total equity 11.65%
dividend (if any)
V' Inventory tumover Revenue from operations Average Inventory x
V| Trade Receivable turmover Ralio Revenuse from operations Average trade receivables 502
VI Trade Payable turnover Ralio Cosl of External Services Average trade Payable 4.59
VIl Net Capital Turnover ratio Revenue from operations Average working capital (i.e. Total
current assels less Total current
liabilities 8.68
IX  Net Profit Ratie Profit for the year Revenue from operations 5.23%
X Raturn on capital employed Profit before tax and finance costs Capital employad = Net worth + Lease
liabilities + Deferred tax liabilities 15.67%
%l Retumn an Investment Final value of Investment - Initial Value
of Investment Initial Value of Investment "+

# The Company does not have any debt however, repayment of lease liability is considered for the calculation of Debt Servicing Ratio as
per the Guidance Note on Schedule 1l issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountancy of India.

* The Company Is in service sactor and hence inventory turnover ratio is not applicable to the Company
" The Company does nol have any invesimant and henca the stated analytical ralio is nol applicable

34 The outbreak of coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic globally is causing significant disturbance and slowdown of econamic aclivity. The
Group's operations were Impacted due to restriction on travel and holel accammodalion during the nationwide lockdown, As a result of
lockdown, the volumes for the perlodiyear have been impacted. Furlher, the Group has considared the possibla affects that may result
from the pandemic relzling to COVID-19 on the carrying amounts of recelvables and other assels. In developing the assumptions
relating io the passible future uncerainties in the global economic condilion because of the pandemic, he Group, as at the date of he
approvel of these consolidated financial statements has used internal and external sources on the expected future performance of the
Group. Based on current indicators of future conditions, the Group expects the carrying amount of these will be recovered and
sufficient liquidity is available to fund the business operations. Given the uncertainty because of COVID-19, the final impact on the
Group's assels in future may differ from the estimated as at the date of approval of the consolldated financlal statements.

As per our report of even date attachad For and on behalfl of the Board of Directors of
For Shridhar and Assoclates Myhotelshop GmbH
Charterad Accountants

Firm's Registration Number: 134427W
Abhishék Pachlangla

Patiner
Membership Number: 120593

Bhanu Chopra
Managing Director

Date: May 13 2022 - Date: May 13 2022
Place: Mumbai : Placa: Dalni
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A As at
t
Particulars Notes 34 March 2022
Unaudited
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Other financial assets 1 4,000
Non-current tax assats (Net) 272
Total nan-current assets 4,272
Current assets
Financial assats
Cash and eash aquivalants 4 47,980
Other current assels 3 8,908
Total current assets 56,899
Total assets 61,171
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital a 3,000
Other equity 6 31,377
Total equity 34,377
LIABILITES
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 7 25,858
Other current liabilities 8 936
Total current liabilities 26,794
Total liabilities 26,794
Total equity and liabilities 61,171

Significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date altached

For and on behalf of the Board of Directars of
Myhotelghgp GmbH

Bhai opra
Managing Director
Date: May 13 2022
Place: Delni
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Period from
Particulars Notes 1/5epi2021 to
31 March 2022
Revenue from operations 2] 145,996
Total income 145,996
Expenses
Employee benefits expense 10 111,005
Finance costs " 75
Other expenses 12 29,802
Total expenses 140,882
Profit before tax 5114
Tax expense:
Current tax =
Deferred tax (credit)/charge -
Total tax expense -
Profit for the period 5114
Other comprehensive income -
Total other comprehensive income 5,114
Earnings per equity share (EPS)
Basic EPS 1 1.70
Diluted EPS 1 1.70

Significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
Fora behalf of the Board of Diractars of
MyhopglshopGmbH

Bhanu Chopra
Managing Director
Date: May 13 2022
Place: Delhi
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Particulars Period Ended
31 March 22
Unaudited
Operating activities
Profit before tax 5114
Adjustments for non cash jtems: -
Operating profit before working capital changes and other adjustments 5114
Worling capital adjustments:
(Increase) Decrease in frade receivables (8,431)
(Increase)f Decrease in other assets 1,183
Increase/ (Decrease) in irade payable 23,124
Increase/ (Decrease) in ather liabilities (4,606)
Cash generated from operating activities 16,384
Income tax refund received / (paid) 1,727
Net cash generated from operating activities 18,111
Investing activities
Met cash used in investing activities -
Financing activities &
Net cash (used in) financing activities -
Net (decrease)fincrease in cash and cash equivalents 18,111
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 29,879
47,990

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Myhotklghop Spain

u Chopra
Managing Director
Date: May 13 2022
Place: Delhi
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Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity
for the period ended ended 31 March 2022
All amounts are in Euro unless otherwise stated

a. Equity share capital

Particulars Amount
Balance as at 31 August 2021 3,000
Changes in equity share capital during the period -
Balance as at 31 March 2022 3,000

b. Other equity

Particulars Retained Total
earnings
Balance as at 31 August 2021 26,263 26,263
Profit far the period 5114 5114
Balance as at 31 March 2022 31,378 31,378

The dascription of the nature and purpose of each reserve within aquity is as follows:

=Y

Retained earnings :
This represents undistributed accumulated earnings/losses of the Company as an the balance sheet date

For and en behalf of the Board of Directors of

Managing Director
Date: May 13 2022
Place: Delhi
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(b)

(c)

Background

Myhotelshop Spain (the 'Company' or ‘the Holding Company') is registered under in Spain. The Company is
100% subsidiary of Myhotelshop Gmbh based out in Germany. These financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company (collectively referred to as the 'Company").

The Company is an Information Technology company providing innovative solutions to help clients in the
hospitality and travel industry to achieve their business goals. The Company cannects hotel websites to major
meta searches and runs marketing campaigns to increase direct bookings and push the websites as a
distribution channel. The Company earns net market placement revenue from advertisement/media spends
and recurring monthly fee under packages such as campaign management, campaign management light, full
management, eifc.

Significant accounting policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted In the preparation of this special purpose
financial statements. These palicies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

RateGain Travel Technologies Limited, a SaaS company registered in India, (“RateGain”) has acquired its
holding company Myhotelshop GmbH through its subsidiary company RateGain Technologies Limited, a
company registered in United Kingdom, vide Sale and Purchase Agreement (SPA) entered on 10 September
2021. RateGain is listed in the stack exchanges in India. The financial statement of RateGain is prepared in
accordance with Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Indian Companies Act,
2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Ind AS') for the purpose of
providing information to the RateGain Travel Technologies Limited solely ta enable it to prepare its financial
statements

Accordingly, the special purpose financial statements for the 7 months' period ended 31 March 2022 have
been prepared in accordance with the Ind AS.

For all periods up to and including the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company prepared its financial
statements in accordance with the German statutory accounting and reporting requirements (German GAAP)
(hereinafter referred to as ‘Previous GAAP') used for its statutory reporting requirement in Germany. However,
the previous financial statements are not audited as it is not required to be audited as per German statute.

Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on a histarical cost basis except for certain financial assets and
financial liabilities that are measured at fair value or amortized cost.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent liabilities at the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are based upon
management's best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or
liabilities in future periods. Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the period in which
changes are made and if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.
Infarmation about significant areas of estimation /uncertainty and judgements in applying accaunting policies
that have the most significant effect on the financial statements are as follows:

« judgment required to determine probability of recognition of deferred tax assets;
« impairment assessment of non-financial assets key assumptions underlying recaverable amount;
« impairment assessment of financial assets;

« measurement of financial guarantee contracts, provisions and contingent liabilities;

i
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(d)

L]

measurement of share-based payments, provisions and contingent liabilities;

judgment required to ascertain lease classification, lease term, incremental borrowing rate, lease and
non-lease component, and impairment of ROU,

o judgement required to determine that the government grant will be received

« measurement of unbilled or deferred revenue

cash flow projections and liquidity assessment with respect to Covid-18.

There are no assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material
adjustment within the next financial year except for as disclosed in these financial statements,

Fair value measurement
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

o In the principal market for the asset ar liability, or

» Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to / by the Company.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level of input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whale.

s Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

s Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observahle

» Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred belween levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorization

(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of

each reporting period,
For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on

the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy
as explained above.

o

2.2 Other significant accounting policies
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(a)

(b)

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to the periods presented in the financial
statements.

Property, plant equipment

Recognition and measurement

ltems of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises: (a) its purchase price and non-refundable
purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates; (b) any costs directly attributable to bringing the
asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management.

The cast of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and direct
labour, any other cost directly attributable to bringing the item to working condition for its intended use.

The cost of improvements to leasehold premises, if recognition criteria are met, are capitalized and disclosed
separately under leasehold improvement.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised Is derecognized upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the Statement of profit and loss when such asset is derecognized.

Subsequent cost

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate assel, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with expenditure will flow to
the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other subsequent cost is charged to
Statement of profit and loss at the time of incurrence.

Depreciation

Depreciation on praperty, plant equipment is provided on the straight-line method computed on the basis of
estimated useful life on a pro-rata basis fram the date the asset is ready to put to use.

Depreciation is calculated on a full year basis in the year of purchase or sale for that year.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property plant and equipment are reviewed
by management at each reporting date and adjusted prospectively, as appropriate.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets that are acquired are recognised only if it is probable that the expected future economic
benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the Company and the cost of assets can be measured
reliably. The other intangible assets are recorded at cost of acquisition including incidental costs related to
acquisition and installation and are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if
any.,

Gain or losses arising from derecognition of other intangible assets are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the other intangible assets and are recognised in the
Statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

Subsequent cost
Subsequent cost Is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific
asset to which it relates. All the subsequent expenditure on other intangible assets is recognised in Statement
of profit and loss, as incurred,
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Amortization
Amortization is calculated to write off the cost of other intangible assets over their estimated useful lives as
stated below using straight-line method. Amortization is calculated on full year basis for assets purchased
/disposed during the year.

Amortization has been charged based on the following useful lives:
Asset description Useful life of asset (in years)

| Computer software 5

Amortization method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate. .

(c) Leases
The Company as a lessee
The Company enters into an arrangement for lease of buildings. Such arrangements are generally for a fixed
period but may have extension or termination options. In accordance with Ind AS 116 — Leases, at inception
of the cantract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains a lease. A lease is defined as ‘a
contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to control the use an asset (the underlying asset) for a
period of time in exchange for consideration'.

To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company
assesses whether:

s The contract invalves the use of an identified asset — this may be specified explicitly or implicitly, and
should be physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity of a physically distinct asset.
If the supplier has a substantive substitution right, then the asset is not identified;

o The Company has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset
throughout the period of use; and

e The Cormpany assesses whether it has the right to direct ‘how and for what purpose’ the asset is used
throughout the period of use. At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease
component, the Company allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the
basis of their relative stand-alone prices. However, for the leases of land and buildings in which itis a
lessee, the Company has elected not to separate non-lease components and account for the lease
and non-lease components as a single lease component.

Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee

The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The
right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted
for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and
an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the
site on which it Is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated
impairment losses.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Company's incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Company uses its incremental
borrowing rate as the discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:
s fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

o variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at the commencement date;

« amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

s the exercise price under a purchase option that the Company is reasonably certain to exercise, lease
payments in an optional renewal period if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an
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extension option, and penalties for early termination of a lease unless the Company is reasonably

certain not to terminate early.
The lease liability is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest methad. It is remeasured when
there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in
the Company’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if the
Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.
When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in Statement of profit and loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-
use assat has been reduced to zero, as the case may be.

The Company as a lessor

At the inception of the lease the Company classifies each of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance
lease. The Company recognises lease payments received under operating leases as income on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

(d) Impairment - non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication of impairment exists, then the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated. For impairment testing, assets are companyed together into the smallest
company of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash
inflows of other assets or cash generating units ('CGU'). Goodwill arising from a business combination is
allocated to a CGU or companys of CGU that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value |ess costs to
sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset or CGU. An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
estimated recoverable amount.

Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of profit and loss. They are allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other
assets in the CGU on a pro-rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. For other assets, an impairment loss Is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal
is made only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

(e) " Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a
past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities

Cantingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Company. Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the cbligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability
of outflow of econamic benefits is remote.

(f) Employee benefits
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Short-term employee benefits

Employee benefit liabilities such as salaries, wages and bonus, etc, that are expected to be settled whally within
twelve months after the end of the reporting period in which the employees render the related service are
recognised in respect of employee's services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at an
undiscounted amount expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. Grants related to employees’ costs
subsidy are deducted from the respective employee cost.

Post-employment benefit plans
Defined benefit plans
There are no defined benefit plans in the Company.

Defined confribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the Company pays fixed
contributions to the government and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts.
Payments to defined contribution plans are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

(g) Share based payments

(h)

The grant-date fair value of equity-settled share-based payment arrangements granted to eligible employees
of the Company under the Employee Stack Option Scheme ('ESOS') is recognised as employes stock option
scheme expenses in the Statement of profit and loss, in relation to options granted to employees of the
Company (over the vesting period of the awards), with a corresponding increase in other equity. The amount
recognised as an expense to reflect the number of awards for which the related service and non-market
performance conditions are expected to be met, such that the amount ultimately recognised is based on the
number of awards that meet the related service and non-market performance conditions at the vesting date.
The increase in equity recognised in connection with a share based payment transaction is presented in the
"Employee stock options outstanding account', as separate component in other equity. For. share-based
payment awards with market conditions, the grant- date fair value of the share-based payment is measured to
reflect such conditions and there is no true- up for differences between expected and actual outcomes. At the
end of each period, the Companyrevises Its estimates of the number of options that are expected to be vested
based on the non-market performance conditions at the vesting date.

In case of cash-settled plan, fair value is determined on each reporting date and expense is accordingly
recagnised in the statement of profit and loss with a corresponding increase to the ESOP liability.

If vesting periods or other vesting conditions apply, the expense is allocated over the vesling period, based
on the best available estimate of the number of share options expected to vest. Upan exercise of share
options, the proceeds received, net of any directly atiributable transaction costs, are allocated to share capital
up to the nominal (or par) value of the shares issued with any excess being recorded as share premium.
The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted
earnings per share.

Income taxes

Income tax expense comprises of current tax and deferred tax. It is recognised in the profit or loss except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and
any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax
reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty,
if any relating to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates enacted for the relevant reporting period.
Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts, and it is intended to realize the asset and settle the liability on a net basis.

v
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(1)

(i)

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes.

Deferred tax liabllities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can
be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit may not be
available. Therefore, in case of a histary of recent losses, the Company recognizes a deferred tax asset only
to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing other evidence that
sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realized. Deferred tax
assets - unrecognized or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised / reduced to
the extent that it is probable / no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized
or liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting
date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax liabilities and assets levied by the same tax authorities.

Functional and presentation currency

The management has determined the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company
operates, i.e., the functional currency, to be Euro. The financial statements are presented in Euro, which is
the Company’s functional and presentation currency. All amounts have been rounded to the nearest Euro,
unless otherwise stated. Consequent to rounding off, the numbers presented throughout the document may
not add up precisely to the totals and percentages may not precisely reflect the absolute amounts.

Foreign currency transactions

Monetary and non-monetary transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional
currency of the Company at the exchange rates at the date of the transactions.

Monetary foreign currency assets and liabilities remaining unsettled on reporting date are translated at the -
rates of exchange prevailing on reporting date. Gains/(losses) arising on account of realization/settlement
of foreign exchange transactions and on translation of monetary foreign currency assets and liabilities are
recognised in the Statement of profit and loss.

Foreign exchange gains / (losses) arising on translation of foreign currency monetary loans are presented
in the Statement of profit and loss on net basis.

(k) Revenue recognition

Revenue from Contracts with Customers, revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised
services to customers. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable,
excluding discounts, incentives, performance bonuses, price concessions, amounts collected on behalf of
third parties, or cther similar items, if any, as specified in the contract with the customer. Revenue is recorded
provided the recovery of consideration is probable and determinable.

Revenue from operations is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured.

Revenue from sale of services in case of hospitality sector is recognised over the specified subscription period
on straight line basis or on the basis of underlying services performed, as the case may be, in accordance
with the terms of the contracts with customers and in case of travel sector the same is recognised when the
related services are performed as per the terms of contracts.
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Contract assets are recognised when there is excess of revenue earned over billings on contracts, Contract
assets are classified as unbilled receivables (only act of invoicing is pending) when there is unconditional
right to receive cash, and only passage of time is required, as per contractual terms,

The Company defers unearned and deferred revenue, including payments received in advance, until the
related subscription period is complete or underlying services are performed.

Service income

Revenue from marketing support services, management fee, set-up fee and auxiliary and business suppart
services are in terms of agreements with the customers and are recognised on the basis of satisfaction of
performance obligation over the duration of the contract from the date the contracts are effective or signed
provided the consideration is reliably determinable and no significant uncertainty exists regarding the
collection. The amount recognised as revenue is net of applicable taxes.

Interest income
Interest income on financial assets (including deposits with banks) is recognised using the effective interest
rate method.

() Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables and debt instruments are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial
assets are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All financial assets are initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through
Statement of profit and loss, transaction costs that are attributable to its acquisition or use.

Classification
For the purpose of initial recognition, the Company classifies its financial assets in following categories:

» Financial assets measured at amoriized cost;
» Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI); and
» Financial asssts measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their Initial recognition, except if and in the period the
Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset being 'debt instrument’ is measured at the amortized cost if both of the following conditions
are mel:
« The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and
s The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are Solely
Payments of Principal and Interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.
A financial asset being ‘'debt instrument’ is measured at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:
e Theassetis held within the business model, whose objective is achieved both by callecting contractual
cash flows and selling the financial assets, and
e The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are SPPlon
the principal amount outstanding.

A financial asset being equity instrument is measured at FVTPL.

v
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All financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTOC| as described ahove are measured
at FVTPL.

Subsequent measurement

Financial assets at amortized cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. The
amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses, if any. Interest income and impairment are recognised in
the Statement of profit and loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest income,
are recognised in the Statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the cantractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the
Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not
retain control of the financial asset. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in the Statement of profit
and loss.

Impairment of financial assets (other than at fair value)

The Company recognizes loss allowances using the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for the financial
assets which are not fair valued through profit and loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no
significant financing component is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all other financial assets,
expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition, in which case those financial assets are measured
at lifetime ECL. The changes (incremental or reversal) in loss allowance computed using ECL model, are
recognised as an impairment gain or loss in the Statement of profit and loss.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there
is no realistic praspect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the
counterparty does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to write-off. However, financial assels that are written off could still be subject to
enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company's procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Financial liabilities

Recognition and initial measurement

All financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
pravisions of the instrument. All financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value minus, for an item not
at fair value through profit and loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the liability.

Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is
designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net
gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in the Statement of profit and loss.
Financial liabilities other than classified as FVTPL, are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method. Interest expense are recognised in Statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss
on derecognition is also recognised in the Statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition

v
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The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or
expired.

The Campany also derecognizes a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under
the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on modified terms
is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished
and the new financial liability with maodified terms is recognised in the Statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount presented in the Balance Sheet when,
and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to sat off the amounts and it intends
either to settle them on a net basis or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

(m) Earnings per share
The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its equity shares. Basic EPS is
calculated by dividing the Statement of profit and loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company by
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is determined by
adjusting Statement of profit and loss attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number
of equity shares outstanding, for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares, which comprise share
options granted to employees.

The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted retrospectively for all periods
presented for any share splits and bonus shares issues including for changes effected prior to the approval
of the financial statements by the Board of Directors,

(n) Current and non-current classification
All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current.

Assets
An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company's normal operating
cycle; - :
e itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
e tis expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting date; or
e itis cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets. All other assets are classified as
non-current.

Liabilities
A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
e itis expected to be settled in the Company's normal operating cycle;
e itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
e itis due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting period; or
e the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reparting period.

Current liabilities include the current portian of nan-current financial liabilities. All other liabilities are classified

as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
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Operating cycle

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash
or cash equivalents. Based on the nature of operations and the time between the acquisition of assets for
processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating
cycle being a period of 12 months for the purpose of classification of assets and liabilities as current and
non- current.

(o) Cash and cash equivalents

(p)

(q)

(r)

(s)

(t)

Cash and cash equivalents comprises of cash at banks and short-term deposits with an original maturity of
three manths or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Segment reporting

As the Company's business activity primarily falls within a single segment which is providing innovative
solutions to help clients in the hospitality and travel industry to achieve their business goals. The
geographical segments considered are "within Germany”, “within European Union" and “outside European
Union" and are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating
Decision Maker ("CODM") of the Company who monitors the operating results of its business units not
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. The
CODM is considered to be the shareholder who make strategic decisions and is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing the financial performance of the operating segments. The analysis of geographical
segments is based on geographical location of the customers.

Exceptional items
Exceptional items are transactions which due to their size or incidence are separately disclosed to enable a
full understanding of the Company's financial performance.

Cash flow statement
Cash flows are reported using indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects
transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments.
The cash flows from regular revenue generating, financing and investing activities of the Company are
segregated. Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow comprise cash at bank, cash/cheques in hand and
shart-term investments with an original maturity of three months or less.

Share issue expense
Share issue expenses of an equity transaction are accounted for as a deduction from equity to the extent
they are incremental ‘costs directly attributable to the equity transaction that otherwise’ would have been
avoided.

Government Grant
Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply
with the conditions attached to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a systematic basis over the years
in which the Company recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to
compensate or when performance obligations are met.

Grants related to income and reimbursement of fixed costs are presented as part of profit or loss separately
under 'Other income’. Grants related to employees’ costs subsidy are deducted from the related expense.

The benefit of a government loan at a below-market rate of interest and effect of this favourable interest is
treated as a government grant. The loan or assistance is initially recognised at fair value and the government
grant is measured as the difference between proceeds received and the fair value of the loan based on
prevailing market interest rates and recognised to the income statement immediately on fulfilment of the

v
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performance obligations. The loan is subsequently measured as per the accounting policy applicable to
financial liabilities.

(u) New and amended standards adopted by the company

The company has applied the following amendments to Ind AS for the first time for their annual reporting
period commencing 1 April 2021:

« Extension of COVID-19 related concessions — amendments to Ind AS 116

- Interest rate benchmark reform — amendments to Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, Ind AS 107, Financial
Instruments: Disclosures, Ind AS 104, Insurance Contracts and Ind AS 116, Leases.

The amendments listed above did not have any impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and are
not expected to significantly affect the current or future periods.

(v) New amendments issued but not effective

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has vide notification dated 23 March 2022 nofified Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022 which amends certain accounting standards, and are
effective 1 April 2022, These amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the company in the
current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable future transactions.

L
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1 Other financial assets
(Unsecurad and considerad good at amorlised cost)

Non-current
Security deposils

2 Income tax assets and liabilities

Non-current tax assets
Income tax receivable

3 Other assets
{unsecurad and considered good)

Current
Prapaid Value Added Tax

As at
31 March
2022

4,000

430011

272
272

8,909
8,909
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All ar ts are in Euro uni otherwise stated
As at
31 March
2022
4 Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks
- In current account 47,990
47,990

There are no repatriation restrictions with regard to eash and eash equivalents as at end of reporting period and prior periods.
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5 Equity share capital

Subscribed capital
3000 equity shares of Eura 1 each fully paid up

Notes:

(i) Terms and rights attached to equity shares

As at
31 March
2022

3,000

3,000

Tha Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Euro 1 per share. Each holder of equity shares is
entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, holder of equity shares will be entitled to receive
remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amount. The distribution will be in proportion to the numbar

of equity shares held by the shareholders.

a Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the period:

As at

Particulars 31 March 2022

No of Shares Amount

Equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the period 3,000 3,000
Add ¢ lssued during the period - n:
Equity shares outstanding at the end of the period 3,000 3,000

(ili} Shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5 percent shares:

Particulars As at
31 March
2022
Myhatelshop GmbH 100%

(iv) Details of shareholding of promoters:

Sr. Promoter name At the end of 31st March 2022
No
No of % of total % Change
Shares shares during the
year
1 [Myhotelshop GmbH 3,000 100% -

{v) No shares have been issued by the Campany for consideration other than cash, during the period of five years immediately

preceding the reporting periods.
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6.1

As at
31 March 2022

Other equity

Ratained earnings 31,377

31,377

Retained earnings

Balance al the beginning of the period 26,263
Profit for the period 5,114
Balance at the end of the period 31,377

Retained earnings are crealed from the profit [ loss of the Company, as adjusted for distribulions lo ownars, transfers to
ather reserves, etc.
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7  Trade payables

Trade payables

8  Other liabilities

Currant
Stalutory liahilities

As at
31 March
2022

26,858
25,858
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Period from
1 Sep 2021 to
31 March 2022
9 Revenue from operations

Sala of services

145,996

145,996
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10 Employee benefits expense

Salaries and wages
Contribution to social securities

11 Finance costs

Other finance costs

12 Other expenses

Legal and professional fees

Rent and other space costs(Refer note 28)
Insurance and other charges

Travelling and conveyance

Office supplies and incidental expensas

Allowance for expected cradit loss(refer nate 31(jii)(a))

Miscellanecus expenses
Total

Period from
1 Sep 2021 to
31 March 2022

90,471
20,534

111,005

75
75

3,167
12,800
1,820
9,716
1,184
(8,534)
9,487

29,620
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13 Related party disclosures
{l) Relationship with related parties:

(a) Parent company
MHS Ventures (upto 31st August 2021)
Rategain Technologies Limited, United Kingdom (w.e.f: 1st September 2021)

(b) Key management personnel (KMP):
Mr, Ullrich Kastner (Chief Executive Officer and Managing Directar upto 30the September 2021)
Mr. Bhanu Chopra (Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director w.e.f 1st October 2021)

(Il) Transactions with related parties during the period 1 September 2021 to 31 March 2022:

Particulars Period from
1 September 2021
to 31 March 2022

Other expenses

Rateqgain Technalogies Limited, United Kingdom 49, 687
Compensation to KMPs

Mr. Ullrich Kastner 30,365

(I} Outstanding Balances

Particulars As at
31 March 2022
(i) Payahlas
Rategain Technologies Limited, United Kingdom 49,687

Mr., Ullrich Kastner 5,176
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14

i)

ii)

1ii)

Fair value measuraments
Financial instruments by category

As at 31 March 2022
R FUTPL Amortised cost
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents - 47,290
Other financial assets - 4,000
Total - 51,890
Financial liabilities
Trade payables - 25,858
Total - 25,858

Fair value hierarchy
Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value in the balance shest are divided into three levels of a fair value hlsrarchy. The three levels are
defined based on the observabllity of significant inputs to the measurement, as follows:

Lavel 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) In aclive markets for financial instruments.
Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation teshniques which maximise the use of
observable market data rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates.
Level 3: If one or mare of the significant Inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is includad in level 3.

. Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost:

The carrying amaounts of trade receivables, rade payables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, other current financials assels and liabilities are
considerad lo be the same as their fair values, due to their short-term nature.

The company has barrowings at fixed interest rate, Therefore, the management estimates thal the fair value of these barrowings are approximale fo their
respective carrying values.

Far financial assets and liabilities that are measured al fair value, the carrying amounls are equal to the falr values.

Financial risk manag it

The company's activities expose it to market rislk, liquidity risk and credil risk. The company's board of directors has overall responsibility far the establishment and
oversight of the company's risk management framawark, This note explains the sources of risk which the entily is exposed to and how the entlly manages the risk
and the related impact in the financial statemants,

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management
Credit risk - Cash and cash equivalanis, trade Ageing analysis . Bank deposits, diversification of assat
receivables, financlal assels base, credit limits and collateral.

measured al amortised cost

Liguidity risk Borrawings and other liabiiities Ralling cash flow forecasts Availability of committed credit finas and
. |borrowing facililies

. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty fails to discharge an obligation to the company. The company Is exposed to this risk for various financial instruments, for
example by granting loans and receivables to customars, placing deposils, etc. The company’s maximum exposure to credit risk is imited lo the camying amaount of
following types of financial assets.

- cash and cash equivalents,

- trade recelvables,

-loans and receivables carried al amortised cost, and

- deposits with banks

A
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a. Credit risk fcontinuad)

o

The maximum exposure to cradit risks is represented by the total carrying amount of these financial assets in the balance shaet:

As at
raeioniam 34 March 2022
Cash and cash equivalents 47,950
Other financial assets (current and non-current) 4,000

Credit risk on cash and eash equivalents and bank deposits (shown under other bank balances) and other financial assels is imiled as the company generally
invests in deposits with banks with high credit ratings assigned by domestic credit rating agencies. The loans primarily represents loan given to related parties and
employees. Other financial assels measured at amortized cost includes security deposits and others. Credit risk related to these other financial assets is managed
by manitaring the recoverability of such amounts continuously.

The exposure to the cradit risk al the reperting date is primarily from security deposits and trade receivables.

Trade receivables are typically unsecured and ars derived from revenue earned from customers primarily located In Germarny, Spain and other Eurpaan countries.
The company does manitor the econemic environmant in which it operates. The company manages its credit risk through credit appravals, establishing credit imits
and continuausly monitoring credit warthiness of customers to which the company grants credit terms in the normal course of business.

The company uses expected eradit loss model to assess the impairment loss. Credit risk in security deposits considered to be low as they form part of other
commarcial arrangements such as leases, therefore security deposit are impaired only when there is objective evidence of impairmenl. The company uses a
pravision matrix to compute the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables. The provision matrix takes into account available intarnal credit risk factors
such as the comparny's historical experience for customers. Based on the business environment in which the company operates, management considers that the
trade receivables are in defaull (cradil impaired) If the paymanls are more than 180 days and 365 days for past due as applicable to respective company entity,
hewever, the company based upon past trends determine an impairment aliowance for loss on receivables (ather than receivables from related parties).

The management believes that no furlher provision is necessary in respect of trade receivables based on histerical trends of thase customers,

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the company may encounter difficulty in meeting Its present and future obligations associated with financial liabiiities that are required to
be seatlled by delivering cash or another financial asset, The company's objective is to, at all imes maintain aptimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral
obligations. Ulimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the shareholders. The company's manages liquidily risk by maintaining adequate
resarves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facllities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of
financial assets and liabilities Management manitors rolling forecasts of the company's liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected
cash flows.
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b. Liquidity risk {Continued)
Maturities of financial liabilities
The: lables below analyse the company's financia| liabilities into relevant maturity companyings based an their centractual maturitias for all non-derivative
financial liabilities. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

31 March 2022 Carrying amount | Less than 1 year 1.5 year Mare than Total
5 years
Non-derivatives
Trade payables 25,858 25,858 - - 25,858
Tatal 25,858 25,858 - - 25,858

c. Market risk - Interest rate risk
The company's policy is to minimise interest rate cash flow risk exposures on long-term financing. At the reparling periods end, the company is not exposed to
changes in market interast rates as all borrowings are at fixed interest rates,

d. Market risk - Price risk
The company doas not have invetments held and classified in the balance sheet at fair value through profit or loss. Hence, the campany daes not have price risk.

15 Gapltal management policies and procedures

The company's objective for capital management is lo maximize shareholder's value, safeguard business conlinuity and suppart the growth of the company. The
company determines the capilal requirement based on annual aperating plan and other strategic investment plans. The company aims to manage its capital
efficlently so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a gaing concern and to optimize returns to all its shareholders. The company's funding requirements are met
through equity infusions and internal accruals an long-term barrowings, The company raises long term lnans mastly for its expansion requirements and based on
the working capital requirement utilise the working capital facilities. The company monilors capital on the basis of total debt to latal equity on a periedic basis.

The amounts managed as capital by the company's for the reporting periods under review ara summarised as follows:

As at

Particulars 31 March 2022
Lang-term borrowings =
Total barrowings =
Less: - L

Cash and cash equivalents 47,990
Net debts (47,990)
Total equity* 34,377
Net debt to equity ratio #

*Equity includes equity share capital and other equity of the company that are managed as capital.
# The company has no debt as at March 31, 2022, Hence, net debt to equity ratio has not been caleulated,




Myhotelshop Spain

Notes forming part of the Standalone financial statements
for the period ended ended 31 March 2022

All amounts are in Euro unless otherwise stated

16 Additional Reulatory Information

Ratios
Particulars Numerator Denominator 31st March 2022
| Current Ratio Total current assets Total current Liabilities 2,12
Il Debt Equity Ratio Total Debt Total Equity #
Il Debt Service Covarage Ratio Earning for Debt Service = Net Profit ~ Debt service = Interest and lease i
after taxes + Non-cash operating payments + Principal repayments #
expenses + Interest + Other non-cash
adjustment
IV Return on Equity Profit for the year less Preference Average lolal equity 14.88%
dividend (if any)
WV Inventory turnover Revenue from operations Average Inventory *
VI Trade Receivable turnover Ratio Revenue from operations Average trade receivables (34.62)
VIl Trade Payable turnover Ratio Cost of External Services Average {rade Payable -
VIl Net Capital Turnaver ratio Revenue from aperations Average working capilal (i.e. Total
current assets less Total current
liabilities 4,85
IX Net Profit Ratio Profit for the year Revenue from operations 3.50%
X Relurn on capital employed Profit before tax and finance costs Capital employed = Net worth + Lease
liahilities + Deferred tax liabilities
15.10%
Xl Return on Investment Final value of Investment - Initial Value
of Investment Initial Value of Investment %

# The Company does not have any debt however, repayment of lease liability is considered for the calculation of Debt Servicing Ratio as
per the Guidance Note on Schedule [l issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountancy of India.
*  The Company is in service sector and hence inventary turnover ratio is not applicable to the Company
~* The Company does nat have any investment and hence the stated analytical ratio is not applicable

17 The outbreak of coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic globally is causing significant disturbance and slowdown of economic activity. The
company's operations were impacted due to restriction on travel and hotel accommodation during the nationwide lockdown. As a
result of lockdown, the volumes for the period/year have been impacted. Further, the company has considered the possible effects
that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 on the carrying amounts of receivables and other assets. In developing the
assumptions relating to the possible future uncertainties in the global economic condition because of the pandemic, the company, as
at the date of the approval of these financial statements has used internal and external sources on the expected future performance of
the company. Based on current indicalors of future conditions, the company expects the carrying amount of these will be recovered
and sufficient liquidity is available to fund the business operations. Given the uncertainty because of COVID-18, the final impact on the
company's assets in fulure may differ from the estimated as at the date of approval of the financial statements.
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